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200 South President Street
Post Office Box 17
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017

Department of Administration

May 12, 2010

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and
Citizens of the City of Jackson, Mississippi:

A requirement of Mississippi law is that local governments annually publish audited
financial statements. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 for the City of Jackson, MS is submitted
herewith.

An ungualified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Jackson, MS has been
issued by BKD, LLP CPA’s for the year ended September 30, 2008. The Independent
Accountants’ Report is included in the front of the financial section of the CAFR. The City
of Jackson is also required to have an audit performed in compliance with the Single Audit
Act of 1984 regarding grants received from the federal government. The Single Audit
report was issued by Bruno & Tervalon LLP, CPA’s.

The dedicated and professional staff of the Finance Division, Department of Administration,
prepared this report in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP). We maintain that the data is accurate in all material
aspects and is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial activities of
the various funds of the local government. The responsibility for the accuracy of the data
and the fairness and completeness of the presentation, including any disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the fiscal affairs of the City, is entrusted
to the administration of the local government. We further assert that the internal controls
implemented provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

All of the funds account groups and enterprise operations of the City of Jackson, MS, as
well as the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA} and the Capital City Convention
Center Commission {component units of the city) are included in the 2008 CAFR. JRA and
the Capital City Convention Center Commission are presented as a proprietary fund type
within the CAFR because the City exercises significant oversight responsibility. The
approval of JRA’s administrative operating costs and appointments to its Board of
Commissioners are authorized by the City's governing body. Additionally, JRA accounts
for its separate funds and maintains revenues sufficient to meet their operating costs, debt
service and system replacement and maintenance needs for their parking garages and other
urban renewal projects. The Capital City Convention Center Commission is accountable as
a component unit of the City because of its fiscal dependency on the City of Jackson.



Four Enterprise Funds, which provide a variety of services on a fee-for-services basis, are
among those funds whose financial operations are included in the CAFR. These Enterprise
Funds are the Woater/Sewage Disposal System, Madison Sewage Disposal System,
Transportation, and Sanitation and Recycling.

Organizationally, the 2008 CAFR provides information in three major sections:
Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section encompasses the Letter
of Transmittal, the Organizational Chart of the Executive Branch of the City of Jackson,
MS, a list of principal elected and appointed officials, and the 2007 Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting which was awarded to the City by the
Government Finance Officers Association. The Financial Section consists of the
Independent Accountants’ Report, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to the Financial
Statements and the various individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules. Additionally, a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis are provided in

the form of Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). We recommend that the -

MD&A on pages 3-11 be carefully examined by the reader to provide a more concise
picture of the financial position of the City.

DESCRIPTION OF CITY OF JACKSON, MS

Historical Background

The City of Jackson, MS was founded in 1821 at the site of a trading post that was
situated on a "high and handsome bluff" on the west bank of the Pearl River, which is
located in the central region of the state. It is said that the trading post was operated by a
French-Canadian trader named Louis LeFleur, who gave the town its original name of
LeFleur's Bluff. The Mississippi Legislature wanted the seat of government moved out of
the Natchez area and into a more ceniral focation. Thomas Hinds, James Patton and
William Lattimore were then commissioned to locate the ideal site for the state capital.
Their report to the General Assembly was that LeFieur's Bluff had "beautiful and healthful
surroundings, good water, abundant timber, navigable waters, and nearness to the Natchez
trace." A legislative act dated November 28, 1821 authorized the location to be the
permanent seat of government and that it would be named Jackson in honor of Major
General Andrew Jackson who later would become the seventh president of the United
States. A $3,500 contract was let to build Mississippi's first capitol, a two-story brick
structure 40 feet by 30 feet, where the opening session was held on December 23, 1822.
A second capitol building, popularly known as the "Old Capitol,” was completed in 1840
and remained in use until 1903. The building, restored in 1961, has become Mississippi's
Historical Museum. The New Capitol building, a magnificent structure patterned after the
National Capitol, was completed in 1803.

During the Civil War, the town was ravaged and burned three times by Union troops under
the command of General William Tecumseh Sherman. The destruction prompted the
unwelcome nickname of “Chimneyville.” Although less than 8,000 people lived in Jackson
at the turn of the century, its population began accelerating rapidly after 1900,




Jackson Today

Presently, Jackson has 184,256 citizens within its radius of 102.59 square miles. Since
19886, the City of Jackson, MS operates under the mayor-council form of government.
Prior to 1985, the commission form of government, which included a mayor and two
commissioners elected at-large, was in place. Currently, the municipal government is
comprised of the mayor, who is elected at large, and seven council members, who are
elected by ward. The mayor and council members, who have policy-making and legislative
authority, serve four-year terms. The Mayor appoints, and the City Council approves, the
Chief Administrative Officer, City Attorney, and eight department heads. City leaders are
committed to ensuring that the municipality has a healthy financial outlook while providing
essential services.

A comprehensive range of municipal services including public safety, street maintenance,
water, sewer, and sanitation services, social programs, recreation activities, cultural events
and general administration are provided to Jackson’s citizens. These services are provided
in the context of the broad public policy initiatives as determined by the elected officials of
Jackson, MS. Youth and Education, Crime Prevention, Neighborhood Enhancement,
Economic Development, Changes in City Government, Quality of Life, and Infrastructure
and Transportation were the policy initiatives for FY 2008.

The City of Jackson, MS is required to submit its municipal budget on an annual basis to
the City Council for adoption on or before the fifteenth day of the last month in the fiscal
yvear. A seven phase Performance Based Budget process, which closely links policy
initiatives, services, and available resources, is utilized to develop the budget. As the
primary financial planning and control document, the budget provides the foundation for
City operations. The budget is crafted to include expenditures by fund: General, Special
Revenue, Debt Service, Proprietary, Trust, and Capital; by department: Administration,
General Government, Human & Cultural, Parks & Recreation, Police, Fire, Personnel, Public
Works, and Planning; and by category: Personal Services, Supplies and Material, Other
Services and Charges, and Capital Outlay. General Property Taxes, Licenses and Permits,
Fines and Forfeitures, Intergovernmental, Admissions, Fees, Rentals, Interest, Other
Revenues, and Operating Transfers are the categories that comprise the revenue budget.
During the fiscal year, department heads may transfer resources within a department by
following established guidelines. These transfers, along with other budget adjustments,
are incorporated into Budget Revisions that must be approved by the City Council. The
Executive Branch is afforded the opportunity to submit a maximum of three Budget
Revisions to the City Council for approval within the fiscal year.

' ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The City is the seat of government for the State of Mississippi and home to a diverse
economy. In addition to governmental services, major industries located within the city
limits or in close proximity include the Nissan auto plant and manufacturers of power,
metal fabrication, airplane parts, and machine parts and engines. Jackson is also the site
of the largest financial institutions in the state. Numerous healthcare facilities, including
the state’s only medical school, pepper the city's landscape, providing employment to
more than 14,000 professionals and staff.

|
|
5
|




As the population, educational, cultural, medical, and governmental center of the state, the
Jackson metropolitan surrounding area has a relatively stable unemployment rate of 7.1
percent with an employed labor force of 232,340. This unemployment rate compares
favorably to the state’'s overall unemployment rate of 8.8 percent. Over the previous
years, the unemployment rate has ranged from a high of 8.8 percent to a low of 5.4
percent for 2008.

Jackson, MS, however, is highly dependent upon the public sector as an economic engine.
White public sector employment is generally more stable than private sector employment,
the spin-off businesses and entrepreneurial opportunities that are needed for sustained
growth is not generated at the desired level. Thus, the economic development efforts
must look toward business-government partnerships as a part of the solution. Towards
that end, Jackson is poised to realize a number of developments of mixed use facilities in
the immediate future.

The City has aiso begun to benefit from a variety of downtown revitalization efforts.
These efforts include a recently renovated multi-modal transportation center, completion of
a major portion of a parkway project to connect downtown to Jackson State University,
and creation of an entertainment district in and around Farish Street, the oldest African
American nationally designated historic district. Occupancy in the downtown area is at 93
percent and is expected to remain stable. The high percentage of college-educated
réisidents who reside in Jackson is a positive trend that can further the City's efforts to
becoming a dynamic urban center.

The construction of the Capital City Convention Center was completed in January 2009
and business operations began at that time.

Jackson property owners pay property taxes for county, city, and school totaling $172.14
per $1000 of assessed value. The assessment rate is 10 percent for residential property,
15 percent for other real property and 30 percent for personal property. There is no local
income tax in Jackson.

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

The City’s financial stability is evidenced by the general fund reserve, fund balance reserve
policy, bond ratings and other fiscal determinants. An Unrestricted General Fund Reserve
policy that is within range of the level cited by GFOA recommended practice has been
adopted by the City Council. The City’s fund balance reserve amounted to 18.1 percent of
the adopted General Fund operating revenues for FY 08.

The Genera!l fund balance available for futuré appropriation is $20,761,185 million, which
includes $8,614,057 million attributable to the City’s General Fund reserve policy. An
additional $4,047,182 million is reserved for inventories and state tort claims.




The City remains an excellent place for investors with ratings of A1 on both G.0. bonds
and Revenue bonds by Moody’'s and AA- on G.O. bonds and A on Revenue bonds by
Standard & Poor’s. As a result of sound financial management practices, an upgrade was
received by the City on its Series 2009 General Obligation Street Resurfacing Bond from
Standard and Poor’s from “A+“ to “AA-", and Moody’s affirmed the “A1" rating on the G.
O. bonds.”

The estimated ratio of net bonded debt to estimated assessed valuations and the amount
of bonded debt per capita in FY 2008 are useful gauges of the City's debt position.

POPULATION: 184,256
BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA: $ 598
REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUE: $ 921,947,610
NET BONDED DEBT (G.O}: $ 112,535,000
RATIO OF DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE: 11.93%

The following charts reflect activities within the Debt Service Fund and Enterprise Fund:

\
|
i
BONDS OUTSTANDING |
|
\

Amount Cutstanding Amount Outstanding
Category Sept. 30, 2008 Sept. 30, 2007
General Obligation $ 112,535 $ 115,500 |
Special Obligation Bond — Pension 6,430 12,430 |
Tax Increment Limited Obligation 2,270 210
Bonded Debt $ 121,235 $ 128,140
Revenue Bonds 161,345 167,670
Urban Renewal Bonds - 15,b7bH 28,750
Component Unit
Total $ 298,155 $ 324,560

;
;
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ENTERPRISE FUND — CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Income {Loss) 2008 2007
Water/Sewage Disposal Fund $ 4,649 $ 11,198
Madison Sewage Disposal Fund (11} {11)
Transportation Fund (534) 340
Sanitation and Recycling Fund 1,866 235
Total Net Income $ 5,970 $ 12,462

The City of Jackson participates in two retirement systems administered by the Public
Emplovees’ Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Both systems are defined benefit
plans and include a multi employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi employer
pension plan. Substantially, the City of Jackson full-time employees participate in the multi
employer cost-sharing pension plan. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by
state law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The employer
and employees’ contributions represented 11.85% and 7.25% of covered payroll,
respectively. The contribution by the employer was raised by statute to 11.85%, effective
Juiy 2008.

The City’s uniformed police officers and fire fighters employed prior to April 1, 1976
participate in the agent multi employer pension plan. The City’s contributions consist
principally of allocations of ad valorem taxes derived from a 5.56 millage levy, increased
annually not more than one-half mill, to meet the necessary funding level. Employees
participating are required to contribute 10% of their annual salary. The financing objective
is that contributions will be sufficlent to make the plan actuarially sound by July 1, 2020,
The ad valorem tax payments to the Public Employees’ Retirement System will resume in
2010.

The City exercises an aggressive cash management policy, which involves cash flow
analysis, and projection of immediate cash needs. As allowed by state statutes, surplus
funds are invested in certificates of deposit with municipal depositories and direct
obiigations of the U.S. Treasury and collateralized repurchase agreements. Also, all
remaining cash is placed in interest-bearing checking accounts. Interest earned for FY
2008 for all funds totaled $5,380,244,

The City also maintains an Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund (Trust Fund)
established pursuant to state law. In addition to funding all valid claims, the City is
required to maintain the balance in the fund at not less than 2% of the first $7,000 paid
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each employee during the preceding year. As of September 30, 2008, the required
amounts were funded. Claims totaled $104,565 during fiscal year 2008. Worker's
Compensation benefits in the amount of $1,764,859 were paid to employees during fiscal
year 2008,

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees' Group Benefit Fund (Internal Service) to
account for the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of
Jackson and employees to be used to fund future liabilities and current payment of
employee medical claims and related administration expenditures of the City’'s group
benefit plan. Revenues totaled $7,391,112 and employee benefit costs were
$11,503,298 during fiscal year 2008. The City’'s General fund appropriated $3,814,710
to the Employees’ Group Benefit fund.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

There are several distinct policies that provide that framework for the financial operations
of the City. One such policy is the commitment to conservatism by the Executive Branch
in projecting its annual revenues. This policy provides a safeguard to drastic reductions in
a given budget cycle in the event of under budgeted or unbudgeted costs. The City of
Jackson, MS also has a policy to carefully allocate one time revenues such that operating
expenses are not increased.

SELECT ACCOMPLISMENTS

The Public Works Department has earned accreditation by the American Public Works
Association, becoming the first agency in the State of Mississippi to be accredited. The
City becomes the twenty-sixth public agency in the United States and Canada to achieve
accreditation status.

The American Public Works Association accreditation program recognizes those public
agencies that exceed the requirements of the management practices established nationally
in the public works industry. On a daily basis, accredited agencies meet or exceed the
standards of performance in areas such as solid waste management, street/sewer repair
and maintenance, engineering, building maintenance and vehicle maintenance.

FUTURE INITATIVES

In January 2009, the City will issue $26.2 million in Street Resurfacing Bonds.
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AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Jackson, Mississippi, for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007. This was the twenty-sixth consecutive year that the City of
Jackson has received this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
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The Pinnacle at Jackson Place
: 190 E, Capitol Street, Suite 500

= .p Jackson, MS 39201-2190
CPAs & Advisors £01.948.6700 Fax 601.948,6000  www.bkd.com

independent Accountants’ Report on Financial Statements
and Supplementary Information

Honorable Mayor
and Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Jackson, Mississippi as of and for the year ended

September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Jackson Redevelopment Authority, which represents 41% of the total
assets, 32% of the total net assets and 11% of total revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units at September 30, 2008, and for the vear then ended. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Jackson Redevelopment Authority, is based solely on the report of
the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Jackson, Mississippi as of

September 30, 2008, and the respective changes in its financial position and its cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 5 G, the City changed its method of accounting for other postemployment benefit
obligations and adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45 in 2008.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 12, 2010,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
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and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as
listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not andit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying introduction section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and the statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, in our opinion, are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introduction, statistical and single audit sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%K\\B\ N

May 12, 2010




CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As financial management of the City of Jackson, we offer readers of the City of Jackson’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Jackson for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found on pages i - viii of this report.

Financial Highlights .

+ The assets of the City of Jackson exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$440 million (net assets). Of this amount, there is $55.1 million in unrestricted net assets, which may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

s The government's total net assets decreased by $31.8 million.

+  As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $56.3 million, a decrease of $26.4 miilion in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately eighty-nine (89) percent of this fotal amount is $50 million (unreserved). $21 million is
available for spending at the government's discretion (unreserved fund balance) and $29 million is
available for capital projects.

+ -+ At the end of the current fiscal year unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $21 million, or
23.0 percent of total general fund expenditures.

+ The City of Jackson's total debt decreased by $15.7 million (5.0 percent) during the current fiscal
year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is infended to serve as an introduction to the City of Jackson's basic
financial statements. The City of Jackson's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This repori also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are desighed to
provide readers with a bread overview of the City of Jackson’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Jackson's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Jackson is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reporied in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
pericds (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Jackson that are
principally supported by faxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges fbusiness-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Jackson include general
government, public safety, public works, human & cultural services, employee benefits, and interest on
long term debt. The business-type activities of the City of Jackson include water/sewer, transportation
and sanitation.

The government-wide financial statements include the City of Jackson itself (known as the primary
government), and a legally separate redevelopment authority and Capital City Convention Center
Commission for which the City of Jackson is financially accountable. Financial information for these
component units are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Jackson, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Jackson can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is parrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmentat fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Jackson maintains fifteen {15) individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Federal Grant Fund, Debt Service
Fund, Improvement Fund, 1998 General Obligation Bond Fund, 2003 General Obligation Bond Fund, and
2006 General Obligation Bond Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
eight (8) governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere
in this report.

The City of Jackson adopts an annual budget for all of its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided to demenstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found onh pages 14-29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Jackson uses enterprise funds to account for its Water/Sewage Disposall
System Fund, Madison Sewage Disposal System Funds, Transportation Fund and Sanitation Funds.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among

the City of Jacksen's various functions. The City of JacKson uses an Internal Service Fund to account for

its Employee Group Heailth Benefit Fund. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental aclivities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund, which is considered to be a major fund of the City of Jackson. The
Internal Service Fund is presented in the Proprietary Fund financial statements as governmental
activities.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30-34 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for
others and therefore are not available to support City programs. The function of the City's principal trust
fund is discussed in Note 5.A.2. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and are
reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. The purpose of the City's Agency Funds
is to collect and remit to the related organizations the proceeds of a special sales tax received from the
State.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 35-36 of this report.




CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPP!
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to & full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial siatements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 37-79 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Jackson’s progress in funding
its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found on page 80 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and non-
major proprietary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on
pensions and other post-employment benefits. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules
can be found on pages 81-90 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
In the case of the City of Jackson, assets exceeded liabilities by $440 million at the close of September
30, 2008.

By far the largest portion of the City of Jackson's net assets (80 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City of Jackson uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Jackson’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed fo repay this debt must be provided from other scurces, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Jackson's Net Assets
{amounts expressed in thousands)
Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current and other assets $ BZ2867 § 83633 $ 103,1097% 106,301 s \
Capital assets 265,192 .. 277216 341,163, . 339,868. .. 606,355 ., 617,084,
Total assels 428,059 460,849 444 272 446,169 872,331 907,018
Long-term liabilities outstanding 156,154 159,187 185,716 192,855 341,870 352,042
Other Liabilities 83,296 75,279 6,836 7,564 90,132 82,843
Total Liabilities 239,450 234 466 102,552 200,419 432,002 434,885
Met assets:
invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 197,358 207,047 156,309 147,013 353,668 354,060
Restricted 28,617 64,061 3,820 3,765 32,437 67,826
AUnrestricted (37,367) {44 725) 91,591 94 972 54,224 50,247
Total net assets $ 188609 § 226383 $ 251,720 § 245750 $ 440,320 $ 472,133

The City of Jackson's total net assets decreased by $32 million during the current fiscal year.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City of Jackson's net assets by $38

miltion.




CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DiSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Jackson's Changes in Net Assets

{amounts expressed in thousands}

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Revenues:
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 11,866 § 13042 % 59,847 § 54,748 % 71,713 § 67,790

Operating grants and contvibutions 18,436 12,968 2,365 6,512 20,801 19,480

Capital grants and contributions 7,912 1,770 - - 7,912 1,770
General revenues:

Propertly faxes 65,845 65,037 - - 65,845 69,037

Sales taxes 37,298 40453 - - 37,298 40,453

Franchise taxes 5,062 8,936 - - 9,062 8,936

Cther 3,605 5469 2,408 4,520 6,013 9,989

Total revenues 154,024 147 875 64 620 65,780 218,644 213,455

Expenses:

General government 69,721 49,147 - - 69,721 49,147

Public safety 53,664 62576 - - 53,664 62,578

Public works 25,301 15,993 - - 25,301 15,993

Human and cultural services 14,890 13,067 - - 14,890 13,067

Employee benefits 1,765 2180 - - 1,765 2,180

Interest on long-term debt 5917 5647 - - 5,917 5,647

Water/Sewer - - 45,279 39,904 45,279 39,904

Transportation - - 7,685 6,852 7,685 6,852

Sanitation - - 10,299 10,931 10,299 10,931

Total expenses 171,258 148,610 63,263 57,687 234,521 206,297

Increase in net assets before transfers {17,234) (935) 1,357 8,093 (15,877} 7,158
Transfers (4,613) (4,369) 4,613 4,369 - -
In¢crease in net assets (21,847) (5,304 5,870 12,462 (15,877) 7,158
Net assets - October 1, 2007 226,383 206,092 245,750 233,288 472,133 439,380
Prior peried adjusiment {15,927} 25585 - - {15,927} 25,595
Net assets - September 38, 2008 % 188600 5 226,383 § 061,720 § 245,750 $ 440,329 $ 472133

In FY 2007, the City issued $65. million .in.General. Qbligaticn. Bonds . on. behalf. of. the. Capital City
Convention Center Commission {0 construct the Convention Center. A special sales tax levy was
established to pay the debt service for the bonds. The honds couldn’t be issued as revenue bonds
because of the uncertainty of the sales tax collections; therefore, the bonds were issued as GO Bonds of
the City with full, faith and credit of the City. The asset (the Convention Center facility) is the property of
the Capital City Convention Commission and recorded on the books of the Commission, but the liability
(the bonds to construct the Convention Center) is on the books of the City. The issuance of the $65
million in bonds impacted the governmental funds unrestricted net assets but if the bonds were not
issued, the governmental funds unrestricted net assets at September 30, 2008 would have been a
- positive $28 million. '

In prior years, the City had not presented the asset resulting from the 1997 contribution of bond proceeds
to fund the actuarial accrued liability for the MRS plan. In 2007, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 27,
Accotinting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, the City calculated its net pension
obligation. In adopting GASB Statement No. 27, the City has increased net assets — beginning of year in
the government wide financial statements of governmental activities by $25.6 million to recognize the net
pension asset calculated under GASB Statement No. 27.

In fiscal year 2008, the City -discovered that certain capital assets had been incorrectly recorded in the

governmental funds. These accounting errors were corrected in 2008 by a prior period adjustment
amounting to $15.9 million decrease primarily in infrastructure.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Jackson uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Jackson’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Jackson’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Jackson's net assets by $6
million. This increase is primarily in the Water Sewer fund due to revenue sources received but not spent
on Water Sewer activities as well as the general expenses of the Water Sewer operations being less than

anticipated.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $56.3 million, a decrease of $26.4 million in comparison with the prior year.
Eighty-nine (89) percent of this total amount is $50 million of which $21 million is available for spending at
the government's discretion (unreserved fund balance) and $29 million is available for capital projects.
The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it
has already been committed: 1) to pay debt service ($2.4 million), 2) State tort claims ($2.7 million), or 3)
for other restricted purposes ($1.3 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Jackson. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $20.8 million, while total fund balance reached $24.8
million. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 23.0
percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 27.3 percent of that same
amount.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City of Jackson’s general fund increased by
$01104,842. The reduction in fund balances for the 1998 GO Bond ($590,308) and the 2003 GO Bond
($1,100,662) is the natural spend down of bond proceeds. The reduction in fund balance for the 2006 GO
Bond ($33,489,014) is for the construction of the Capital City Convention Center.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $2.4 million, all of which is reserved for the payment of
debt service.

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund at the end of the year amounted to
$80.7 million. The total growth in net assets for the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund was $4.6
million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $5.9 million and can be
briefly summarized as follows: :

$1.5 million increase for Transit appropriation

$1.2 millien increase in-medical-insurance claims- -

$1.3 million miscellaneous increases throughout ail city departments
$0.4 million increase in fuel costs

$0.2 million increase in utility costs

$0.9 million increase in public works equipment

$0.4 miflicn increase in workers compensation claims

Significant budgetary variances between the final amended budget and actual results are as follows:

« Actual personnel services for all city departments were $8.8 million less than the final budget.
Actual capital outlay for all city departments was $1.1 million less than the final budget.

+ Actual contractual services throughout all city departments was $4.6 million less than the final
budget.

e Actual miscellaneous charges throughout all city departments was $0.3 million less than the
final budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Jackson's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of September 30, 2008, amounts to $606 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, machinery and

9




CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges. The total increase in the City of Jackson's investment in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1% (a .009% change for governmental activities and a 1%
increase in business activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

. The increase in total net assets was the continued expenditure of prior bond issue proceeds
for expansion and replacement of infrastructure.

City of Jackson's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 7008 2007
Land $ 14,522 % 14 441 % 1,838 % 1,838 ] 16,300 % 16,279
Building & systems 60,541 50648 50,429 53,145 110,970 103,793
Machinery and equipment 8,313 13636 13,240 13,632 21,553 27,268
Infrastructure 131,208 157 935 159,237 168,449 290,445 326,384
Construcfion in progress 50,608 41,190 116,419 102,314 167,027 143,504
Total $ 265192 § 277850 $ 341,183 § 339,378 $ 608,355 $ 617,228

Additional information on the City of Jackson's capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 54-56 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson had total bonded debt
outstanding of $283 million. Of this amount, $121 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the City. The remainder of the City of Jackson's debt represents bonds secured solely by
specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Jackson's Ouistanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Other Loans
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities _ Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General obligation bonds $ 112,635 § 115500 - $ - $ 412,535 $ 115,500
Revenue bonds - - 161,345 167,670 161,345 167,670
Taxincrement bonds 2,270 210 - - 2,270 210
Special obligation bonds 6,430 12430 - - 5,430 12,430
Loans, notes and leases 15,154 16530 20,224 21,273 35,378 37,803
Total $ 136,389 $ 144670 $ 181,569 $ 188,843 $ 317,958 $ 333813

The City of Jackson’s total debt decreased by $15.7 million during the current fiscal year.

The bond ratings services from Standard & Poor's and Moody's establish that bonds marketed by the City
have favorable investment qualities. Presently, the city has the following ratings:

Mocdy's Standard & Poor's
Revenue A1 A
General Obligation Bonds Al AA-

Urban Renewal Revenue Bonds A2 A
10
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State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 15 percent
and 20 percent of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Jackson under
the 15% rule is $117 million in excess of the City of Jackson's outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the City of Jackson's long-term debt can be found in Note 4 on pages 60-70 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

«  Major revenues sources are expected to remain basically at existing levels with the exception
of property taxes which is expected to increase as a result of reappraisal.

+ Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Jackson’s budget for the 2009 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased $8.9 million.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Jackson's finances for all
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of
Administration, Office of the Director, P.Q. Box 17, Jackson, MS, 39205-0017.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Other receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Net pension assel
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investroents
Deferred charges
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Automotive and equipment
Infrastructure

Construction in Progress

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Acerued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Other liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net other posternployment benefits
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:

Debt service

Capital projects

Other purposes

Capital City Convention Center
Unrestricted

Total net assets

City of Jackson
Statement of Net Assets
As of September 30, 2008

Primary Government

Component Units

Capital City
Jackson Convention
Business-Type Redevelopment Center

Govermmental Activities Activities Fotal Authority Commission
$ 47,814,593 9,595,260 % 57,409,853 $ 2,880,909 % 4,461,738
6,874,707 10,503,989 17,378,696 - 500,525
114,265 17,183,452 17,290,717 - 2,685,620
75,044,652 505,898 75,550,550 564,897 221,653
8,626,503 2,385,213 11,011,716 - -
4,031,442 (4,031,442) - - -
1,300,583 2,022,484 3,323,067 - -
- - - 1,741 -
18,580,412 - 18,580,412 - -
- 37,295,333 37,295,333 97,909 -
- 25,389,841 25,389,841 - -

479,967 2,258,844 2,738,811 109,663

14,521,418 1,837,999 16,359,417 8,736,316 4,684,747
60,540,937 50,429,117 114,970,054 33,584,862 -
8,312,453 13,240,068 21,552,521 - 4,868
131,208,394 159,236,491 290,444,885 - -
50,608,592 116,419,610 167,028,202 - 53,233,287
428,058,918 444,272,157 872,331,075 45,976,297 65,792,438
7,283,953 2,797,404 10,081,357 301,206 2,641,063
609,767 219,022 828,789 164,456 -
66,991,857 - 66,991,857 - -
- 3,819,799 3,819,799 52,082 -
8,410,360 - 8,410,360 22,682 1,230
5,760,360 861,640 6,628,000 - -
17,288,000 7,381,352 24,669,352 1,465,006 -
133,099,511 177,472,848 316,572,359 14,364,377 400,130
239,449,808 192,552,065 432,601,873 16,369,803 3,042,428
197,359,224 156,309,085 353,068,309 26,989,397 57,522,772
1,751,096 3,819,799 5,570,895 - -
8,182,211 - 2,182,211 - -
2,146,599 - 2,746,599 - -
15,936,724 - 15,936,724 - 1,151,608
{37,366,744) 91,591,208 54,224,464 2,617,097 4,075,630
3 188,609,110 251,720,092 % 440,?;29,202 § 29,606,494  § 62,750,010

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2008

Amount reported for governmental activities m the statement
of net assets are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore are not reported in the funds '

Net pension assets recorded in governmental activities that are not a financial
resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Internal service fund is used to account for the group benefit plan.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are

included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets

Receivable recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide
statements but not on the fund statements

Revenues that were carned but unavailable to the city and recorded as unearned
m the fund statements

Net other postemployment benefit recorded in governmental activities that are

not a financial resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Bonds and loans payable, net of refunding gains, premium and discounts
Deferred bond issuance costs
Accrued interest on long-term debt
Capital leases
Annual and sick leave

Claims payable
Workers' Compensation Benefits

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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56,296,497

265,191,794

18,580,412

399,142

2,030,785

2,394,152

(5,766,360)

(126,794,001)
479,967
(609,767)
(13,027,261)
(3,604,555)
(2,728,926)
(4,232,769)

188,609,110
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City of Jackson
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $ (26,382,779

Governmental funds report capitzal outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period 3,902,489

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
Governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of the governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, |
discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred |
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items 15,377,311 |

Activities from debt related transactions

New capital lease proceeds reported in the fund statements {2,208,008)

Retirement of prior leases 3,193,786

Bond proceeds recorded in the fund statements (7.425,000) |
Premium on debt issuance (267,054) |
Bond issuance costs (209,854) |
Amortization of deferred bond issuance cost (17,141) i
Payment to escrow agent (124,305)

Decrease in net pension asset reported on the statement of activities that do not require current
financial resources and therefore not reported ag expenditures in the funds (3,573,588)

Increase in net other postemployment benefits liability reported on the statement of activities that
do not require current financial resources and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds (5,766,360)

Expenses reported on the statement of activities that do not require current financial resources
and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds 513,204

Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide statements but are not |
recognized on the fund statements - 1,429,904 |

|
Intemnal service fund net activity not reported on the governmental fund statement (289,678)
Change in the net assets of governmental activities $(21,847,133) |

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008 .
Variance with

Budget Amount Actual Final Budgei-
Original Final Amounts positive(negative)
Revennes: -
General property taxes
Current realty taxes 3 23,799,143 § 27.027.026 % 27027026 $ -
Current personal taxes 12,416,736 13,427,905 13,427,905 -
Ad valorem taxes on auiomobiles 6,443,053 7,122,533 7,122,533 -
Delinguent taxes 120,000 145,761 145,761 -
Interest on current taxes 300,000 556,441 556,441 -
Interest on delinquent taxes 240,000 361,772 361,772 -
Community improvement 127,000 125 404 127,339 1,935
Total general property taxes 43,445,932 48,766,842 48,768,777 1,935
Licenses and permits
Privilege licenses 350,250 363,283 363,607 324
Building permits 550,000 1,901,710 1,913,233 11,523
Adr conditioning and duct permits 30,000 77,847 79,698 1,251
Plumbing permits 50,000 106,563 110,642 4,079
Electric permits 140,000 256,427 264,594 8.167
Gas permits 70,000 71,904 73,089 1,185
Historic preservation application 1,000 4,059 4,059 -
Housing rehab permits 15,000 11,465 11,560 95
Landscape permits 2,000 3,067 3,067 -
Dance hall and other recreational fees 7,500 6,774 6,774 -
Landfill charges . 1,200,000 1,229,964 1,229.964 -
Taxicab lcense fees 2,000 1,318 1,373 55
Sign permits 33,000 43,250 43,655 405
Zoning permits 45,000 39,179 39,473 204
Combustible and flammable Hquid permits 9,500 5,075 5,125 50
Fireworks display permit 500 159 150 -
Adrcraft registration 4,000 5,957 5,957 -
Transit Merchanis-Peddlers License 6,000 4,100 4,100 -
Boarding, Lodging-Licenses 1,000 580 580 -
Adult entertainment Heense 32,000 27241 28,526 1,285
Special event fee 5,000 2,675 2,675 -
Fire inspection permit 7.000 6,710 6.870 160
Annual vehicle inspecton 500 - - -
Total licenses and permits 2,561,250 4169298 4,198,171 28,873

i8




City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actnal
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
Yariance with

Budget Amount Actual Final Badget-
Original Final Amounts positive(negative)
Revenues (Continued):
Intergovernmental Revenues:
State Grants and Shared Revenues:
Alcohol permits 5 300,000 § 300,000 $ 282,325 § (17,675)
Gasoline tax 31,147 31,147 31,145 ()]
Municipal revolving fund 96,040 96,040 96,040 -
State training academy 50,000 50,000 - (50,000)
State fire protection 871,941 871,041 954,301 82,360
Sales tax 35,743,470 33,546,027 35427935 (118,052
Bus & track privilege tax 500,000 500,600 535,194 35,194
Wireless radio communication program 200,000 200,600 270,447 - 70,447
Jackson Convention & Visttors 15,0600 15,600 5,392 {9,608
MS-Domestic Violence Grant 56,419 56,419 44,986 (11,433)
Homestead exemption 1,266,000 1,266,000 1,477,849 211,849
Total state grants shared revenues 39,130,017 38932574 36,125,614 193,040
Federal and State Grants and Shared Revenues:
HITDA Grant 69,000 69,000 104,227 35,227
COPS- Universal Hire 1,312,842 1,312,842 (982,117) (2,294,959
Dept of Justice-Weed & Seed 115,000 200,600 - {200,000y |
MDOT Summer Youth reimburgement 58,000 58,600 35047 (22,053) i
MDOT Litter Pick Up - - 14,213 14213 |
FEMA/MEMA Disaster - 105,680 208,190 102,510 |
Other shared revenue 50,000 50,000 88,192 38,192 ‘
Total federal and state shared revenues 1,604,842 1,795,522 {531,348} (2,326,870} |
County Revenues:
Pro rata road tax 920,000 920,000 925,830 5,830
Smith Robertson Museum - - 18,900 18,900
Smith-Wills Renovation - 11,660 11,660 -
Hinds County 65,000 65,000 11,613 (53,387)
Total county revenue 985,000 996,660 968,003 (28.657)
Total intergovernmental revenues 41,719,859 41,724,756 39,562,269 (2,162,487)

Fines and Forfeitures: |
Court & misdemeanor fines 1,700,000, 1,000,600 984,131 (15,869}
Vehicle parking fines 200,000 242 962 246,228 3,266 :
Moving traffic viclations 1,400,000 1,162,790 1,270,563 107,773 |
City court costs 25,000 22231 22,930 699 i
Bad check fee and warrant fee 177,000 186,023 191,192 5,169 ‘
Animal control citations 2,000 941 940 (1
Municipal court computer ' 20,000 19,183 19,875 692
Mumicipal court drivers impr fee 30,0600 27,662 29,067 1,405
Expungement fee 6,000 0,400 6,600 200
Jackson collection fee 100,000 98,740 102,423 3,683
Miscellaneous Court Docket fee 110,000 95,126 123,765 28,639
Dropped charge fee 5,000 3,925 4,075 150
Cash bond - clearing account T 30,000 45,100 71,422 26,322
Rearraignment fee 15,000 17,425 18,300 875
Daily storage fee-vehicle 42,500 53,445 54,275 830
Administrative fee - del cases . 140,000 287,124 204 5011 7,377
Parking - Boot fee 1,000 162 162 -

Contermnpt fee . 24,895 26,617 1,722
Computerized Crime prevention - 20,162 20,873 711
Trug court 500 1,799 1,799 -
Wrecker fees 150,000 109,825 112,305 . 2,480

Total fines and forfeitures 4,154,000 3,425,920 3,602,043 176,123




City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget Amount Actuai Final Budget-
Original Final Amounfs positive(negative)
Revenues (Continued):
Admissions, Fees, Rentals and Concessions:
Parking meters 3 125,000 §$ 125,000 $ 163,270 $ 38,270
Municipal Auditorinm:

Rentals 103,600 103,600 79,726 (23,874)

Congesstons 3,000 3,000 2,106 (894)
Local record fee 6,000 6,000 6,003 3
Pistol Range rent 500 500 454 (46)
Outdeor advertising 15,000 15,000 12,887 {2,113}
Fire Water flow test fee 1,250 1,250 1,860 550
Fire Reports 4,500 4,500 8,955 4455
Accident report fee 130,000 130,000 131,620 1,620
Background check fee 11,000 11,000 15,930 4,930
Bail bondsman applicant photo 400 400 240 (160)
Bail bondsman mng shot fee 200 200 423 223
Bail bondsman I3 card 300 360 120 (180)
Fingerprinting 20,000 20,000 15,260 (4,740)
Verification of records 40,000 40,000 32,569 (7.431)
Fire sprinkler plans review 4,000 4,000 4,222 222
Rents & Royalities 15,000 15,000 10,999 (4,010)
Art Gallery Donations 300 300 -

Telecommunication Franchise Agreement 200,000 200,000 80,601 (119,399)
Tower Rentals 1,702,500 2,470,018 2,471,951 1,933
Arts Center:

Admissions, rents and royalties 100 100 191 91

Community room rent 16,000 16,000 26,397 10,397

Concessions 500 500 255 (245)

Planetarium:

Admissions, Discovery Shop, cte. 92,300 92,300 90,010 (2,290)
Senior Centers Reservation Fee 2,500 5,000 3,286 (1,714)
Smith Robertson Museum:

Gift shop 2,500 2,500 1,857 {643)

Donations 100 500 1,240 740

Admissions, rental 6,500 6,100 4,452 {1,648)

Total admissions and rentals 2,503,050 3,273,068 3,166,815 {105,953}

Interest:
Eamned on investments 300,500 201,000 288,316 87,316
Earned on accounts 280,600 380,600 203,203 {177,397)
Total interest eamed 581,100 581,600 491,519 (90,081)
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City.of Jackson
General Fand
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Knded September 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts positive(negative)
Revenues (Continued):
Other Revennes;
Public utility 3 5,033,000 3 5,033,000 $ 5,109.358 § 76,358
Franchise cable television 1,395,000 1,395,000 1,477,055 82,055
Water Sewer Franchise Fee 922 645 022 645 830,598 (92,047)
Nuclear power plant 1,628,723 1,628,723 1,635,133 6,410
In-lieu-of property tax - - 9,612 9,612
Sale of cometery lots 12,500 12,500 30,550 18,050
Sale of fixed assets 301,000 301,000 461,199 160,199
Small animal control 3,000 3,000 8,765 5,765
Police-sale of weapons 3,000 3,000 1,815 (1.185)
Parking fee-City employees . 9,000 9,000 6,762 (2,238)
Police 10,500 83,743 267,016 183,273
Indirect cost 2,360,913 2,360,913 2,016,887 (344,026)
Street index books 50 50 1,228 1,178
Sale of land - . - 10,200 16,200
Sale of scrap metal 500 500 - {500)
Permit department 86,000 86,000 190,510 104,510
Rabies vaccination 900 900 - (900)
Plumbing exam 100 100 - (100)
Eletrical exam 300 300 75 (225)
Penalty on demo/grass/weeds 5,000 5,000 13,500 8,500
Cemeteries-openings/closings 25,000 25,000 47,527 22,527
Performance contract rebate - 46,000 42,485 2,485
Site plan review planoing 12,060 12,000 17,931 5,931
Construction plan review 2,000 2,000 3,558 1,558
Cafeteria plan-flexible spending 200,000 200,000 111,642 (88,358)
Administrative fee-payroft dedunctions 1,000 1,000 10,463 9,463
Sale of maps, plans, and specifications 3,500 3,500 3,842 342
Traffic 4,601 6,729 2,714 {4,015
Legal/City Clerk/Finance and Management 14,060 14,000 9,493 (4,507)
Telecommunications 160,100 160,100 192,868 32,768
Zoning-rear yard variance - 650 3,998 3,348
Fire Museum donations 1,060 6,386 5,975 “1
Fire Marshail donations - - 500 500
Sale of CAFR, Budgets & Directories 50 50 - (50)
1.D. Badge fee-city employee - - 555 555
Abstract fees 4,000 4.000 5,355 1,355
Settlement of insurance claims 10,000 317,107 106,646 (210,461)
Proceeds from assets and forfeitures 24,780 274,715 276,357 1,642
Total other revenues 12,234,162 12,912,611 12,912,172 (439)
Total revenues 107,199 353 114,854,095 112,701,766 (2,152,029)
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City of Jackson
General Fund
Staterent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fond Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget Amount Actuaal Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts positive(negative)
Expenditures:
Current Operations:
General Government
Administartion and Intra-governmental
Personnel services $ 9,110,555 $ 9022729 % 8270976 % 751,753
Supplies 968,098 452,499 205,744 246,755
Other services and charges 5,836,036 6,745,206 5,207,406 1,537,800
Capital outlay 1,320,576 1,351,903 671,531 680,372
Total Department of Adminstration 17,235,265 17,572,337 14,355,657 3,216,680
Personnel
Personnel services 1,139,071 1,147,350 963,761 183,589
Supplies 15,135 15,033 70,561 {55,526}
Other services and charges 1.013,7806 741,555 344,963 396,592
Capital Outlay 1,700 4375 2,365 2,010
Tofal Department of Personnel 2,169,686 1,908,315 1,381,650 526,665
Planning )
Personnel services 1,527,569 1,426,506 1,179,479 247,027
Supplies 63,463 75,163 55,108 20,055
Other services and charges 2,630,500 4,343,448 3,904,323 439,125
Capital Outlay 5,835 7.835 1,916 5,919
Total Department of Planning 4,227,367 5,852,952 5,140,826 712,126
Total General Government 23632318 25,333,604 20,878,133 4,455,471
Department of Human and Cultural Services
Health and Welfare
Personnel supplies 797,526 1,093,180 857,152 236,028
Supplies 80,359 36,741 19,61% 17,130
Other services and charges 1,348,864 613,133 544,819 68,314
Capital outlay 7,034 297,047 266,076 10,971
Total Health and Welfare 2.233,783 2,020,101 1,687,658 332,443
Culture and Recreation
Personnel services 1,017,476 710,483 591,673 118,810
Supplies 23,365 90,459 72,986 17,473
Other services and charges 1428312 1,430,226 1374218 56,008
Capital outlay 278,085 6,976 - 6,976
Total Culture and Recreation 2747238 2,238,144 2,038,877 199267
Total Department of Human and Cultural Services 4,981,021 4,258,245 3,726,535 331,710
Department of Public Safety
Personnel services 47,735,017 47,453,228 40,223.076 7,230,152
Supplies : 2,975,600 3,771,252 3,604,201 167,051
Other services and charges 5,254,688 5,733,989 5,018,675 715,314
Capital outlay 4338,518 4,622,643 4,220,298 402,345
Total Department of Public Safety 60,303,823 61,581,112 53,060,250 8,514,862
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City of Jackson
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Expenditures (Continued):
Department of Public Works
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total Department of Public Works

Current Operations
Miscellaneous
Other services and charges
Total Miscellaneous
Employse Benefits
Supplies
Other services and charges
Totdl Employee Benefits

Total expenditures
Excess{deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Tranfers out
Proceeds from long term debt
Total other financing sources(uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

The notes to the financial statcments are an integral part of this statement.

Variance with

Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounis positive(negative}
7,879,906 § 7.874,118 % 7,210,569 $ 663,549
1,183,035 1,359,075 1,310,085 48,990
2,608,986 2,544,886 2,181,310 363,576
101,121 1,036,177 244,813 791,364
11,773,048 12,814,256 10,946,777 1,867,479
700,709 1,307,954 410,332 897,622
700,709 1,307,954 410,332 897,622
60,000 66,050 58,524 7,526
1,972,599 2,028,320 1,706,335 321,985
2,032,599 2,094,370 1,764,859 329,511
103,423,518 107,389,541 90,792,886 16,596,655
3,775,835 7,464,554 21,908,880 (14,444,626)
(12,897,016) (15,012,106) (15,012,106) -
2,762,520 2,112,000 2,208,068 (96,068)
(10,134.496) (12,500,106) {12,804,038) {96,068)
{6,358,661) (5,435,552) 9,104,842 (14,540,694)
15,703,525 15,703,525 15,703,525 -
9,344364 § 10,267,973 $ 24,808,367 § (14,540,394)
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City of Jackson
Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actoals Amounts  positive(negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $14,887,248 $23,520,972 15,491,786 5 (8,029,186)
Interest 300 300 10,026 9,726
Other 192,258 192,258 252,244 59,986
Total revenues 15,079,806 23,713,530 15,754,056 (7,959.474)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Personnel Services ‘ 3,965,067 4,973,386 3,568,735 1,404,051
Supplies 1,328,584 1,239,834 870,837 368,997
Other Services and Charges 7,002,202 20,386,392 11,186,195 9,200,197
Capital Outlay 4,172,693 4,015,452 809,109 3,206,343
Total expenditures 16,468,546 30,615,064 16,434,876 14,180,188
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,388,740 (6,901,534} (680,820) (6,220,714}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in;
General Fund 1,071,219 1,104,148 834,242 {269,5006)
Proceeds from long-term debt - 5,337,397 - (5,337,397)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,071,219 6,441,545 834,242 (5,607,303)
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses (317,521) (459,989) 153,422 613,411
Fund balances at beginning of year ' 342,456 342,456 342,456 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 24,933 $ (117,533 495878 § 613,411

The notes to the {inancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson

Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

REVENUES
General property taxes
Current realty taxes
Current personal taxes
Delinguent taxes
_Automobile ad valoren taxes
Homestead exemption
Interest
Other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

General obligation bonds
Principal
Interest
Bank service charge

Tif 96 Metro Station Bond Funds
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of GO Bonds
Issuance of Tax Increment Bonds
Premium on GO bond issuance
Payments to escrow agent
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Budgeted Amounts
Variance
with Final
Budget-
Actual Positive
QOriginal Final Amounts {(Negative)}
$ 5712493 $ 2554269 $§ 2,700,225 § 145956
2,965,550 1,556,102 1,418,140 (137,962)
80,0600 80,000 34,725 (45,275)
1,356,119 711,591 835,515 123,924
324,000 324,000 148,255 (175,745)
25,000 25,000 64,711 39,711
4,315,581 4,316,582 3,091,707 {1,224,875)
14,778,743 9.567,544 8,293278 {1,274,266)
3,010,000 9,666,041 8,120,000 1,546,041
5,085,591 7,457,792 5,580,851 1,876,941
8,991 9,991 4,886 5,105
210,000 210,000 210,600 -
15,225 15,225 15,225 -
8,329,807 17,359,049 13,930,962 3,428,087
6,448,936 (7,791,505) (5,637,684) (2,153,821)
2,209,944 7,770,000 5,155,000 (2,615,000)
- - 179,538 179,538
- - 267,054 267,054
- - (124,305) 267,054
2,299,944 7,770,000 5,477,287 (2,292,713)
8,748,880 (21,505) (160,397) 138,892
2,521,260 2,521,260 2,521,260 -
$11270,140 $ 2499755 $ 2.360,863 § 138,892

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Improvement Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended Sepiember 30, 2008

REVENUES
General property taxes
Intergovernmental Revenue
Interest
Other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Personnel services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USLS)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from long term debt
Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of vear

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Actual Amounts positive (negative)
$ 1,670,000 $ 1,073,510 b 955,575 $ (117,935)
3,333,602 3,355,221 - (3,355,221)

- - 34,664 34,664

- - 51,991 51,991
4,403,602 4,428,731 1,042,230 (3,386,501)
- - 3,534 (3,534)

255,010 388,365 207,714 180,651

8,592,126 10,549,165 2,553,486 7,895,679

1,696 3,196 1,489 1,707

8,848,832 10,940,726 2,766,223 8,174,503
(4,445,230) {(6,511,995) (1,723,993) (4,788,002)
- 1,644,573 1,050,000 (594,573)

4435230 4,026,983 - 4,026,983

4,435,230 5,071,556 1,050,000 4,621,556
(10,000 (840,439) (673,993) {166,446)

3,828,009 3,828,099 3,828,099 -
$ 3,818,099 $ 2,987,660 $ 3,154,106 3 {166,446)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
1998 GO Bond Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actnal

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenue
Interest

Total revennes

EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 201,714 $ - % - $ -
- - 38,569 38,569
201,714 - 38,569 38,569
217 9,217 - 9,217
2,993,125 1,886,529 628,877 1,257,652
2,993 342 1,895,746 628,877 1,266,869
(2,791,628) (1,895,746) {590,308) 1,305,438
(2,791,628) (1,895,746) {590,308) 1,305,438
1,900,019 1,900,019 1,900,019 -
$ (891,609) $ 4273 $1309,711 § 1305438

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson

2003 GO Public Improvement Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2068

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenue
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions
Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
$ 1,95498 § 8765771 § 3,616,245 $ (5,149,526)
- - 6,926 6,926
200,000 200,000 227,882 27,882
2,154,986 8,965,771 3,851,053 (5,114,718)
36,434 41,434 4,702 36,732
40,000 40,000 - 40,000
10,632,794 17,756,974 4,947 013 12,809,961
10,709,228 17,838,408 4,951,715 12,886,693
{8,554,242) (8,872,637) (1,100,662) 7,771,975
(8,554,242) (8,872,637) (1,100,662) 7,771,975
7,859,512 7,859,512 7,859,512 -
$ (694,730) $(1,013,125) $ 6,758,850 $ 7,771,975

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

28



City of Jackson
2006 GO Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenue $ - $ - 8 - % -
Sale of Bonds 66,266,970 - - -
Interest - - 2,099,768 2,099,768
Total revenues 66,266,970 - 2,099,768 2,099 768
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Other services and charges 66,266,970 46,326,594 35,588,782 10,737,812
Total expenditures 66,266,970 46,326,594 35,588,782 10,737,812
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures - (46,326,594) (33,489.014) 12,837,580
Net change in fund balances - (46,326,594) (33,489,014} 12,837,580
Fund balances at beginning of year 49,425,738 49.425,738 49425738 -
Fund balances at end of year $49,425738 § 3,099,144 $£15,936,724 § 12,837,580

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowances

Intergovernmental receivables

Other receivables

Due from other funds

Restricted Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Investments
Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Deferred charges - bond costs,
net of amortization

Total Noncurrent Asscis

Capital Assets:

Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Land
Buildings

Water plant, distribution system and equipment

Automotive and other equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction in Progress
Net property, plant and equipment

Total Assets

City of Jackson

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2008
Water/Sewage Nonmajor
Disposal Enterprise Internal
System Sanitation Funds Totals Service Fund
$ 9235956 § 359304 % - % 9595260 § 1,205,308
13,476,871 3,700,581 - 17,183,452 2,687
- - 2,385,213 2,385,213 -
505,898 - - 505,898 -
269,334 - - 269,334 -
22,877,968 - - 22,877,968 -
2,022 484 - - 2,022 484 -
48,388,511 4,065,885 2,385,213 54,839,609 1,207,995
10,503,989 - - 10,503,989 -
14,417,365 - - 14,417,365 -
25,389,841 - - 25,389,841 -
2,258,844 - - 2,258,844 -
52,570,039 - - 52,570,039 -
1,387,999 - 450,000 1,837,999 -
117,608,687 68,042 1,681,851 119,358,580 -
262,433,366 - 864,534 263,297,900 -
10,116,364 2,220,763 13,080,637 25,417,764 -
391,546,416 2,288,805 16,077,022 409,912,243 -
(172,861,665) {1,332,684) {10,974,219) {185,168,568) -
218,684,751 956,121 5,102,803 224,743,675 -
116,405,810 - 13,800 116,419,610 -
335,090,561 956,121 5,116,603 341,163,285 -
$436,049,111  § 5,022,006 $ 7,501,816 $ 448,572,933 $ 1,207,995

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Liabilities and Fund Equity

Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets:

Accounts/claims payable
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Current portion of Long-Term Debt:
Lease obligations

State Department of Environmental Quality

Total Current Liabilities Payable

from Unrestricted Assets

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:

Revenue bonds
Accrued inferest payable
Total Current Liabilites Payable
from Restricted Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Post Employment Benefits accrual
Long-Term Debt
(less amounts classified as current Habilities):
Revenue bonds
(net of unamortized discount/premium)
Lease obligations
State Department of Environmental Quality
Total Long-Term Debt
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Invested in c.apitai assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Fotal liabilities and net assets

City of Jackson

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2008
Water/Sewage Nonmajor
Disposal Enterprise Internal
System Sanifation Funds Totals Service Fund
$ 2493907 § 213,775 § 89,722  § 2,797,404 $ 808,853
- 269,334 4,031,442 4,300,776 -
3,819,799 - - 3,819,799 -
619,750 14,075 131,390 765,215 -
1,511,137 - - 1,511,137 -
8,444,593 497,184 4,252,554 13,194,331 808,853
5,105,000 - - 5,105,000 -
219,022 - - 219,022 -
5,324,022 - - 5,324,022 -
13,768,615 497 184 4,252,554 18,518,353 808,853
861,640 - - 861,640 -
159,520,595 - - 159,526,595
631,947 30,363 287,585 949,895 -
16,996,358 - - 16,996,358 -
178,016,540 30,363 287,585 178,334,488 -
191,785,155 527,547 4,540,139 196,852,841 808,853
150,699,774 911,683 4,697,628 156,309,085 -
3,819,799 - - 3,819,799 -
89,744,383 3,582,776 (1,735,951) 91,591,208 309,142
244,263 956 4,494,459 2,961,677 251,720,092 399,142 =y
$ 436,049,111 $ 5022006 § 7,501,816 $ 448,572,933 $ 1,207,995

The notes in the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

As of September 30, 2608
Water/Sewage Nonmajor
Disposal Enterprise Internal
System Sanitation Funds Total Service Fund
Operating Revenues: ;
Sales to customers $ 47,468,036 §$ 11,981,522 $ 397269 § 59,846,827 $ - ‘
Contributions - - - - 4,262,229 }
Contributions - City Match - - - : 2,713,697 |
Other revenues 179,975 171,624 480,101 831,700 415,180
Total Operating Revenues 47,648,011 12,153,146 877,370 60,678,527 7,391,112
Operating Expenses: |
Personnel services 0,384,421 1,105,384 171,139 10,660,944 : ‘
Supplies 4,167,034 304,256 1,131,796 5,603,086 - |
Other services and charges 16,720,141 8,710,102 5,530,901 30,961,144 11,503,298
Depreciation 8,041,630 179,302 850,898 9,071,830 -
Total operating expenses 38,313,226 10,299,044 7,684,734 56,297,004 11,503,298
Operating income (loss) 9,334,785 1,854,102 {6,807,364) 4,381,523 (4,112,186) |
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenue 2,324,417 11,025 16,563 2,352,005 7,798
Interest and service charges on long-term
debt and capitalized lease obligations (6,751,843} - - {6,751,843) -
Gain on sale of fixed assets 55,090 811 - 55,901 -
Amortization of bond issuance cost (214,349) - - {214,349) - i
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (4,586,685) 11,836 16,563 {4,558,286) 7,798 ‘
Income (loss) before contributions :
and transfers 4,748,100 1,865,938 (6,790,801) {176,763) {(4,104,388) |
Capital contributions from grants - - 1,533,653 1,533,653 -
Transfers In: 1
General Fund - . 4,613,028 4,613,028 3,814,710 |
Enterprise Fund - - 98,990 98,996 -
Transfers Out:
Enterprise Fund (98,996) - - (98,996) -
Total Transfers In (Out) {98,996) - 4,712,024 4,613,028 3,814,710
Change in Net Assets 4,649,104 1,865,938 (545,124) 5,969,918 (289,678)
Total net assets - beginning 239,614,852 2,628,521 3,506,801 245,750,174 688,820 %
Total net assets - ending $ 244,263,956 $ 4,494,459 $ 2,961,677 $ 251,720,092 $ 399,142

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from other revenue
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net Cash provided by (used for)
Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activites

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sales of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital contributions
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided by (used for} capital and related

financing activities

Cash Flow Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities:
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities
Interest on investments
Net Cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

City of Jackson
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

As of September 30, 2008

Nonmajor

Water/Sewer Enterprise Internal Service

Disposal System Sanitation Funds Total Fund
3 41,535,168 $11,981,522 § 397,269 $53,913,959 % 6,975,926
1,067,219 {1,281,928) 440,397 225,688 936,674
(21,105,627) {9,499,160) (6,750,639)  (37,355,420) {11,346,899)
(8,522,781) {1,105,384) {171,139 (9,799,304) -
12,973,979 95,050 (6,084,112) 6,984,917 (3,434,299)
- - 4,712,024 4,712,024 3,814,710
(98,996) - - (98,996) -
(98,996) - 4,712,024 4,613,028 3,814,710
(10,064,771) (66,199) (1,336)  (10,132,306) -
55,090 811 - 55,901 -
1,052,043 44,420 - 1,096,463 -
(9,569,007) (92,362) {176,792) (9,838,251) -
- “ 1,533,653 1,533,653 -
{7,018,879) - - (7,018,879} -
(25,545,614) (113,330) 1,355,525 (24,303,419} -
(59,290,621) - - (59,290,621} -
71,919,255 - - 71,919,255 -
2,396,751 11,025 16,563 2,424,339 7,798
15,025,385 11,025 16,563 15,052,973 7,798
2,354,754 (7,255) - 2,347,499 388,209
44,176,535 366,559 - 44 543 094 817,099
3 46,531,289 § 359304 $ - $46,890,593 % 1,205,308

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2008
Nonmajor
‘Water/Sewer Enterprise Internal Service
Disposal System Sanitation Funds Total Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 9334785 $ 1,854,102  § (6,807,364) $ 4,381,523 3§ (4,112,186)
Depreciation Expense 8,041,630 179,302 850,898 9,071,830 -
Post employment benefits accrual 861,640 - - 861,640
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net (5,764,596) (1,453,702) - {7,218,298) 521,488
Increase (decrease) in inventories {107,043) - - {107,043) e
(Increase) decrease in other receivable 587,244 150 (39,704) 547,690 -
(Increase) decrease in deferred charges 214,349 - - 214,349 -
{(Increase) decrease in due to other funds - (300,000} (38,925) {338,925) -
Increase (decrease) in due from other funds 300,600 - - 300,000 -
Increase {(decrease) in accounts payable {576,945) (184,802) (49,017) (810,764) 156,399
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 55,254 - “ 55,254 -
Increase (decrease) in other liabilties 27,661 - - 27,661 -
Total adjustments 3,639,194 (1,759,052} 723,252 2,603,394 677,887
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 3 12,973,979  § 95,050 % (6,084,112) § 6984917 § (3,434,299)
Recap of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 9,235,956  $§ 359304 % - % 9595260 3% 1,205,308
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 37,295,333 - - 37,295,333 -
$ 46,531,280  § 359304 % - 546,890,593 3 1,205,308

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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CITY OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS |

FIDUCIARY FUNDS |
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 |
|
Trust Funds Agency Funds ;
|
|
Assets |
Cash and cash equivalents B 198,138 $ 9,916
- Investment at fair value:
Certificate of deposit 30,000 -
Total assets $ 228,138 $ 9916
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities: :
Payables to others $ 4,923 $ 9,916
Total liabilities 4923 $ 9,916
Net Assets:
Held in trust 223,215
Total net assets 223,215
Total iiabilitiés and net assets $ 228,138

. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. ;
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CITY OF JACKSON 1
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
Trust Funds
Additions:
Interest $ 4,980
Other additions 169,000 |
Total additions $ 173,980 |
Deductions: i
General government |
Trust funds $ 104,566
Total deductions 104,566
Change in Net Assets 69,414
Net assets at beginning of year 153,801
Net assets at end of year $ 223,215

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO THE
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Jackson, Mississippi {the City) is incorporated under the Laws of the State of Mississippi. The
City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with a full-time Mayor elected from the City at
large and seven part-time Council members (City Council) elected from wards. The City's major
cperations include police and fire protection, parks and recreation, public works, public transit system,
urban development and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates a water
and sewer system.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statemenis and Interpretations). Governments are alse required o follow the
proncuncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has the option to apply
FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City
has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the
City is discussed below.

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed potential component units for
which the City may or may not be financially accountable and as such, be included within the City's
financial statements. The component units discussed below are included because of the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the City. ,

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Using the criteria above, management has determined that the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA)
and the Capital City Convention Center Commission should be reported as discretely presented
component units of the City. The discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns
in the government-wide statements fo emphasize they are legally separate from the primary government.
The following is a summary of the City's discretely presented component uniis.

The Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA) was established in 1968 under Section 43-35-1 through 235
of the Mississippi Code of 1942, as annotated. in 1970, JRA became the Parking Autharity for the City
under the same statute. The Mayor of the City makes appointments fo a seven-member Board of
Commissioners for staggered five-year terms to oversee the operations of JRA. Members may be
removed from office for inefficiency, negiect of duty or misconduct in office. The City Council appropriates
the administrative operating budget and must review and approve any amendments or budgetary
adjustments. The City Council is responsible for designation of those urban renewal projects undertaken
by JRA. The City makes annual contributions necessary to pay a portion of JRA's urban renewal bonds
and has agreed to make payment of substantially all of the outstanding bonds. JRA operates on a
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type.
Complete financial statements for JRA may be obtained at its administrative office located at 218 South
President Street, Jackson, Mississippi 39201.

The Capital City Convention Center Commission, a non-profit corporation, was autherized to be created
by House Bill 1832 during the 2004 Regular Session of the Mississippi State Legislature. The entity is
governed by nine commissioners. The Mayor of the City appoints hotelfmotel members for initial terms of
one and three years, respectively, restaurant members for initial terms of two and four years, respectively.
The Mayor appoints two members representing the business community for initial terms of one and five
years, respectively. The Mayor appoints two members at large for initial terms of two and three years,
respectively. One member is appointed by the Governor of Mississippi for an initial term of four years.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

The City issued $65,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds for the development of the proposed
Convention Center. The Capital City Convention Center Commission has jurisdiction and authority over
all matters relating to the acquisition, construction, furnishing, equipping, erection, operation,
maintenance, and prometion of a convention center. The Commission submits its budget and certain
other planned actions to the City for comment prior to initiation. The Commission operates on a
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type.
Complete financial statements for the Capital City Convention Center Commission may be obtained at

P. O. Box 3563, Jackson, Mississippi 39207.

Related Organizations

The following four agencies are non-profit corporations established within the City of Jackson. The Mayor
appoints the board members of each respective agency as confirmed by the City Council. Each agency is
fiscally independent from the City of Jackson, issues its debt, approves its budgets, and sets its rates and
charges. The primary government has no authority to remove board members, designate management,
or approve or modify rates. The City of Jackson is not obligated in any manner for the debt issues of
these agencies. Financial statements for these agencies can be obtained af the following addresses:

Airport Authority Jackson Housing Authority
100 International Drive 2747 Livingston Road
Jackson, MS 39208 Jackson, MS 38213
Jackson Public School District Metro Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau
662 South President Street 921 North President Street
Jackson, MS 38201 Jackson, MS 39202

Joint Ventures

The Jackson/Hinds Library System (the System) operates under a joint agreement between the City
and Hinds County and is funded equally by the City and the County. The joint agreement was
effective October 1, 1986. All buildings used by the System within the City of Jackson are owned
and maintained by the City and, as such, have been included in the capital assets of governmental
activities. The Jackson/Hinds Library System's financial statements may be obtained by writing to
300 North State Street, Jackson, MS 39201.

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The City’s police and fire

“protection, parks and recreation, public works, and general administrative services are classified as
governmental activities. The City’s water, sewer, and public transit services are classified as business-type
activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns (a) are presented on the consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on the full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes afl long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt
and cbligations. The City’s net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted resources to
finance qualifying activities.
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Note 1 ~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the City's
functions and business-type activities (police, fire, public warks, etc.). The statement of activities
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to applicants who use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation)} by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function {police, fire,
public works, etc.) or a business-type activity. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. The net costs (by function or business-type
activities) are normally covered by general revenue (properly, sales or gas tax, infergovernmental
revenues, interest income, etc.).

The City does not allocate indirect cost. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund to
the other operating funds that is efiminated like a reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense in
the General Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance, personnel,
purchasing, legal, technology management, etc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the changes in the
City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities. Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, habilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and
expendifures/expenses. Major individual governmental funds are reporied as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reporied as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operafing revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's Proprietary Funds and of the City’s Internal Service Funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for Proprietary Funds and Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales
and services, direct administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds are used to report resources in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal
liabilities). So, agency funds cannot be said to have a measurement focus, however, they do use the
accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues fo be available if they are collected within 80 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City
receives cash.

The City reports the following major government funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the City’s prirnary operating fund. it accounts for all financial
transactions of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Federal Grant Fund — This fund is used to account for proceeds of various federal grant
programs.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the
subsequent disbursement of such resources to pay principal and interest on long-term debt of the
City (other than debt of the Enterprise Funds). Bond ordinances require the City to account for
debt service transactions in separate funds, restrict the flow of cash between such funds, and
comply with various other covenants. For financial statement reporiing, the varicus debt service
funds have been combined.

Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for revenues that are legally restricted for
improvements to City facilities.

1998 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$35,000,000 issued to finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, construction of
a youth detention center, and repairing buildings.

2003 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$20,000,000 issued to finance certain projecis including storm drainage systems, repairing and
the construction of municipal buildings, infrastructures, and other related improvements.

2006 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$65,000,000 issued to finance the acquisition, construction, equipping, and fumishing of a
convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention Center and other
authorized costs.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Waler/Sewage Disposal System Fund - This fund accounts for activities associated with the
provision of water, sewerage and water pollution control services to individuals, organizations and
other governmental units within and around the City.

Sanitation Fund — This fund accounts for activities associated with the City’s sanitation and
recycling service.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
Additicnally, the City reports the following fund fypes:

Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency fo other departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trusiee or agency capacity for others and
therefare are not available to support City programs. The Cily has three trust funds, the
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund, and the
Mausoleum Trust Fund. The function of the City's principal employee benefit trust fund, the
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, is discussed in Note 5.A.2. The function of the
Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund is to account for contributions from the public sector which is
held in trust for fire and police allowable claims. The function of the Mausoleum Trust Fund is to
maintain and upkeep the Henry Mausaoleum.

The purpose of the City's Agency Funds is to collect and remit to the related organizations the
property taxes collected and proceeds of a special sales tax received from the State. The reporting
focus is on nef assets and changes in net assets and are reported using accounting principles
similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No.
34 sets forth minimum criteria {percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of
either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.
The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements.

The City's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary funds financial statements. Because the
principal users of the infernal services are the City's governmental activities, the financial statements of
the internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental activities column when presented in the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is reported in the
appropriate functional activity (police, fire, public works, etc.).
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposit accounts, petty cash, and certificates of deposit with a
maturity date generally within 90 days of the date acquired by the City. Collateral as further discussed in
Note 4, is pledged by the various financial institutions to secure City funds.

2. Recelvables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
partion that is expected to be uncoliectible.

3. Ilnvestments

Investments are recorded at fair value with all investment income, including changes in the fair value of
invesiments, reported as revenue in the financial statements. Income from short-term interest bearing
securities is recognized as earned. Statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Government obligations,
U.8, Government agency obligations, State of Mississippi obligations, and obligations of a corporation of
the U.S. Government.

Securities traded in a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at
current exchange rates. Short-ferm investments are reported at fair value when published prices are
available, or at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. For individual investments
where no readily ascerfainable fair value exists, the City of Jackson, in consultation with its investment
advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s Proprietary Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their payment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in
separate bank accounts and trust accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.
Restricted amounts in governmental activities include amounts set aside by law for state fort claims and
amounts accumulated for general obligation bond debt service.

5. Inventories

Inventories are priced at cost using the weighted average method. Inventories are accounted for using
the consumption method and are not charged out until used. Inventories consist of major stores of
materials and supplies held at central locations. The user depariments and other funds of the City are
charged for the cost value of the items, as they are withdrawn from inventory.,

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair
market value at the date received. The City’s classes of capital assets and their capitalization ievels are:
land — cost or fair market value, buildings - $50,000, land improvements -  $25,000, machinery and
equipment - $500, infrastructure - $100,000, and construction in progress — based on the project’s class.
The cost of hormal maintenance and repair that do not add to the value of capital assets or materialty
extend their respective lives are not capitalized. Interest expenditures within governmental activities are
not capitalized.
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Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Land improvements 20
Heavy machinery and equipment 515
Computer equipment 3
Vehicles 3-10
Infrastructure 8-50

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets constructed with the proceeds of tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of
the borrowing until completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same
period.

The City has a collection of artwork presented for public exhibition and education that is being
preserved for future generations. The proceeds from the sales of any pieces of the cotllection are
used to purchase other acquisitions. The collection is not capitalized or depreciated as part of
capital assets.

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), trafiic
signals, etc.

7. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid personal leave and associated employee-related cost when earned
{or estimated to be earned) by employees up to 240 hours. For the Proprietary Funds and the
government-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following year.
In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item between the fund level
and government-wide presentation. The compensated absences liability is liquidated by the following
funds: general fund, special revenue, transportation, sanitation & water/sewer.

8. Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums and Issuance Costs

In the government funds, bond discounts, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as period costs
in the year of issue. Bond premiums and discounis are shown as an “Other Financing Sources/Uses”.

In the proprietary funds and government-wide financial statements, bond discounts, bond premiums and
issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the terms of the bonds outstanding method, which
approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and premiums are presented as a reduction
and increase, respectively, of the face amount of the revenue bond payable. Issuance costs are recorded
as other assets.
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9. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consglidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near fair market rates are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement AHl other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmentai or proprietary funds are netted as
part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

10. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are recognized at the levy date.
All property taxes are billed, collected and recognized as revenue within the same period for which they
are levied. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations are
reported as non-operating revenues. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expense result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the enterprise fund and of the government’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
In, applying GASBS No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the
recipient recognizes receivables and revenues when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as
advances by the provided and deferred revenue by the recipient.

11. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

12. Reserves and Designations

Portions of fund equity are segregated for fulure use and therefore, are not available for
future appropriations or expenditure. An arnount reserved for debt service in the proprietary funds
represents portions of fund equity that are required to be segregated in accordance with bond resolutions.
Amounts reserved for state tort claims represent amounts required by state law to be segregated for
these purposes. The unreserved designated fund balance of the Capital Projects Funds is appropriated
for expenditures in future years. The amount designated for contingencies represents an earmarking of
financial resources for the future use by the City to fund estimated loss contingencies.

13. Net Assets

Nef assets represent the difference between assets and liabiliies. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
assels are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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14. Pension Expenses

The City funds pension expenses as required by applicable statute. Two plans, funded from both City and
employee contributions are described in Note 5 Section F.

15. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

16. Future Effective Accounting Pronouncements

GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporling for Pollution Remediation
Obligations. This statement provides guidance on how to calculate and report the costs and obligations
associated with pollution cleanup efforts. The requirements of the new statement become effective for
fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007. This statement is not expected to apply to the City.

GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Infangible Assefs. This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets including
easements, water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. The requirements of
this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

GASB issued Statement No 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivafive Instruments. This
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. Earlier application is encouraged. The
guidance in this Statement will require governments to measure derivative instruments at fair value in their
economic resources measurement focus financial statements. The changes in fair value of hedging
derivative instruments do not affect investment revenue but are reported as deferrals. On the other hand,
the changes in fair value of investrment derivative instruments (which include ineffective hedging derivative
instruments) are reported as part of investment revenue in the current reporting period. Although
management has not evaluated the impact of this statement on the City's financial statements, given the
nature of the County’s involvement in interest rate swaps, the potential impact could be substantial. -

GASB issued Statement No 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010. Early implementation is encouraged.
The requirements in this Statement will change financial reporting by providing fund balance categories
“and classifications that are expected to be more easily understood. The fund balance disclosures will give
users information necessary o understand the processes under which constraints are imposed upon the
use of resources and how those constraints may be modified or eliminated. This statement is expected to
have a significant effect on how the City reports its fund balances.
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Note 2 — Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including
bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”
The details of this $150,517 difference are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Bonds payable $ 123,362
Less: Deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as
interest expense) 1,248
Less: lssuance premium 2,965
Less: Issuance discount (o be amortized as inferest expense) (781)
Deferred bond issuance cost {480)
Accrued interest payable 610
Capital leases payable 13,027
Claims and judgments 2,728
Compensated absences 3,605
Workers' Compensation Benefits 4,233

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance — tofal governmental funds to arrive at
net assets — governmental activities $ 150,517

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Internal service funds are used to account for the
group benefit plan. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.” The details of this $399 difference are as follows {in thousands of
doliars):

Net assets of the internal service funds $ 399

Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental funds to arrive at
net assets — governmental activities $ 399

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund batances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — fotal governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element
of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $3,902 difference are as follows (in thousands of
dollars):
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{Continued):

Capital outlay $ 14,071
Depreciation expense (10,168)

Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances — total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental aclivities $3,902

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The issuance of iong-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities.” The details of this $14,794 difference are as follows (in thousands of
dollars):

Principal repayments:

General obligation debt $8,120
Limited obligation debt 210
Special obligation debt 6,000
Other debi 464

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — fotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities $ 14,794

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The activities from debt related transactions include new
capital lease proceeds reporied in the fund statements and retirement of prior lease.” The details of this
$912 difference are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Debt issued or incurred:

Capital lease financing $ 2,208
Principal repayments:
Payment on capital lease (3,120)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — fotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities $ 912

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.” The details of this $927 difierence are as follows (in thousands of dollars):
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(Continued):

Compensated absences $ 6
Workers’ compensation benefits 223
Claims and judgments 233
Accrued interest (61)
Amortization of bond premium 408
Amortization of bond discounts (74)
Amortization of issuance costs 201
Amortization of deferred costs {17)

Net adjustment fo decrease nef changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities $ 927

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the |
government-wide statements but are not recognized on the fund statements.” The details of this $1,429 |
difference are as follows (in thousands of doflars): |

Property taxes receivable $ 1,266
Special assessments receivable 163

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 1,429

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Internal service funds are used by management to
charge the costs of fleet management and management information systems to individual funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.” The details
of this $290 difference are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Change in net assets of the internal service funds $ 290

Net adjustrnent to decrease net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in netf assets of governmental
activities $§ 29
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Note 3 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial

statements.

1. The Finance Division of the Department of Administration prepares estimates of
available revenue.

2. Department directors submit proposed expenditure budgets to the Finance Division of
the Department of Administration by June 1 each year.

3. The Finance Division of the Department of Administration reviews the expenditure
budgets, and the necessary revisions are communicated to department directors.

4. Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared
by July 1, and presented to the Mayor.

5.  The Mayor submits the proposed budget to the City Council by August 1. The final
budget is approved by September 15 and must be published in a local newspaper on or
before September 30.

6. The budget is formally amended in September each year or any time that budget
revisions through funds reallocation are necessary or a budget deficit is indicated.

7. The City prepares annual budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt

Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds (with the exception of the 1986 Industrial Park, the
1992 Special Assessment and the 1996 Metro Station Funds}), Enterprise Funds, Internal
Service Fund and Trust Funds {with the exception of the Charitable Trust Fire and Police
Fund). Budgets for the Enterprise Funds are prepared on a GAAP basis but exclude
depreciation and bad debt expense and include debt retirement payments. The General
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Internal
Service Fund and Trust Funds are prepared in accordance with GAAP. Budget and
actual comparisons are presented in the accompanying financial statements for all
governmental type funds for which a budget is adopted.

During the fiscal year, several adjustments are normally required to the adopted budget.
The approved budget may he amended as required in accordance with the following
protocol:

a. Revenues are reviewed at least quarterly, and the projections are adjusted if
warranted. These adjustments to expected revenues, if material, can precipitate
adjustments to the expenditure budget.

b. Adjustments to transfer approved expenditure budgets from one department to
another or to transfer from cone category o another within a depariment must be
approved by the City Council.

c. All new appropriations must be approved by the City Council and are normally
submitted by the Mayor's Office.

The legal level of control for all budgets adopted is at the category level by funds with
the exception of the General Fund, which is appropriated at the category level by
department.  Administrative control for all budgets is maintained through the
establishment of more detailed line-item budgets.
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Note 3 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued):

The Finance Division of the Depariment of Administration exercises budgetary
monitoring throughout the fiscal year. An adopted budget may not exceed its
appropriated level without City Council approval. The Finance Division of the
Department of Administration advises the Mayor whenever a requested expenditure will
exceed budgeted amounts. The City Council may approve expendifures in excess of
budgeted amounts in various funds or departments as appropriate, as long as total
annual expenditures do not exceed available resources. Adjustments in expenditure
rates, if necessary, are implemented by the City Council as required, so that the total

expenditures and resources will remain in balance throughout the year.

8. Budgeted expenditure or expense amounts and other uses as originally adopted were
amended by the City Council in September 2008 as provided by law, as follows (in

thousands of dollars}):

Originally

Adopted Budget as Increase
Budget Amended (Decrease)

General Fund $ 119,307 $125,188 $5,881
Special Revenue Funds 40,396 56,563 16,167
Debt Service Fund 14,800 17,359 2,559
Capital Projects Funds 80,190 66,126 (14,084)
Enterprise Funds 125,820 131,765 5,945
Internal Service Fund 11,067 11,201 134
$ 391,580 $ 408,202 $16,622

9. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end in all funds.

B. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The City has no deficit fund equity by individual fund as of September 30, 2008.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

1. Policies and Practices

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions are now held in the name of the State
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section
27-105-5, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through
a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public
funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. [n the event of failure of a financial
institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace
the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

2." Deposits — Primary government

At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $94,705,186 and the bank balances totaled
$99,364,402. Of the bank balances, $100,000 was insured by federal deposit insurance and
$09,264,402 was covered by pooled and/or pledged collateral, as allowed by the Mississippi Code.

3. Investments — Primary Government

As of September 30, 2008, the City had investments consisting of U.S. Agencies at a fotal fair value
of $42.768,537 with a total Portfolio Weighted Average maturity of less than one year.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. As a means of limiting its exposure to losses from rising interest
rates, the City’s investment policy imits investment maturities in its portfolio to no more than 12
months for U.S. Treasury obligations for all investments except bond funds. With respect to bond
funds, the City can invest in gbligations of U.S. federal agencies for no more than 18 months.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possessions of an outside party. Consistent with the City's investment policy, all
investments above are held by a counterparty and are not insured but are backed by the U. S.
government.

Following is a list of the City's eligible investments, which in accordance with State statute are
limited to the investment of funds in excess of sums required for immediate expenditure or current
obligations:
°  Certificates of deposit with municipal depositories approved annually by the State
Treasurer
°  Money market mutual funds where portfolios consist entirely of U. S. governmental
and/or federal agency securities
°  Bonds or direct obligations of the;
- United States of America
- State of Mississippi
- County or Municipality of Mississippi
- School Districts

State statute allows the investment of funds received from the sale of bonds, notes, or certificates
of indebtedness which are not immediately required for disbursement for the purpose issued, in
direct obligations issued by or guaranteed in full by the United States of America, or in certificates of
deposit with approved municipat depositories.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

4. Cash and Investments - Component Units

The component unit's policy is to invest available funds in the following types of investments: 1)
direct obligations of the U. S. of America, including such instruments as treasury bills, treasury
notes and treasury bonds; 2) obligations of U. S. Government agencies that are deliverable on the
Federal Reserve System; 3) Repurchase agreements in U. S. Government securities made with
dealers that report to and are regulated by the Federal Reserve Bank; 4) deposits with financial
institutions which are insured or are fully collateralized by qualifying securities.

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions is held in the name of the State
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section
27-105-5, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through
a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public
funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. [n the event of failure of a financial
institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace
the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of
September 30, 2008 all of the component unit’s cash deposits in excess of the amounts covered by the
FDIC were covered under the collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer.

Cash equivalents are reflected at cost, which approximates fair value. These cash equivalents
were uninsured, unregistered, and held by the counterparty brokerage firm. At September 30,
2008, cash equivalents of the component unit consisted of the following (amounts are expressed in
thousand dollars):

Jackson Redevelopment Authority
U. S. Treasury Bills:

Unrestricted $ 62
Restricted under bond agreements 1,118
$ 1,180

Capital City Convention Center Commission
Repurchase Agreements:
Unrestricted $ 501

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2008, for the primary government’s individual major funds and nonmajor,
internal service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible
accounts, are as follows (amounts are expressed in thousand dollars):

Debi Water and Improvermnent Fedaral 2003 Nonmajor and
General Service Sewer Sanitation Fund Grant G O Bond Cther Funds Tatat
Receivables:
Accounts receivable $ -3 - 3 13477 § 3,707 % - - 3 - % 12§ 17,296
Intergovernmental 186 - - - 630 5,133 2,668 2,385 11,012
Other 57,732 6,003 506 - 500 1 - 8,851 73,683
Gross receivables $57926 5 6083 § 13,983 $ 3,767 $ 1,430 §$ 5134 § 2,668 § 11,348 § 101,99

Receivables of Water and Sewer are reported net of uncoliectible amounts.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
B. RECEIVABLES (Continued):
1. Property taxes

Property taxes on real and personal property, exclusive of automobiles, attach as an
enforceable lien on the levy date or January 1 for the preceding calendar year. Hinds, Rankin and
Madison Counties bill and collect the real, personal and auto ad valorem taxes for the City of Jackson,
Jackson Municipal Separate School District and the Jackson/Hinds Library System. Automobile taxes
are remitted monthly and real and personal taxes are remitied on a weekly basis to the City of Jackson.
Hinds County remits directly to the Jackson Municipal Separate School District taxes collected for all
school funds except the Bond and Interest Fund in accordance with State law. Hinds County also
refnits to the City a pro rata share of road and bridge taxes collected by the County.

The taxes are due on or before February 1; however, installment payments can be made one-half of
balance due on February 1 and one-fourth each on May 1 and August 1.

Tax millage levies for 2007 were collected in the current fiscal year and statutory maximum millage
rates were as follows:

Fund Levy (in mills) Purpose Maximum
General Fund 44.72 General None
Parks and Recreation Fund 2.00 Recreation 2.00 mills
Debt Service Fund 4.47 Debt retirement None
Disability and Relief Fund 5.56 Retirement None
Total City of Jackson 58.75
Jackson/Hinds Library System 1.28 Public library None

Jackson Municipal Separate
School District:

District Supplement Levy 68.91 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement Levy 1.66 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement Bond 3.00 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement 1.42 Public schools None
74.99
Total mills 133.02

The City levies an assessment for the Landscape Improvement fund which consists of nine cents of
the gross square footage of land and building of property owners located in the downtown development
district.

The City is permitted fo levy taxes based on a percentage of up to 100% of fair value of property at the
millage indicated ahove., At the present time, the City levies taxes based on 10% of fair value for
homeowner-occupied real property, 15% of fair value for all other real and personal property, and 30%
of fair value for all motor vehicles and property owned by public service corporations. The Cily may
levy taxes as necessary to meet bonded debt retirement. Limitations are imposed on the amount of
bonded debt that may be issued based upon assessed valuation of properties.

Annual tax increases for all purposes except payment of general obligation bonds and interest are
limited by State law to 10% of the preceding year's receipts plus new construction.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
B. RECEIVABLES (Continued):

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.5% of collections to the City monthly.
Intergovernmental revenue of the General Fund includes $35,548,665 of sales tax revenue.

In accordance with the Local and Private Act, since January 1, 2005 the City has levied, assessed and
is collecting: (a) tax of 1% of the gross proceeds of sales of restaurants and of sales of foed and
beverages in the hotels and motels, within the City; (b) a tax of 3% of the gross proceeds of sales of
hotel and motel rooms and lodging within the City; and (c) a tax of 3% of gross proceeds of sales at the
Convention Center by caterers. The tax is primarily to be used for debt service payments on bonds
issued for the construction of a convention center.

Governmental funds reported deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds aiso
defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows:

Unearned

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) $ 145761
Delinquent property taxes receivable (debt service fund) 361,772
Special assessments not yet due (debt service fund) 163,065
Current year tax assessments {(all funds) 68,448,951
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements 429,525
Total unearned revenue for governmental funds § 69,549,074

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

1. Primary government capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2008, was as
follows (amounts are expressed in thousands):

Balance Balance
September September 30,
Governmental Activities: 30, 2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4441 § 101 $ 26 % 14,522
Construction in progress 40,370 10,238 - 50,608
Total capital assets not being depreciated 54,811 10,339 20 65,130
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 79,548 575 - 80,123
Infrastructure 214,444 - - 214,444
Automotive and equipment 69,468 3,349 (1,856) 70,961
Total capital assets being depreciated 363,460 3,924 (1,856) 365,528
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {18,085) (1,497) - (19,582)
Infrastructure (78,341) (4,895) - (83,236)
Automotive and equipment (60,556) (3,777) 1,685 (62,648)
Total accumulated depreciation (156,982) (10,169 1,685 (165,466)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 206,478 (6,245} (171) 200,062
Total governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 261,289 % 4094 % 191 $ 265,192
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued}):

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

Balance Balance
September September 30,
Business-Type Activities: 30, 2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Capital assefs not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,838 % -5 - 1,838
Construction in progress 102,314 14,105 - 116,419
Total capital assets not being depreciated 104,152 14,105 - 118,257
Capital aé’sets being depreciated:
Buildings 119,345 13 - 119,358
Infrastructure 263,298 - - 263,208
Automotive and equipment 24,748 1,337 {667) 25,418
Total capital assets being depreciated 407,391 1,350 {667) 408,074 o,
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {66,200) (2,730) - {68,930)
infrastructure {99,316) (4,744) - {104,060}
Automotive and equipment {11,247) {1,598) 867 {12,178}
Total accumulated depreciation (176,763) {9,072) 667 {185,168)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 230,628 (7,722) - 222 906
Total business-type activities capital assets, net
334,780 % 6,383 $ - 341,163

2. Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities
Business-Type Activities:
Water/Sewer
Sanitation
Non-major business — type activities

Total depreciation expense — business-type aclivities
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

3. Construction work in progress for the governmental activities of the primary government is
composed of the following:

Rernaining
Project Speni-to-date Commitment

Improvement Fund $ 9,999,034 $ 2,028,469

Community Development Block Grant 1,314,939 78,065

1982 Industrial Park Bond 189,686 -

1988 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 116,179 -

1984 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 10,000 -

1998 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 18,030,572 235,987

2003 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 15,015,855 6,564,939

2007 Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bond 2,077,735 -
Economic Development Initiative —

Economic Development 158,956 20,600

Traffic — Repair and Replacement 1,472,932 300,412

Drainage — Repair and Replacement 150,000 914

Housing Rehab 284 377 -

Resurfacing — Repair and ‘Replacement 1,777,684 505

Hawkins Field Industrial Development 9,643 -

Parks — Repair and Replacement - 28,161

Total $ 50,608,592 $ 9,258,052

4. Construction work in progress at September 30, 2008 for primary government enterprise funds
is composed of the following:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Water/Sewer Construction Fund $116.419.610 $13.136,015
Total §116,41 9,610 $13,136,015
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

5. A summary of changes in capital assets for component units is as follows: (amounts are
expressed in thousands)

Activity for the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for the year ended September 30, 2008, was as
follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, Septermnber 30,
Business-Type Activities: 2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4303 $ - $ - $ 4,303
Construction in progress 25 - - 25
Property held for sales 2,750 75 (250} 2,575
Property held for development 1,771 62 - 1,833
Total capital assets not being depreciated 8,849 137 (250} 8,736
Other capital assets:
Land improvements 29 - - 29
Buildings 49,592 21 (454) 49,159
Equipment and furmniture 1,288 - - 1,288
Total other capital assets 50,900 21 (454) 50,476
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 29) - - 29
Buildings (14,343) (1,234) - (15,577)
Equipment and furniture (1,283) (2) - (1,285)
Total capital assets being depreciated (15,655) (1,2386) - (16,891)
Total other capital assets, net 35,254 (1,215) (454} 33,585
Total capital assets, net $ 44103 $ (1,078) $ (704 $ 42,321
Depreciation expense was charged {o activities as follows:
Urban renewal projects $ 794,976
Rehabilitation loan services 1,778
Parking facilities 439,316
Total $1.236,070

Activity for the Capital City Convention Center Commission for the year ended September 30, 2008,
was as follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,

Business-Type Activities: 2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 4685 % - % - 3 4,685

Equipment - 5 - 5

Construction in progress 17,326 35,907 - 52,233
Total capital assets, net $ 22011 § 35912 § - % 57,923
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS:

individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances as of September 30, 2008 follows (in
thousands of dollars}:

Interfund Interfund

Receivables Payables

General Fund $4,231 $ -
Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund 269 -
Sanitation Fund - 269
Federal Grant - 200
- Nonmajor Proprietary Funds - 4,031
Total $ 4,500 $ 4,500

Summary of transfer in/transfer out within primary government (in thousands of dollars):

Transfer Transfer
In Out

General Fund $ - $15,012
Federal Grant Fund 834 -
Improvermnent Fund 1,050 -
Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund - 99
Sanitation Fund - -
2006 G O Bond - -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,700 -
Internal Service Fund 3,815 -
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 4,712 -
Total $15,111 $ 15,111

Interfund transfers at September 30, 2008 consist of the following (in thousands of dollars):

|

$ 834 From the General Fund to a Major Governmental Fund (Federal Grant Fund) to subsidize operations. i
: . |

1,050 From the General Fund fo a Major Governmental Fund (Improvement Fund) to subsidize operations. |

4,700 From the General Fund to Nonmajor Governmental Funds (Parks and Recreation and State Grant Funds) fo |

subsidize operations.

3,815 From the General Fund to Internal Service Fund to subsidize operations.
4,613 From the General Fund to Nonmajor Proprietary Funds (Transportation) to subsidize operations.

From the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund to Nonmajor Proprietary Funds {(Madison Sewage) to subsidize
99 operations. ‘
|

$ 15,111
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

E. CAPITAL LEASES:

The City leases properiy with varying terms and options. Most leases confain a clause that states that
the lease shall terminate in the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated. However, if
renewal is reasonably assured, leases are considered noncancellable leases for financial reporting
purposes.

The City has financed through lease agreements the acquisition of the data processing division
computer system, word-processing systems for the legal division, computerized records management
system and a computer-aided dispatch system for the fire and police departments, and various copying
arid duplicating equipment. In addition, tractors have been acquired for both the Water Maintenance
and the Engineering Maintenance divisions; golf carts have been acquired for the City's golf courses
and riding lawn mowers have been acquired for park maintenance. These lease agreements qualify as
capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of
future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception. Future minimum lease payments
under operating leases are disclosed in the following note. At September 30, 2008, there were assets
under capital lease totaling $18,891,615 for machinery and equipment. Future minimum lease
payments for capital leases are disclosed in Note 4 section G-8.

The City has reported the proceeds of capital leases related to its Proprietary Funds as inflows of cash
since the City receives cash advances from the lessors and purchases the related assets.

F. OPERATING LEASES:

The City is obligated under certain noncancellable leases for land and buildings with terms remaining
more than one year that are classified as operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to
property rights; therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the City's account
groups. Total lease expenditures for the rental of all land and buildings under operating leases for the
year ended September 30, 2008, amounted to $659,109. The following is a schedule by years of
future minimum lease payments required under the noncancellable land and building operating leases
as of September 30, 2008, (in thousands of dollars):

Fiscal Year ) Amount
2009 $ 469
2010 469
2011 471
2012 405
2013 188
2014 and thereafter ’ 2,768
Total 4770

The total rental expenditures for all operating leases of the City for the year ended September 30, 2008
totaled to $1,216,682. There were no subleases or contingent rentals associated with the operating
leases.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT:

1. General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital faciliies. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and
proprietary activities. These bonds therefore are reported in the proprietary funds if they are to be
repaid from proprietary revenues.

The City issued $20 million of general obligation bonds in January 2003 to provide funds for the costs
of: (A} erecting, repairing, improving, and equipping municipal buildings, (B} improving streets, (C)
traffic signals, (D) drainage improvements.

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $20,960,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an
average interest rate of 4.26 percent to advance refund $20,710,000 of outstanding General Obligation
Bonds, Series 1998 with an average interest rate of 5.05. The net procesds of $21,904,652 (after
payment of $343,777 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) were used fo purchase
U. 8. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for all future debt service payments for the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998,
As a result, the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the government-wide statement of net assets. A
portion ($7,490,000) of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 was not refunded.

The advance refunding resulied in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $1,401,036. This difference is being charged to operations through the year
2017. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next
12 years by $816,595 and to obtfain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old
and new debt service payments) of $861,719.

On November 8, 2006, the City issued $65,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds to provide funds (a) to
purchase the City Bond to provide funds to the City in order to finance the acquisition, construction,
equipping, and furnishing of a convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention
Center and for other authorized purposes under the Act (the “Construction Project”), and (b) to pay the
Costs of Issuance of the Series 2006 Bonds and the City Bond, including the cost of the premium for
the Bond Insurance Policy.

On May 1, 2008, the City issued $5,155,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an average
interest rate of 4.40 percent to refund $5,110,000 of outstanding General Obligations Refunding Bonds,
Series 2002 with an average interest rate of 4.57. The net proceeds of $5,155,000 (after payment of
$194,550 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) were used to pay the final debt
service payment for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2002. As a result, the General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liabitity for
those bonds has been removed from the government-wide statement of net assets.

At September 30, 2008, general obligation bonds amounting to $19,250,000 were considered tc be fully
defeased but were still outstanding.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

G. LONG-TERM DEBT:

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. These
bonds generally are issued as serial bonds in denominations of $5,000 with principal maturing annually
and interest due at various semi-annual dates. General obligation bonds currently outstanding at
September 30, 2008, were as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Final
Date of interest Maturity
Obligation Rate Date Issued Qutstanding

General Obligation Bonds:

Refunding Bonds, Series 1998 06/16/98 3.75-4.85% 07/01/14 5,490 2,695

General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 10/01/98 4.00-5.25% 10/01/18 35,000 3,450

MS Development Bank GO Bonds, Series 2003 01/05/03 2.00-5.25% 03/01/23 20,000 16,660

General Obligations Bonds, Refunding 2005 08/04/05 3.00-5.00% 10/0117 20,960 19,575

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 11/08/06 3.60-5.00% 03/01/36 65,000 65,000
General Obligation Bonds, Refunding 2008 05/01/08 3.00-5.00% 05/01/13 5155 5,155 |

Total General Obligation Bonds § 112535 |

2. Revenue Bonds

On October 22, 2004, the City issued $78,085,000 of Water/Sewer System Revenue and Revenue i
Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 4.53 percent to provide construction funding of :
$57,985,452 and to advance refund $5,030,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, ‘
Series 1999 with an average interest rate of 6.38 percent and to advance refund $5,895,000 of
outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 with an average interest rate of 3.71.
The net proceeds of $11,567,152 (after payment of $210,259 in underwriting fees, insurance and other
issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited |
in an irrevocable frust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the |
portions of the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 and the Water/Sewer System
Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 that were refunded. As a result, the portion of the Water/Sewer System .
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 and the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 that were |
refunded are considered fo be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the
Water/Sewer Proprietary Fund.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $642,152. This difference is being charged to operations through the year |
2034. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the
next 6 years by $9,212 277 which resulted in an economic gain {difference between the present values
of the old debt and the new debt service payments) of $209,734.

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $27,180,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds
with an average interest rate of 4.32 percent to advance refund $25,800,000 of outstanding
Water/Sewer Systern Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 with an average interest rate of 5.21. The net
proceeds of $27,758,429 (after payment of $496,236 in underwriting fees, insurance and other
issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments for the
Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999. As a result, the Water/Sewer System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been
removed from the Water/Sewer Proprietary Fund. A portion ($5,085,000) of the Water/Sewer System
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 was not refunded. The advance refunding resulted in a difference
between the reacquisition price and the net camrying amount of the old debt of $2,785,028. This
difference is being charged to operations through the year 2024. The City completed the advance
refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 19 years by $1,057,504 and to obtain
an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old debt and the new debt service
payments) of $1,383,192.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Revenue bonds outstanding, at September 30, 2008, were as follows (in thousands of dollars).

Final
Date of Interest Maturlty
Revenue Bonds: Obligation Rate Date Issued Quistanding
Enterprise Funds:
Combined Water/Sewer
System Bonds 07/07/99 5.00-8.75% 09/30/09 35,000 3 55
Combined Water/Sewer
System Bonds .
Series 2002 09/01/02 3.00-5.50% 09/01/32 50,000 . 42,355
- Water/Sewer Revenue
Refunding 2003 02/15/03 4,00-5.25% 09/01/11 40,520 14,080
Water/Sewer Revenue
Refunding 2004 10/22/04 3.00-5.00% 09/01/34 78,085 77,675
Water/Sewer Revenue
Refunding 2005 07/01/05 3.00-5.00% 09/01/24 27,180 27,180
Total Revenue Bonds § 161,345

At September 30, 2008, revenue bonds amounting to $29,060,000 were considered to be fully defeased
but were still cutstanding.

3. Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bonds

The City issued $2.270 million of tax increment limited obligation bonds in December 2007 to provide
funds for the costs of constructing certain infrastructure improvements, site development and or site
preparation in connection with the development and construction of a redevelopment project located
within the City. The City entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Hinds County,
Mississippi, to provide the pledge of certain ad valorem tax revenues for the payment of the principal
and interest on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are not a general obligation of the City. Limited
obligation bonds outstanding at September 30, 2008, are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Final
Date of Interest Maturity
Limited Obligation Bonds: Obligation Rate Date Issued Qutstanding
General Long-Term Debt:
Tax Increment Financing
Bonds, 2007 12128107 4.47% 03/01/2020 2,270 2270
Total Limited Obligation Bonds $2.270

4. Special Obligation Bonds

The City issued $49.790 million of special obligation bonds in October 1997 to provide funds to make a
loan to the Cily, the proceeds of which loan was used by the City to fund a portion of the City's
unfunded actuarial accrued liability {(UAAL) in the Cily’s Disability and Relief Retirement System.
Special obligation bonds outstanding at September 30, 2008, are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Date of Interest Maturity
Special Obligation Bonds: Obligation Rate Date Issued _OQutstanding
General long-term debt:
MS Development Bank Taxable
Special Obligation Bonds,
Series 1997 10/15/97 5.75-6.60% 7/01/2009 $49,790 3 6,430
Total Special Cbligation Bonds $ 65430
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):
5. Jackson Redevelopment Authority

Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes

Urban renewal bonds and notes are issued to provide funds for various rehabilitation projects. The
urban renewal bonds outstanding and net of unamortized bond discount of $70,269 at September 30,

2008, were as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Date of
Obligation
Urban Renewal Bonds:
Enterprise Funds:
Urban Renewal Ceniral
Business District, 1986-A 08/01/86
trban Renewal Revenue
Bonds, Series 1997-A 10/01/97
Urban Renewal Central
Business District, 1993-A 09/01/08
Urban Renewal Central
Business District, 1598-B 09/01/98
Urban Renewal Central
Business District, 1998-C 08/01/98
Urban Renewal Bonds
Jackson Mall Area Project, 1998-A 11/01/98
Urban Renewal Bond
Central Business District, 2000-A 11/01/00
Urban Renewal Bond
Central Business District
2008-A-1 10/01/06

Total Urban Renewa! Bonds and Notes
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Interest
Rate

7.20-10.25%
4.60-5.00%
4.50-6.375%
6.50-8.50%
6.50-8.50%
4.10-5.70%

5.00-7.00%

3.75%

Final
Maturity

Date

08/01/09
1/8113
09/01/23
09/01/23
09/01/18
11/0113

11/01/25

10/61/10

Issued OCutstanding
$ 1,040 $ 95
12,270 4,494
2,825 2,075
1,175 930
1,800 1,526
650 315
2,250 1,945
4,450 4,450
$15,830
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

6. A summary of long-term debt transactions for the primary government and for the
component unit for the year ended September 30, 2008, was as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Beginning Ending Due Within
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Bonds and loans payable:
General obligation bonds $ 115,500 § 5155 § 8120 % 112535 $§ 4135
Limited obligation bonds 210 2,270 210 2,270 130
Special obligation bonds 12,430 - 6,000 6,430 6,430
State issued bonds 1,141 - 285 856 285
State revolving loan MDA 568 - 34 534 36
. Miss. Development Bank Loan 808 - 71 737 74
Loss deferred amounts:
For issuance discount (855} - (74) (781) -
On refunding 1,239 210 201 1,248 -
For issuance premium 3,104 267 406 2,965 -
Total bonds payable 134,145 7,902 15,253 126,794 11,090
Capital leases 13,939 2,208 3,120 13,027 2,980
Claims and judgments 2,962 167 401 2,728 630
Workers’ Compensation Benefits 4,456 1,765 1,988 4,233 2,440
Compensated ahsences 3,611 121 127 3.605 148
24,968 4,261 5,836 23,593 6,198
Total Governmental Activity $ 159,113 § 12,163 $ 20889 $ 150387 17,288
Business-fype activities:
Bonds and loans payable:
Revenue bonds $ 167,670 $ - % 6,326 $§ 161,345 $ 5,105
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums 5,854 - 650 5,204 -
On refunding {2,133) - {214) (1,919) -
Total bonds payable 171,391 - 6,761 164,630 5,105
Capital leases 2,268 250 802 1,716 765
State Revolving Loan (DEQ) 19,005 908 1,405 18,508 1,511
21,273 1,158 2,207 20,224 2,276
Total Business-fype activities $ 192,664 $% 1,158 % 8,968 $ 184,854 § 7,381
Component Unit — Jackson Redevelopment Authority
- Urban Renewal bonds $ 28,750 § - % 17625 §% 11125 % 1,465
Urban Renewal notes 4,450 ‘ - - 4,450 -
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums 370 - 55 315 -
On refunding {95) - {34) {61) -
Component Unit — Capital City Convention Center Commission
Promissory Note 400 - - 400 -
Total Component Unit $ 33875 § - 3 17646 $ 16,229 % 1,465
Total Long-Term Debt $ 385652 % 13,321 § 47503 $ 351470 % 26,134
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on ali funds (Continued):

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

7. The City's legal debt margin for the issuance of general obligation bonds was $116,718,415 at
September 30, 2008.

8. Annual Maturities Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all iong-term debts outstanding, net of unamortized bond discount

of.$70,269 for the component unit as of September 30, 2008, including interest, by source of retirement
are as follows (in thousands of dollars}):

Debt Service Fund {Special Tax Levy)

General Obligation Bonds

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total
2009 $ 5,070 $ 4135 $ 9,205
2010 5,055 4,260 9,315
2011 5,951 4,440 10,391
2012 : 4719 5,055 9,774
2013 4,504 5,375 9,879
2014 — 2018 18,704 23,710 42,414
2019 -2023 13,882 15,840 29,722
2024 — 2028 10,415 13,675 24,090
2029 - 2033 6,580 20,015 26,595
2034 — 2038 1,241 16,030 17,271

Total $ 76,121 $112,635 $ 188,656

65



CITY OF JACKSON
MNotes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Limited Special
Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds
Fiscal Year Interest Principal Interest Principal Total
2009 $ 98 $ 130 $ 424 $ 6,430 $ 16,287
2010 93 140 - - 9,548
2011 86 150 _ - - 10,627
2012 79 160 - - 10,013
2013 72 170 - - 10,121
2014 -2018 230 1,030 - - 43,674
2019 - 2023 22 490 - - 30,234
2024 — 2028 - - - - 24,090
2029 - 2033 - - - - 26,595
2034 - 2038 - - - - 17,271
Total $ 680 $ 2,270 $ 424 $ 6,430 $198,460

General Fund {General Fund Revenues)

Jackson Redevelopment Obligation Under Capital
Authority Bonds | eases
Fiscal Year Interest Principal interest Principal Total
2009 $ 198 $ 1050 $ 503 $ 2980 $ 4731
2010 150 960 388 2,294 3,792
2011 102 1,005 295 1,989 3,391
2012 51 1,080 219 1,269 3,001
2013 12 480 167 1,320 1,487
2014 - 2018 - - 328 2,903 3,231
2019 — 2023 - - 19 272 291

Total $ 513 $ 4,555 $ 1,919 $ 13,027 $20,014

The City has uncondifionally and frrevocably agreed to grant and contribute to the Jackson Redevelopment
Authority from the General Fund of the City sums sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds
issued by the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for urban renewal purposes, as the same shall mature and
become due. The City has designated proceeds from Community Development Block Grants to service
approximately 39% of the Jackson Redevelopment Authority bond requirements. Principal and interest
maturities for 2008 were paid by contributions from the General Fund of $1,353,732.
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Enterprise Funds - Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund (Water/Sewer Revenue)

Fiscal Year

2009
2010
201
2012
2013

2014 - 2018
20192023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2033
2034 — 2038

Total

Fiscal Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014 - 2018

Total

Fiscal Year

Revenue Bonds

2014 ~ 2018
2019 - 2023
2024 — 2028
2029 — 2033
2034 - 2038

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Total

Interest Principal
$ 7.898 $ 5,105
7,617 6,910
7,284 6,085
6,996 4,245
6,818 4,425
30,899 25,310
24,083 32,115
15,985 31,175
7,870 37,015
428 8,960
$.115.878 $ 161,345
Obligations Under
Capital Lease
Interest Principal
$ 61 $ 765
31 700
8 216
1 35
$ 101 $ 1,716
State Revolving Loan
Interest Principal

$ 621 $ 1,511

554 1,569

502 1,629

440 1,692

374 1,757

1,047 6,425

273 3,157

41 768

$ 3,852 $ 18,508
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Total

$ 15,061
17,381
15,724
13,409
13,374
63,681
59,628
47,969
44,885

9,388

$301,400
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

G. LdNG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Jackson Redevelopment Authority (Urban Renewal Project Revenues)
Jackson Redevelopment Authority

Notes Payable, Urban Renewal ;
Notes and Bonds |

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total

2009 $ 538 $ 415 $ 953 1
2010 429 4,795 5,224
2011 327 315 642

2012 295 214 509

2013 298 895 1,193

2014 —- 2018 1,070 2,235 3,305

2019 — 2023 458 1,930 2,388

2024 — 2028 41 475 516

2029 - 2033 - - -

Total $ 3456 $ 11,274 $14.730

There are a number of requirements contained in various revenue bond ordinances. The City is in
compliance with all significant requirements.

9. Annual Maturities Requirements

The annual requirements io amortize all debt outstanding for the City and the component unit as of
September 30, 2008, including interest of $70,269 for the component unit are as follows (in thousands of
doliars):

|

Jackson 3

City of Redevelopment 5

Fiscal Year Jackson Authority
2009 $ 35,731 $ 2,201
2010 29,611 6,334 ‘
2011 28,635 1,749
2012 26,513 1,620
2013 24,982 1,685
2014 and thereafter . 370,942 6,209 ;
Total $516.414 $ 19,798

|
|
|
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):
10. Industrial Revenue Bonds

Long-term debt does not include amounts for industrial Revenue Bonds issued under authority of Section
57-3-1 through Section 57-3-33 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as annotated. Industrial Revenue Bonds
are issued to provide funds for direct financing leases to aid industries which manufacture, process, or
assemble agricultural or manufactured products or any industry engaged in storing or warehousing
products of agriculture, mining, or industry. These leases are administered by trustees with terms that
provide for transfer of title of property after all bonds are paid in full.

Bonds issued under provisions of the above-mentioned law do not constitute an indebtedness of the
municipality within the meaning of any state constitutional provision or limitation, or never give rise to the
pecuniary liability of the municipality or a charge against its general credit or taxing powers, and such fact
is plainly stated in the face of the bonds. The City has $3,650,000 of the obligations outstanding as of
September 30, 2008.

Industrial
Revenue Bonds
Fiscal Year interest Principal Total
2009 1,280 - 1,280
2010 1,280 3,650 4,930
Total $ 2560 3,650 $6.210

11. Interest Rate Swap

On March 31, 2004, the City and the Mississippi Development Bank (collectively “the City") executed a
confirmation with RFPC, LLC (a subsidiary of Rice Financial Products Company) (the “2004 Swap
Counterparty”), in connection with the execution of an Interest Rate Swap Agreement (the “2004 Swap
Agreement”) in order fo reduce the debt service costs associated with certain outstanding obligations of
the City. The swap was done in conjunction with the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation
Bonds Series 2002 {Jackson, Mississippi Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project) issued to fund
certain water and sewer improvements for the City. The notional amount of the swap is $49,105,000. The
City received a savings pre-payment of $236,349 from the 2004 Swap Counterparty.

Under the 2004 Swap Agreement the City receives a fixed rate from the 2004 Swap Counterparty, and in
return pays a fixed rate less an Adjustment Factor. The Adjustment Factor exposes the City to changes in
the ratio between the tax-exempt BMA Index and LIBOR. Payments on the swap are exchanged
semiannually. The swap became effective on April 1, 2005 and will terminate on April 1, 2024. An early
termination of the swap transaction may result in the City making or receiving a termination payment
based on the prevailing market interest rates at the time of such termination. As of September 30, 2008,
the fair value of the transaction was a liability of ($3,911,342) for the City, which is not recorded, in the
financial statements.
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued):

Risks Associated with the 2004 Swap Agreement

Credit Risk — The City's swap relies on the performance of the 2004 Swap Counterparty. The City is
exposed to the risk that the 2004 Swap Counterparty is unable to fulfill its obligations to the GCity. The
obligations of the 2004 Swap Counterparty to the City are guaranteed by a third party guarantor that
maintains credit ratings of Aaa/AAA/AAA by Moedy's Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch,
respectively.

Basis Risk — The City pays fixed rates on the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds
Series 2002 (Jackson, Mississippi Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project).

Interest Rate Risk — The City is exposed to changes in relationships between tax-exempt and taxable
interest rates that may be affected by changes in the marginal tax rate, the elimination of tax preferences
or other major changes to current tax law including, but not limited to, implementation of a flat tax or value-
added tax.

Termination Risk —~ The 2004 Swap Agreement does not contain any extraordinary fermination events or
triggers that would expose the City to significant termination risk. if the 2004 Swap Counterparty fails to
meet its obligations o the City, these obligations will be met by a third party guarantor that maintains credit
ratings of Aaa/AAAIAAA by Moady's Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch, respectively. If the
third party guarantor suffers a loss of creditworthiness, the 2004 Swap Counterparty shall find an
acceptable replacement guarantor. If such replacement guarantor is not available or if the City fails to
meet ifs obligations to the 2004 Swap Counterparty, the termination provisions in the 2004 Swap
Agreement will apply. The City may be liable for a payment equal fo the fair market value of the swap if a
termination occurs prior {o April 1, 2024 and that fair market value is negative.

Note 5 — Other Information
A. RISK MANAGEMENT

1. Workers Compensation Benefiis

The City maintains a self-funded workers compensation plan accounted for in the General Fund.
Commercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from excess losses greater than $1,000,000 per
individual claim for police and fire employees. Commercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from
excess losses greater than $400,000 per individual claim for all other employees. Benefits paid fo
employees during fiscal year 2008 were $1,764,859,

- Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined based on observed patterns of claims
payments and case reserves development. Liabilities are based on the ultimate costs of setiling claims,
including inflation and other factors, and includes provisions for estimated claims adjustment expenses.

2. Unemployment Benefits

The City also maintains an Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund (Employee Benefit Trust Fund)
established pursuant to state law. In addition to funding all valid claims, the City is required to maintain
the balance in the fund at not less than 2% of the first $7,000 paid each employee during the preceding
year. As of September 30, 2008, the required amounts were funded. Claims totaled $104,565 during
fiscal year 2008. Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are based on patterns of claims payments.

70




CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

Note 5 — Other Information (Continued):
A. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued):

3. Group Benefits

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees’ Group Benefit Fund {Internal Service Fund) to account for
the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of Jackson and employees to be used
to fund future liabilities and current payment of employer medical claims and related administration
expenditures of the City's group benefit plan. Revenues totaled $7,391,112 and employee benefit costs
were $11,053,971 during fiscal year 2008. Claims incurred but not reporied at September 30, 2008, in the
Employees’ Group Benefit Fund are provided for in the fund balance of that fund based primarily upon an
actuary’s estimate.

4. Tort Liability

In compliance with the Tort Claims Act, Chapter 46 of Title 11 and as amended by the 1993 Legislature,
Section 11-46-17(3) requires all municipalities from and after October 1, 1983, to obtain such policies of
insurance, establish self-insurance reserves, or provide a combination of insurance and reserves
necessary to cover all risks of claims and suits for which the City of Jackson may be liable under the Tort
Claims Act.

In order to assure compliance with the Tort Claims Act, House Bill 417 established the Mississippi Tort
Claims Board. Municipalities are required to submit plans of insurance, self-insurance and or reserves to
the Tort Claims Board for approval.

Municipalities may comply with the requirements of the Tort Claims Act by one of the following methods:
{1) Purchase of liability insurance, (2) Pooling of two or more municipalities or other political subdivision to
purchase liability insurance or o self insure, (3) Self-insure with the establishment of a self-insurance
reserve fund.

The City of Jackson is in compliance by using method number three as indicated above. The 2008 fiscal
year budget had the monies necessary to establish the reserve fund at the required funding level
Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined.

For the past three years, the settlement amount for claims against the City has net exceeded the amount
of insurance coverage maintained by the City.

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in the liabilities for claims for years ended
September 30, 2008 and 2007:

Unemployment Workers’
Employee Tort Benefits Compensation
Benefit Fund Claims Fund Benefits
2008: ’
Beginning Balance $ 651,732 $ 2,962,156 $ - $ 4,455 892
Current Year Claims/Changes in Estimates 11,063,971 167,415 104,565 1,764,859
Claims Payments 12,266,083 400,645 104,565 1,987,982
Ending Balance $ 560,380 $ 2,728,926 $ - $ 4,232,769
2007:
Beginning Balance $ 587358  $ 2,517,565 $ - $ 4,090,000
Current Year Claims/Changes in Esfimates 11,296,717 520,860 111,024 1,812,731
Claims Paymenis 12,535,807 76,269 111,024 1,446,839
Ending Balance $ 651,732 $ 2,962,156 $ - $ 4,455 892
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Note 5 — Other Information (Continued):
A, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued):
5. Other Risks

The City of Jackson is exposed to various other risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and
destructions of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial
insurance policy covering employee dishonesty up to $100,000 per employee with a $1,000 deductible.
The City carries casualty insurance in the amount of $300,000,000 with a $5,000 deductible fo protect
against damage to property caused by natural disaster or other casualties. Amounts of settlements have
not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years.

B. COMMITMENTS

During fiscal year 1993, the City entered into a revolving loan agreement with the Department of
Environmental Quality {DEQ) for loans to the Jackson Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund. The City
has pledged sales tax reimbursements from the State of Mississippi to repay the DEQ loans. The
outstanding balance of the revolving loans at September 30, 2008, was $18,507,496.

C. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On January 1, 2009 the City issued $26,210,000 of general obligation bonds to finance the constructing,
improving and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways and public parking facilities, and

purchasing land therefore; and constructing bridges and culverts. The inierest rate on the bonds range
from 4.00 — 5.80 percent and the maturity date is January 1, 2024.

D. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Litigation

The City is defendant in a number of legal actions seeking actual and punitive damages. Contingencies
totaling $2,728,926 for which it is probable a loss has been incurred and are subject to reasonable

estimation are recognized in the financial statements in the governmental funds. The City is vigorously
defending all matters of litigation and believes there will be no material adverse financial effect.

E. JOINT VENTURES

The following provides the summary financial information of the Jackson/Hinds Library System as of
September 30, 2008 (in thousands of dollars):

Jackson/Hinds Library System

Total assets

Total liahilities

Total fund equity

Total revenues

Total expenditures

Net increase (decrease} in fund halance

)

| [EBEEE

Total debt

(1) The percentage share of the joint venture applicable to the City of Jackson is fifty percent {50%).
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F. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

The City of Jackson participates in two retirement systems administered by the Public Employees'
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Both systems are defined benefit plans and include a multi-

employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi-employer pension plan as described below:

Public Employees” Retirement System

1. Plan Description and Provisions

Substantially all City of Jackson full-time employees pariicipate in PERS, a multi-employer, cost-
sharing, defined benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by Section 21-29-201 of the Mississippi Code of 1942 as
annotated, and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System,
PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 398201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or
1-800-444-PERS. '

2. Description of Funding Policy

PERS members are required to coniribute 7.25% of their annual covered salary and the Cily of
Jackson is required to confribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 11.85% of
annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may
be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.

Annual Pension Cost. For 2008, the City's annual pension cost of $7,613,890 for PERS was equal
to the City's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of
the September 30, 2007, actuariat valuation using the eniry age actuarial cost method. PERS’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at September 30, 2008 was 26 years.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS
{Dollar amounts in Thousands)

Fiscal Annual Percentage
Year Pension Of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
9/30/06 $ 7,340 100%
9/30/07 7,696 100%
9/30/08 7,614 100%
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‘F. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM {Continued):

Disability and Relief- Municipal Retirement Systems Pension Plan

1. Plan Description

The City of Jackson contributes to the Municipal Retirement Systems and Fire and Police Disability
and Relief Fund (MRS), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi. The City's uniformed police officers and
firefighters employed prior to April 1, 1976, participate in MRS. Firefighters and police officers
employed subsequent to April 1, 1976, are members of the Public Employees’ Refirement System
of the State as previously described. MRS provides retirement and disability benefits and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by Sections 21-29,
Articles 1, 3, 6 and 7, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972} and annual local and private legislation.
Legislation may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. At September 30, 2008,
the date of the most recent actuarial verification, there were b participating municipal employers and
678 retired participants and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. PERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statemenis and required supplementary information
for MRS. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees’ Retirement System,
PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or
1-800-444-PERS.

2. Basis of Accounting

MRS uses the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period in which employee services are performed, investment income is
recognized when earned. Expenses, including benefits and refunds paid, are recognized when
incurred. Investments for MRS are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities from
issuers of similar credit rating. Mortgage securities are valued on the basis of future principal and
interest paymenis and counted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. Short-ferm
investments are reported at market value when published prices are available, or at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates market or fair value. For individual investments where no
readily ascertainable market value exists, the Public Employees' Retirement System, in consuliation
with their investment advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values.

3. Funding Status and Progress _

The actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to (i} help users assess the plan's funding
status on a going-concern basis, and (i) assess progress being made in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. For the years ending September 30, 1994, and prior, the actuarial
value of assets was equal to book value. Beginning with the September 30, 1995, actuarial
valuation, the actuarial value of assets will be determined on a market related basis that recognizes
20% of the previously unrecognized and unanticipated gains and losses (both realized and
unrealized). Allocation of the actuarial present value of projected benefits between past and future
service was based on service using the entry age actuarial cost method. Assumptions, including
projected pay increases, were the same as used fo defermine the system's annual required
contribution between entry age and assumed exit age. Entry age was established by subtracting
credited service from current age on the valuation date.

As of September 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 70.4% funded.
The actuarial accrued lizbility for benefits was $130.6 million and the actuarial value of assets was
$91.9 miliion, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $38.7 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $219,000, and the
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 17.670%.

74



CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2003

Note 5 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued):
4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

The net pension obligation or asset represents the cumulative difference since the effective date of
the statement between Cily’s annual pension cost calculated pursuant to GASB 27 and the
employer's contribution to the plan, including the pension liability or asset at transition. For
purposes of transition, funding deficiencies which occurred prior to October 1, 1987 are not required
to be considered but to do so is acceptable. However, information on fiscal years prior to October 1,
1987 is not available although considerable funding deficiencies occurred to that point. As a result
of the transition rules under GASB Statement No. 27, the net pension obligation is considerably less
than if the calculation were made considering all applicable years of the plan. Consequently,
although the City has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $38,697 as of September 30, 2008,
the City has recorded a net pension asset of $18,580 in the accompanying government wide |
statements in the governmental activities.

|

The City’s annual pension cost and net pension asset for the current year calculated pursuant to
GASB 27 is as follows (amounts are expressed in thousands):

Annual required pension contribution $ (3,564)
Interest on net pension asset 1,772
Adjustments to annual required contribution (2,049)
Annual pension cost (3,841)
Contributions made 267
Decrease in net pension asset (3,574)
Net pension asset beginning of year 22.154
Net pension asset end of year $ 18,580

As the resuilt of the issuance of $49,790 of general obligation bonds in 1997, the City's contribution
to the plan has been limited since that date to matching contributions on employee withholdings.
Since 2001, the City’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability related to MRS has grown considerably
and the annual required contribution for fiscal 2009 is projected to be approximately $3,564. The
City's plans are to continue the present contribution level to the plan through fiscal 2010. At that
point the 1997 general obligation bonds will have been retired and tax millage presently used for
bond payments amounting to approximately $6.0 million will be diverted toward making annual
contributions to the plan. Projections of cash flow for the plan indicate contributions of
approximately $ 6,.0 million in 2009 and growing to approximately $7.2 million through 2019 will be
necessary to meet the City’s obligations under the plan.
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Note 5 — Other Information {Continued):

F. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued):

In 1997, the City issued $49,790,000 of General Obligation Bonds and contributed the proceeds to
the MRS plan to provide for a similar reduction in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. As a
result of this contribution, the City has not recognized a net pension obligation (NPQ) in its financial
statements.

The entry age actuarial accrued liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the
system (but not used for funding purposes) as of September 30, 2008. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in determining the entry age actuarial accrued liability include: (a) a rate of return
on the investment of present and future assets of 8% per year compounded annually, (b) projected
salary increases of 4.5% to 6.0% per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation and
seniority/merit. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year pericd. The
unfunded liability is being amortized over a closed 30 year period with 26 years remaining as of
September 30, 2008. At September 30, 2008, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was
determined as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (In Thousands of Dollars)
Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits $129,051
Active members 1,574

Vested terminated members not yet
receiving benefits -

Total actuarial accrued liability 130,625
Actuarial Value of Assets 91,928
Unfunded actuarial accrued fiability $ 38,697

During the year ended September 30, 2008 the plan experienced an estimated net change of
$(4,926) in the Actuarial Accrued Liability.

8. Funding Policy

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing of decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits.

The funding policy for MRS provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates that are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. In developing the
annual required contribution shown below, the normal cost and actuarial accrued liability are
determined using the entry age actuarial cost method. Unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized on an open basis as a level dollar amount over a period of 40 years. The City’s active
MRS members contribute ten percent of their base salaries to the plan. This difference has
historically resulted in the actual contribution being less than the annual required contribution.
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Note 5 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued}:
6. Annual Pension Cost

During the year ended September 30, 2008, contributions totaling approximately $267,011
($243,673 employer and $23,338 employee) were made in accordance with contribution
requirements determined by the actuarial valuation of the system as of September 30, 2007. The
employer contributions consisted of approximately $36,502 for normal cost and administrative
expenses and $207,171 for amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. In addition to
the above contributions, the City has levied a special tax for the retirement of bonds issued {o
provide funding for City's pension obligation for the year ended September 30, 2008. This
consisted of 5.56 mills on property valuation used to pay debt service of $6,817,380.

7. Contributions Required and Contributions Made (Continued):

Three-Year Trend Information for MRS
(Dollar amounts in Thousands)

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net Pension
Year Pension Of APC Asset
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed (NPO}
9/30/06 $ 3613 6.5% 25,5696
9/30/07 3,403 6.9% 22,154
9/30/08 3,574 7.2% 18,580

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Effective for the 2008 fiscal year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB Statement No. 45
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefits
{OPEB) expenses/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required
supplementary information. This Statement requires recognition of the cost of other postemployment
benefits during the periods when employees render their services and disclosure about actuarially accrued
liabilities related to past services and the status and progress of funding the benefits. The requirements of
GASB statement No. 45 were implemented prospectively beginning October 1, 2007.

.Plan Description

The City's OPEB plan provides post employment healthcare coverage, including dental benefits to eligible
individuals. Eligible individuals include all regular, full-time employees of the City, as well as permanent
part-time employees who work at least 20 hours per week, and their spouses and dependent children.
Employees must have earned at least 25 years of service with the City in order to be eligible for retiree
healthcare coverage. Coverage continues at the election of the retiree until age 65. Retirees must pay
the required monthly premium for either single or family coverage, as applicable. As of September 30,
2008, 202 retirees are eligible to receive benefifs under the plan. The plan was established under
authority of the City Council and may be amended or abolished by council action.
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Note 5 — Other Information {Continued):

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued):

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City's annual OPEB cost {expense) was calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Staternent 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over the actuarial amortization
pericd. Since 2008 was the initial year of implementation for GASB 45, there was no net OPEB obligation
at the beginning of the year. The ARC was calculated as part of the September 30, 2008, actuarial
valuation performed by an outside actuary consultant. The following table shows the components of the
gdvernment's annual OPEB cost for the year and the amount actually contributed to the pian during the
year:

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities OPEB Plan
Annual Required
Contribution $6,580,680 $ 983,320 $7,564,000
Interest on net OPEB
cbligation - - -
Adjustment to ARC - - -
Annual OPEB cost
{expense) 6,580,680 983,320 7,564,000
Less: Contributions ;
made (814,320) (121,680) (936,000) |
Increase in net OPEB
obligation 5,766,360 861,640 6,628,000 |
|
Net OPEB obligation |
beginning - - -
Net OPEB obligation
end of year $5.766,360 $.861,640 $6,628,000
Trend Information for OPEB Plan:
Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB
Ending Cost Cost Contributed Cbligation

9/30/08 $7,564,000 12%  $6,628,000
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Note 5 — Other Information (Continued):

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued):

Funding status and funding progress:

The City funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of September 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$52,430,000 with no valued assets, resuling in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (LJAAL) of the same
amount. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan invelve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Exampies include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
torcontinual revision and actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

Actuarial methods and assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan {the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan
members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the September 30, 2008 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 5.0 percent investment rate of refurn (net of administrative expenses) and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 6
percent after ten years. The city’'s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at September 30,
2008 was 15 years.

Note 6 ~ Prior Period Adjustment

1. In 2008, the City recorded an adjustment to include asseis previously overstated to its
government-wide statement of net assets for the governmental activities. The adjustment
was to correct the following item as an adjustment to previously reported net assets:

Adjustment to correct capital assets not being depreciated $ (819,775)
Adjustment to record capital assets being depreciated $ (12,014,807)
Adjustment to record accumulated depreciation (3.092.518)

$ (15,927.100)
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CITY OF JACKSON
Required Supplementary Information
Employees' Retirement Systems
Schedule of Funding Progress
September 30, 2603

DISABILITY AND RELIEF - MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEMS PENSION PLAN

(Doliar amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Percentage
Actuarial Value of {AAL) - Unfunded Funded Covered Of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
Date {a) (b) {b-a} {a/b) {c) [(b-a)/c]
9/30/2006 101,878 138,491 36,613 73.6 319 11,477.4
9/30/2007 98,151 135,551 37,400 724 222 16,846.8
9/30/2008 91,928 130,625 38,697 704 219 17,669.9

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
for the OPEB PLAN

{Dollar amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial '
Accrued . UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability . Percentage
Actuariai Value of (AAL)} - Unfunded Funded Covered Of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age AAL {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
Date (a) (b) {b-a) (alb) (c) [(b-a)/c]
10/1/2008 - 52,430 52,430 0.00% 69,894 75.0
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‘Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Parks and Recreation Fund

To account for the operation and maintenance of all City-owned parks. Financing is provided by
a 2-Mill annual property tax levy, admisstons, fees and concessions. Appropriations are made
from General Fund sources to the extent that such tax levy and other revenues are not sufficient
to finance expenditures.

State Grani Fund :
To account for proceeds of state grants or loans other than those grants or loans for Enterprise
Fund or Capital Projects Fund items.

Disability and Relief Fand

To account for the receipt of revenues, principally tax levies, and payments of bond principal and
interest related to bonds issued to provide reductions in the accrued actual liability related to
pensions of retired and disabled police and fireman employed prior to April 1, 1976.

Capital Projects Funds
Industrial Park Bond Fund, 1982-A
To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $3,000,000 to establish an industrial park.

1988 Construction Bond Fund

To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of 43,325,000 issued to finance certain
projects including constructing and improving streets, storm drainage systems, parks and
municipal buildings, and purchasing fire fighting equipment.

G.0O. Capital Improvement Fand 1994

To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $7,850,000 issued to finance the
improvement and extension of the storm drainage system of the city, the construction,
improvement or paving of streets, sidewalks and walkways and the purchase of land therefore and
the purchase of firefighting equipment and apparatus, construction of housing for the same and the
purchase of land there. '

1996 Tax Increment Limited Obligation Metro Station Censtruction

To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $1,650,000 issued to finance the costs of
constructing various infrastructure improvements including, but not limited to, the construction
and reconstruction of streets and utilities and the acquisition of land in connection therewith and
other costs incidental to the construction.

2007 Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bond Fund
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
Lowe’s project.




City of Jackson
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2008

Special Revenue

Parks and Disability and
Recreation State Grant Relief Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,146,487 § 52,147 $ 187,400 § 1,386,034
Accounts Receivable - 94,234 17,344 111,578
Other Receivable 2,351,045 - 6,500,859 8,851,904
Total Current Asset $ 3,497,532 § 146,381 § 6,705,603 $ 10,349,516
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 114,603 § 6415 % - 121,018
Unearned Revenue 2,339,364 - 6,518,203 8,857,567
Other Liabilities 12,583 - - 12,583
Total liabilities 2,466,550 6,415 6,518,203 8,991,168
FUND BALANCES
Unreservered 1,030,982 139,966 187,400 1,358,348
Total fund balances 1,030,982 139966 187.400 1,358,348
Total Liabilties and Fund balance $ 3,497,532 § 146,381 § 6,705,603 § 10,349,516

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Capital Projects

1988 1994 GO Bond 2007 Tax Total Nonmajor

1982 Industrial Construction Capital 1996 Metro Increment Governmental
Park Bond Bond Improvement Station Bond Total Funds ‘
$ 46,711  § 9509 % 42,773 § 1,416 § 17,349  § 127,758 % 1,513,792 |
- - - - - - 111,578 |
- - - - - - 8,851,904 |
$ 46,711  § 9,509 § 42,773 8 11,416  § 17,349 3 127,758 3§ 10,477,274
|
|
$ -8 270§ 13,838 § - % -8 14,108 § 135,126

- - - - - - 8,857,567

- - - - - - 12,583

- 270 13,838 - - 14,108 9,005,276

46,711 9,239 28,935 11,416 17,349 113,650 1,471,998

46,711 9,239 28,935 11,416 17,349 113,650 1,471,998

5 46,711  § 9,509 § 42,773 % i1,4l6e  § 17,349 % 127,758 % 10,477,274
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City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the year ended September 30, 2008

Special Revenue

Parks and Disability and
Recreation State Grant Relief Total
REVENUES

General property taxes b 2,119,255  § - % 5,869,951 § 7,989,206

Intergovernmental ' 183,191 246,735 183,811 613,737

Admissjons, fees, rentals and concessions 280,474 - 752 281,226
Interest 21,486 925 24,773 47184 |
Other 16,825 - 21,950 38,775 |
Total revenues 2,621,231 247,660 6,101,237 8,970,128 |
EXPENDITURES |
\
Current Operations: |
Personnel Services 3,628,884 91,217 - 3,720,101 |
Supplies 672,946 21,546 - 694,492 |
Other Services and Charges 1,190,573 165,947 145,177 1,501,697 ‘
Capital Outlay 489,356 79,381 - 568,737 |
Debt Service: ‘

Principal - - 6,000,000 6,000,000

Interest and service charges - - 818,406 818,406

Total expenditures 5,981,759 358,091 6,963,583 13,303,433

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,360,528) {116,431) (862,346} (4,333,305)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in;
General Fund 3,514,418 312,708 873,000 4,700,126
Transfers out:
Issnance of Tax Increment Bonds - - - -
Total other financing sources 3,514,418 312,708 873,000 4,700,126

|
1
|
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses 153,890 202,277 10,654 366,821
Fund balances at beginning of year 877,092 (62,311 176,746 991,527
Fund balances at end of year $ 1,030,982 § 139,966 §$ 187400 $ 1,358,348

|
The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement. ‘
|
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Capital Projects

1988 1994 GO Bond 2007 Tax Total Nonmajor

1982 Industrial  Construction Capital 1996 Metro Increment Governmental
Park Bond Bond Improvement Station Bond Total Funds

5 - % - % - 3 - - - % 7,989,206
y - - . . ; 613,737
- - - - - - 281,226
628 127 741 - 4,622 6,118 53,302
- - - - - 38,775
628 127 741 - 4,622 6,118 8,976,246
- - - - - - 3,720,101
- - - - - - 694,492
- - 12,335 - 2,077,735 2,090,070 3,591,767
- - - - - - 568,737
- - - - - - 6,000,000
- - . - - - 818,406
- - 12,335 - 2,077,735 2,090,070 15,393,503

628 127 (11,594) - (2,073,113) (2,083,952) (6,417,257)
] - - - - - 4,700,126
- - - - 2,090,462 2,090,462 2,090,462
- . . - 2,090,462 2,090,462 6,790,588
628 127 (11,594) - 17,349 6,510 373,331
46,083 9,112 40,529 11,416 - 107,140 1,098,667
3 46,711 b 9239 § 28935 % 11,416 17,349 113,650 §$ 1,471,998
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Parks and Recreation Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2008

REVENUES
General property taxes
Intergovernmental
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions
Interest
Other .
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USLES)
Transfers in:
General Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

City of Jackson

Budget Amount
Varianee with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts  positive(negative)
$ 2,112,300 ¥ 2,112,300 $ 2,119,255 6,955
200,974 200,974 183,191 (17,783)
416,194 416,194 280,474 (135,720)
8,000 8,000 21,486 13,486
5,100 5,100 16,825 11,725
2,742,568 2,742,568 2,621,231 (121,337)
4,146,189 4,199,976 3,628,884 571,092
798,828 852,180 672,946 179,234
1,213,057 1,367,225 1,190,573 176,652
349,949 661,318 489,356 172,462
6,508,023 7,081,199 5,981,759 1,099,440
(3,765,455) (4,338,631) (3,360,528) 978,103
3,514,418 3,514,418 3,514,418 -
3,514,418 3,514,418 3,514,418 -
(251,037) (824,213) 153,890 978,103
§77,092 877,092 877,092 -
$ 626,055 $ 52,879 $ 1,030,982 978,103
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City of Jackson

State Grants Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amount  positive(negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 1,576,150 $ 652,592 8 246,735 {405,857
Interest - - 923 925
Total revenues 1,576,150 652,592 247,660 {404,932%
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Personnel Services 288,947 141,549 91,217 50,332
Supplies 190,888 59,011 21,546 37,465
Other Services and Charges 427,425 618,229 165,947 452282
Capital Outlay 695,536 106,922 79,381 27,541
Total expenditures 1,602,796 925,711 358,091 567,620
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (26,646) (273,119) (110,431) 162,688
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
General Fund 26,646 273,119 312,708 39,589
Total other financing sources (uses) 26,646 273,119 312,708 39,589
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sonrces over expenditures and other uses - - 202,277 202,277
Fund balances at beginning of year (62,311} (62,311) (62,311) -
Fund balances at end of year § (62311 $ (62,311 $ 139,966 § 202,277
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City of Jackson
Disability and Relief Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expendituxes and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amount  positive(negative)
REVENUES
General property taxes $ 5,877,576 5,896,312 $ 5,869,951 $ (26,361)
Intergovernmental 174,134 183,850 183,811 (39)
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions 400 800 752 (48)
Interest 15,000 25,100 24,773 (327)
Other - 21,700 21,700 21,950 250
Total revenues 6,088,810 6,127,762 6,101,237 {26,525)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges - - 145,177 (145,177)
Debt Service:
Principal 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 -
Interest and service charges 961,810 1,000,762 818,406 182,356
Total expenditures 6,961,810 7,000,762 6,963,583 37,179
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {873,000) (873,000) (862,346} (10,654)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in:
General Fund 873,000 873,000 873,000 -
Total other financing sources {uses) 873,000 873,000 873,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses - - 10,654 (10,654)
Fund balances at beginning of year 176,746 176,746 176,746 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 176,746 176,746 3 187,400  § {10,654)




City of Jackson
1982 Industrial Park Bond Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Posttive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Interest 5 - $ - $ 628 §$ 628
Total revenues - - 628 628
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Total expenditures 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures {50,000) (50,000) 628 50,628
Net change in fund balances (50,000) (50,000} 628 50,628
Fund balances at beginning of year 46,083 46,083 46,083 -
Fund balances at end of year § (3,917) 3 {3,917 $ 46,711 § 50,628
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City of Jackson
1988 Construction Bond Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts  Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest $ - 3 - 5 127§ 127
Total revenues - - 127 127
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges 52,024 - - -
Total expenditures 52,024 - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (52,024) - 127 127
Net change in fund balances (52,024) - 127 127
Fund balances at beginning of year 9,112 9,112 9,112 -
Fund balances at end of year $ (42,912)  § 9,112 $ 9239 § 127
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City of Jackson
1994 GO Bond Capital Improvement Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES .
Interest $ - 3 - $ 741§ 741
Total revenues - - 741 741
EXPERDITURES
Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges 118,080 118,080 12,335 103,745
Total expenditures 118,080 118,080 12,335 105,745
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures (118,080} {118,080) (11,594) 106,486
Net change in fund balances (118,080) (118,080} (11,594) 106,486
Fund balances at beginning of year 40,529 40,529 40,529 -
Fund balances at end of year $ (77,551 $  (77,551) $ 28935 § 106,486
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NON-MAJOR
ENTERPRISE FUNDS




Nonmajor Proprietary

Madison Sewage Disposal System Fund

To account for costs of construction, operation and maintenance of the East Madison County
Sewage Disposal System. The City of Ridgeland, Mississippi will be responsible for the service
contracts with Madison County participating in the system.

\
\
Transportation Fund |
|

To account for operational costs of the City’s transit system. Deficiencies in revenues over
expenses are financed by the City.




City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Net Assels
Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds

As of September 30, 2008
Madison
Sewage Transportation Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivable $ - $ 2,385,213 3 2,385,213
Total Current Asset - 2,385,213 2,385,213
Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost
Land - 450,000 450,000
Buildings - 1,681,851 1,081,851
Water plant, distribution system and equipment 453,844 410,690 864,534
Automotive and other equipment - 13,080,637 13,080,037
453,844 15,623,178 16,077,022
Less: accumulated depreciation (167,304) (10,806,915) {16,974,219)
286,540 4,816,263 5,102,803
Consfruction in progress 13,800 - 13,800
Net property, plant and equipment 300,340 4,816,263 5,116,603
Total Assets 3 300,340 ¢ 7,201,476 $ 7,501,816

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds

As of September 30, 2008
Madison
Sewage Transportation Totals

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 9714 % 80,008 89,722

Dug to other funds - 4,031,442 4,031,442
Current portion of long term debt:

Lease Obligations - 131,380 131,390

Total current liabilities 9,714 4,242,840 4,252,554

Long Term Debt (less amounts classified as current liabilities):

Lease obligations - 287,585 287,585
Total long-term debt - 287,585 287,585
Total liabilities 9,714 4,530,425 4,540,139

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 300,340 4,307,288 4,697,628
Unrestricted (9,714) (1,726,237) (1,735,951)
Total Net Assets 290,626 2,671,051 2,961,677
Total liabilities and net assets % 300,340 $ 7,201,476 7,501,816

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds
For the Year Ended September 36, 2008

Madisen
Sewage Transportation Totals
Operating Revenues:

Sales to Customers $ - $ 397,269 397,269

Other Revenue - 480,101 480,101
Total Operating revenues - 877,370 877,370

Operating Expenses:

Personnel Services 30,600 140,539 171,139

Supplies 2,317 1,129,479 1,131,796

Other services and charges 67,801 5,463,100 5,530,501

Depreciation 8,029 841,969 850,898
Total operating expenses 109,647 7,575,087 7,684,734
Operating Inconie (loss) {109,647) (6,697,717 (6,807,364)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest revenue - 16,563 16,5603
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses} - 16,563 16,563
Loss before contributions and transfers (109,647} (6,681,154) (6,790,801)

Capital contributions from grants - 1,533,653 1,533,653
Operating Transfers In:

General Fund - 4,613,028 4,613,028

Enterprise Funds 98,996 - 98,996
Total transfers in {out} 98,996 4,613,028 4,712,024
Change in Net Assets (10,651) (534,473) (545,124)

Total net assets - beginning 301,277 3,205,524 3,506,801

Total net assets - ending 3 290,626 % 2,071,051 2,961,677

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds
For the year ended September-30, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from other revenue
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash used for
Operating activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In
Net cash provided by noncapital

financing activities)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital contributions
Net cash provided by capital and related

financing activities

Cash Flow Provided by Investing Activities:

Interest on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used for Operating Activities:
Operating loss
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in other receivable
Increase (decrease} in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Madison
Sewage Transportation Totals
$ - 8 397,269 $ 397,269
- 440,397 440,397
(68,396) (6,682,243) (6,750,639)
(30,600) (140,539) (171,139)
(98,996) (5,985,116) (6,084,112)
98,996 4,613,028 4,712,024
98,996 4,613,028 4,712,024
. (1,336) (1,336)
- (176,792) (176,792)
- 1,533,653 1,533,653
- 1,355,525 1,355,525
- 16,563 16,563
- 16,563 16,563
$ - 8 - 5 -
$ (109,647) & (6,697,717} $  (6,807,364)
8,929 341,969 850,898
- {39,704) (39,704)
- {38,925) (38,925)
1,722 (50,739) (49,017)
10,651 712,601 723,252
$ (98,996) § (5,985,116) $  (6,084,112)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUDUCIARY FUNDS




Fiduciary Funds

Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund
To account for money held in trust to fund unemployment claims pursuant to State law.
Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund

To account for contributions from the public sector which are held in trust for police and fire
allowable claims.

Mausoleum Trust Fund

To account for funds to be used for maintenance and upkeep of the Henry Mausoleum located in
Kernaghan Cemetery.

Tax Collections
To account for receipt of tax collections for and subsequent payment to the Jackson/Hinds

Library System, Jackson Municipal Separate School District, Capital City Community
Convention Center, and Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau.
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CITY OF JACKSON
ALL TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2608

Unemployment  Charitable

Compensation Trust Mausoleum
Revolving  Fire and Police  Trust |
Fund Fund Fund Total |
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents . 5 187,781 § 8483 $§ 1,874 $ 198,138 ‘
Investment at fair value: |
Certificate of deposit - - 30,000 30,000 |
|
Total assets $ 187,781 § 8483 $§ 31,874 § 228,138 ;
Liabilities and Net Assets
|
Liabilities: _ |
Payables to others $ 4,923 § - % - $ 4923
Total liabilities 4,923 - - 4,923
Net Assets:
Held in trust 182,858 8,483 31,874 223,215
Total net assets 182,858 3,483 31,874 223,215
Total liabilities and net assets $ 187,781 % 3483 $ 31,874 § 228,13%
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CITY OF JACKSON
ALL TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Unemployment  Charitable
Compensation Trust Mausoleum
Revolving Fire and Police  Trust
Fund Fund Fund Total
Additions:
Interest $ 2,259 § 847 $ 1,874 § 4,980
Other additions 169,000 - - 169,000
Total additions 171,259 847 1,874 173,980
Deductions:
General government
Trust funds 104,566 - - 104,566
Total deductions 104,566 - - 104,566
Change in Net Assets 66,693 847 1,874 69,414
Net assets at beginning of year 116,165 7,636 30,000 153,801
Net assets at end of year $ 182858 % 8483 $ 31,874 § 2237215
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CITY OF JACKSON
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

COMBIN]NG STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20038

ASSETS LIABILITIES
Cash
and Cash Total Other Total
Equivalents Assets Liabilities Liabilities

Capital City Commumity Convention Center

Balance at October 1, 2007 $ - % - - -

Additions 4,432,243 4,432,243 4,432,243 4,432,243

Déductions 4,422,457 4,422 457 4,422 457 4,422 457

Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 9,786 % 9,786 9,786 9,786
Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau

Balance at October 1, 2007 $ -5 - - -

Additions 3,266,082 3,266,082 3,266,082 3,266,082

Deductions 3,265,952 3,265,952 3,265,952 3,265,952

Balance ai September 30, 2008 $ 130 $ 130 130 130
Jackson/Hinds Library System

Balance at October 1, 2007 $ - § - - _

Additions 1,372,679 1,372,679 1,372,679 1,372,679

Deductions 1,372,679 1,372,679 1,372,679 1,372,679

Balance at September 30, 2008 $ - $ - - -
Jackson Municipal Separate School District

Balance at October 1, 2007 $ -8 - - -

Additions 9,865,990 9,865,990 9,865,990 9,865,990

Deductions 9,865,990 9,865,990 9,865,990 9,865,990

Balance at September 30, 2008 $ - % - - -
Total - All Agency Funds:

Balance at October 1, 2007 $ - $ - - -

Additions 18,936,994 ~ 18,936,994 18,936,994 18,936,994

Deductions 18,927,078 18,927,078 18,927.078 18,927,078

Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 9916 § 9,916 9.916 9916
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CAPITAL ASSETS




CITY OF JACKSON
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE (1} '
September 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007
Governmental funds capital assets:
Land $ 14,521,418 § 14,440,778
Buildings 80,122,887 79,547,208
Automotive and equipment: 70,960,561 69,467 614
Infrastructure 214,444,522 214,444 522
Construction in progress 50,608,592 40,370,626
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 430,657,980 $ 418,270,746
Investment in governmental funds capital assets by source:

Assets prior to 1985 not segregated
by sources $ 14,002,713 % 14,002,713
General Fund revenues 78,761,372 65,876,228
Special Revenue Fund revenues 88,343,358 89,157,243
Special Assessment bonds 1,962,957 1,962,957
General Obligaticn bonds 204,185,626 200,375,328
Limited Obligation bonds 4,330,429 2,252,694
Debi Service Fund revenues 65,000 65,000
Federal grants 38,523,316 44,095,374
State grants 52,261 52,261
County grants 430,948 430,948
Totat governmental funds capital assets $ 430,657,980 $ 418,270,746

{1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances (excluding accumulated depreciation)
related to governmental funds. Accerdingly, the capital assets reported in intermnal service funds
are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds
are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Jackson’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detail information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
city’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 105

_ These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City of
Jackson’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 112

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City of Jackson’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity ' 116
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City
of Jackson’s current levels of outstanding debt and the city’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 121
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City of Jackson’s financial activities take
place.

Operating Information 123
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how

the information in the City of Jackson’s financial report relates to the services the city
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Jackson
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Motor Alcoholic

Fiseal Property Sales Franchise Fuel Beverage
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total
2008 48,769 35,428 1,477 31 282 85,987
2007 44,240 35,838 1,442 31 304 81,855
2006 41,324 37,993 1,398 31 302 81,048
2005 40,509 35,673 1,406 31 267 77,886
2004 41,660 35,882 1,152 31 261 78,986
2003 41,660 35,097 1,376 31 249 78,413
2002 38,285 35,685 1,836 30 250 76,086
2001 34,347 35,641 1,436 29 236 71,689
2000 34,438 36,452 1,243 32 225 72,390
1999 31,478 31,358 1,099 32 219 70,186

Source: General Fund Budget and Actual Statement
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City of Jackson
Principal Property Taxpayers
September 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)}

2008 1999
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpaver Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Bell South $ - 3 $ 71,914 1 8.19%
Entergy - 42,955 2 4.89%
Atmos Energy - 6,709 4 0.76%
Jackson HMA ) - “ -
AT&T - 24,546 3 2.79%
Trustmark National Bank - - -
Parkway Propertics - - -
Central MS Health Systems - - -
Jackson Medical Offices _ - 3,191 10 0.36%
Wal-Mart/Sam's Wholesale Club - 3,434 9 0.39%
McCarty Holman, Inc. - - -
Deposit Guaranty National Bank - - 6,069 5 0.69%
Metrocenter - - 5,360 6 0.63%
Southern Farm Bureau
Insurance Company - - 3,552 8 0.40%
McRage's - - 3,805 7 0.43%
Totals ] - 0.00% b 171,735 19.55%

Source: Hinds County
Tax roll was not available from Hinds County 2008
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City of Jackson
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of September 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fstimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Hinds County b 51,955 76.57% $ 39,782
Jackson Public Schools 147,685 100.00% 147,685
Subtotal, overlapping debt 187,467
City of Jackson direct debt 112,535 .. 100.00% 112,535
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 300,002

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages by City of Jackson, Hinds County, and Jackson Public Schools.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide with the geographic boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion
of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Jackson.

This process recognizes that, when considering the City of Jackson ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt

burden borne by the residents and business should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident,
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated
by determining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value that is with the government's boundaries and dividing it by the county's
total taxable assessed value.
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Employer

State of Mississippi

University of Mississippi

U.S. Government

Jackson Public School District
Baptist Health Systems

City of Jackson, Mississippi
5t. Dominic Health Services
Trustmark National Bank
Saks, Inc.

Jackson State University

City of Jackson
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

1999
Percentage
of Total City
Employees Rank Employment

Source: MetroJackson Chamber of Commerce 2005

Note: Data for 1999 is currently not available.
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2008
Percentage

of Tetal City

Employees Rank Employment
27,100 1 14.71%
9,000 2 4.88%
5,600 3 3.04%
4,500 4 2.44%
2,700 5 1.47%
2,465 6 1.34%
2,300 7 1.25%
1,670 8 0.91%
1,440 9 0.78%
1,400 10 0.76%
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CITY OF JACKSON
SCHEDULE OF BONDS OF CITY OFFICIALS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

1} Company: Bryson Insurance Agency

Limits of fiability: Honesty Blanket
Position Bond Coverage

Position Coverage per each Term of bond

All employees except City Councii {7) $100,000 03/28/08 -03/28/09
Mayor, City Administrative Officer,
Director of Administration, Chief of Police,

~ Deputy Chief of Police, City Clerk,

Daeputy Clerk (8)
2) Company: Porter's Insurance Agency
Bryson Insurance Agnecy
Boyles Moak Brickell Marchetti
Statewide General Insurance |
%
Limits of liabiiity: Surety Bond coverage as follows: \
|
Position Coverage per each Term of bond
City Council (7} $100,000 07/04/08 - 07/04/09
Mayor $100,000 07/04/08 - 07/04/09
City Administrative Officer $50,000 07/04/08 - G7/04/09
City Clerk $50,000 05/01/08 - 05/01/09
Director of Administration $50,000 08/14/08 - 08/14/09
Chief of Police $50,000 07/05/08 - 67/05/09
Deputy Chief of Police $25,000 04/01/08 - 04/01/09 |
Deputy Clerk (6) $10,000 04/01/08 - 04/01/09 |
Deputy Clerk $10,000 08/22/08 - 08/22/09 }
Deputy Clerk $10,000 02/01/08 - 02/01/09 |
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" The Pinnacle at Jackson Place
190 E. Capitol Street, Suite 500
LLP Jackson, MS 39201-2190

GPAs & Advisors 601.948.6700 Fax 601.948.6000  www.bkd.com

Independent Accountants’ Report on internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor
and Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Jackson, Mississippi as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, which
collectively comprise its basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 12,
2010, which contained a reference to the report of other accountants and an emphasis of matter regarding
a change in accounting principles. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Other accountants audited the financial statements of the Jackson Redevelopment Authority, as described
in our report on the City of Jackson’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the
other accountants’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that
are reported on separately by those accountants.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporiing

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial |
statements but not fo express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial |
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting.

preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.
|
|
\
\
|
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect

misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of

control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or

report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there

is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We consider the
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deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2008-01 through
2008-07 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies
described above, we consider findings 2008-01 through 2008-07 to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

Aj part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests did not disclose any instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We also noted certain additional matters that we reported to the City’s management in a separate letter
dated May 12, 2010. :

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, others

within the City, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entitics and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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May 12, 2010

130




City of Jackson
Schedule of Findings and Responses
September 30, 2008

Reference
Number Finding
2008-01 Design Deficiency — Financial Statement Preparation

(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

Condition — The City does not have processes in place to perform a
comprehensive analysis of material account balances to confirm the details of
the accounts or ensure that account balances are correctly reported and, where
appropriate, in agreement with underlying supporting records. As a result, the
City’s financial statements and disclosures, including supporting account
reconciliations prepared by City personnel, were found to contain numerous
errors that were identified during the audit. Material differences existed
between underlying fixed assets records and the general ledger without being
identified and corrected. Additionally, documentation supporting account
analysis and the review that occurs are not being maintained in a manner that
facilitates supervisory review.

City personnel appear to rely on external auditors to identify and bring material
misstatements to the attention of accounting personnel rather than conducting a
deliberate and systematic review of its records (o identify and correct material
misstatements before submitting the records for audit. City personnel also rely
on the auditors to identify and correct the financial statements for changes in
accounting standards.

Effect — The financial statements might be materially misstated, and the errors
would not be detected by management. This resulted in significant delays in
completing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Cause — The City has not developed procedures or provided staffing to prepare
accurate and complete financial statements and, consequently, relies on its
external auditors for a significant part of this function. During the past year, the
City added a person to the staff to assist with financial reporting, but the job is
now vacant. However, this role was one of financial statement assembly rather
than performance of a comprehensive financial reporting process.

Recommendation — Adequate staffing of the financial reporting process needs to
be provided. The City should establish a comprehensive financial statement
closing procedure, whereby all significant accounts are analyzed, balanced,
agreed to supporting detail and evaluated for proper reporting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
in a clearly documented manner. Working papers supporting this process
should be maintained and subjected to supervisory review to ensure that
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Reference
Number Finding

procedures have been carried out in a manner that results in all potential
material errors in the records being identified and corrected prior to the
preparation of financial statements.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — The
Department of Administration will be hiring additional staff in the Finance
Division and the Office of Director of Administration to assist in the financial
reporting process. The financial statement closing procedure will be enhanced
by providing the additional staffing and management with oversight to ensure
all accounts are analyzed, balanced to supporting detail and reported in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

2008-02 Design Deficiency — Monitoring
(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

Condition — The City does not have procedures in place to provide for the review and
approval of financial statement adjustments, as 12 of the 20 (or 60%) of the journal
entries selected for testing, did not have any form of approval by someone
independent of the preparer. Additionally, the Controller has the ability to prepare
and post adjustments without review or approval.

Effect — The financial statements might be materially misstated, and the errors would
not be detected by management.

Cause — There are no procedures in place, such as the review of financial statement
adjustments, which would mitigate the risk of potential errors or misappropriations
not being detected timely by employees in the normal course of performing their
duties.

Recommendation — The City should implement procedures to ensure all adjusting
journal entries are reviewed and approved by someone without recording
responsibility.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — The Office of the
Director of Administration will approve all adjusting journal entries.

|
2608-03 Design Deficiency — Capital Assets |
(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Internal controls
should allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements in capital assets.
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Reference
Number Finding

Condition — The City does not evaluate the continuing effectiveness of internal
control over recording and reporting capital assets, nor has management
effectively monitored capital asset activity.

Annual inventory reports were not completed and returned by approximately
40% of the City’s departments to reflect any adjustments for additions or
disposals of capital assets throughout the year. Additionally, an annual
reconciliation of completed departmental inventory reports to the capital assets
reflected in the City’s system is not performed to ensure proper recording of
capital assets.

Fixed assets are being maintained on two different systems, with some assets
being reported on both systems. There appears to be confusion about where the
assets should be reported, and errors in the records are abundant, Considerable
time was required on the auditors’ part to evaluate and piece together the
records.

The City’s repairs and maintenance accounts are not reviewed by management
to verify recorded costs are properly expensed rather than being capitalized.

There are no formalized procedures related to recording the acceptance of
donations of land or other capital assets by the City.

The City does not calculate capitalized interest associated with construction in
progress (CIP) projects.

There are no formalized procedures regarding the review and acceptance of
lease agreements.

The City’s process for review and closing of CIP is not adequately defined.

Effect — The financial statements might be materially misstated, and the errors
would not be detected by management. In 2008, the audit determined that
certain assets were duplicated in the City’s system, resulting in a material |
overstatement of prior year’s fixed assets. As a result, a prior period adjustment
was made to correct this error in 2008.

Cause — The City has not designed internal control procedures to ensure proper
recording and reporting of capital asset activity, as there are no procedures in
place which would mitigate the risk of potential errors or misstatements not
being detected timely by employees in the normal course of performing their
duties.

Recommendation — Procedures should be developed and implemented to
strengthen internal controls related to recording and reporting capital assets.

Management should hold each department head of the City accountable to

complete and return the annual inventory of capital assets for their respective
departments. The completed departmental inventory reports should be
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Number

Finding

compared to the capital asset system to ensure any additions or disposals are
reflected.

Written instructions need to be developed as to how to maintain fixed asset
detail records. Additionally, management needs to develop a plan to
consolidate and reconcile all fixed asset records to reduce the opportunity for
errors to occur.,

Additionally, management should review the City’s repairs and maintenance
accounts to determine if any items of a capital nature were improperly
expensed.

Procedures should be developed to ensure information related to the City
Council’s acceptance of donated capital assets is communicated appropriatety
so the related asset can be added to the City’s capital assets system and the
related adjustments to general ledger revenues and expenses can be recorded.

The City should provide for annual calculations and evaluations of potential
capitatized interest amounts for CIP.

In order to ensure proper recording of agreements as either operating or capital
leases, the City should review and evaluate all lease agreements upon final
acceptance of the terms,

Written procedures should be developed to provide for periodic review and
closing of CIP accounts.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — Procedures for

recording and reporting fixed assets will be reviewed and enhanced as
recommended by the auditors.

Departmental inventory reports will be verified by the departmental directors
and balanced to the City’s capital asset system.

Written instructions will be provided to departmental directors for maintenance
of fixed asset detail records. A written procedure will be developed to
consolidate and reconcile all fixed asset records.

The Office of Purchasing reviews requisitions for proper account numbers
related to acquisition of capital outlay items. Additional training will be
provided to the Office of Purchasing as it relates to the acquisition of capital
assets. Repair and maintenance accounts will be further reviewed by the
accounting staff.

Procedures will be developed to monitor the City’s acceptance of donated

capital assets. Any donated assets accepted will be added to the City’s capital
asset system.
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Number Finding

Annual caleulations and evaluations of potential capitalized interest for CIP will
be performed.

All lease agreements will be reviewed and evaluated to determine the proper
recording of the lease agreements, either as an operating or capital lease.

Periodic evaluation and closing of CIP will be performed.

2008-04 Design Deficiency — Accounts Payable
(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Internal controls
should allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements in accounts payable,

Condition — Management does not evaluate the continuing effectiveness of
internal control over recording and reporting expenses for the City.

Invoices received subsequent to the end of the fiscal year for goods or services
received prior to fiscal year-end were not included in accounts payable.

Amounts reflected in the detailed aging payables report do not agree with the
accounts payable balances reflected per the trial balance. These differences are
not resolved by management in order to ensure agreement between the
subsidiary reports and general ledger.

There is no established process in place to reconcile the City’s Fuelman account
which resulted in the audit locating a significant adjusting entry. . ..

Effect - The financial statements might be materially misstated, and the errors
would not be detected by management.

Cause — The City has not designed internal control procedures for appropriate
review and reconciliation of accounts payable.

Recommendation — Procedures should be developed and implemented to
strengthen internal controls related to recording and reporting accounts payable.
Management should implement procedures to ensure proper cutoff of accounts
payable to reflect costs in the proper period.
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Number

Finding

2008-05

The Fuelman account should be recorded monthly.

Subsidiary ledgers, including aging reports, should be reviewed and reconciled
to the general ledger to prevent discrepancies between the two reports.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — In compliance
with Mississippi Code Section 21-35-23, the City holds its books epen for thirty
(30) days to record inveices received subsequent to the end of the fiscal year for
goods and services received prior to the fiscal year. This procedure will be
evaluated to ensure proper cutoff of accounts payable {0 ensure costs are
reflected in the proper period in accordance with GAAP.

The third party accounting software for accounts payable does not reflect the
balances forward from prior years. The third part accounting software provider
will be requested to provide a program fix to correct this issue.

A procedure to provide monthly reconciliation of the Fuelman account will be
established.

Design Deficiency — Accounts Receivable
(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Internal controls
should allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements in accounts
receivable.

Condition — Management does not evaluate the continuing effectiveness of
internal contrel over recording and reporting revenues for the City.

The allowance for doubtful accounts calculation is based on inaccurate
information for water and sewer accounts. The reports utilized in the
calculation include credit balances for former customers that have received their
final bill. These credit balances are included in current receivables which result
in lower aging amounts due to the net effect of the former customer credits.
Additionally, the City’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts does
not consider historical collections based on the various aging categoties.

The City’s billing system for water and sewer customer accounts can cease
billing an account without being timely detected by management until the
customer inquires of the City or the error is discovered by City personnel.

Effect — The financial statements might be materially misstated, and the errors

would not be detected by management.
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Number Finding

Cause — The City has not designed internal control procedures for appropriate
review and reconciliation of accounts receivable.

Recommendation — Procedures should be developed and implemented to
strengthen internal controls related to recording and reporting accounts
receivable.

Management should consider historical collections for the various receivable
aging categories when determining uncollectible allowances.

Additionally, credit balances of former customers should be removed from
accounts receivable and be reflected as a liability of the City to help prevent
inaccurate allowance determinations.

The City should review accounts receivable each month to timely detect any
suspended customers and ensure proper billings are made.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — The process
and reports used to calculate the allowance for doubtful accounts related to
water and sewer accounts will be evaluated using historical collection based on
the various aging categories. Monthly reports are now being generated that will
flag water/sewer accounts with credit balances.

The City’s current water/sewer billing system is outdated, and certain events
such as a service order to close an account and a service order to open a new
account at the same address can lock the account from the billing system. The
management of the Water/Sewer Business Administration Office is aware of
this situation and has manual operations in place to prevent this situation from
occurring again.

The City has received bids to purchase a new water/sewer billing system, and a
contract to purchase the system will be approved by the City in the near future.
The new water/sewer billing system will identify active accounts not being
billed as they should. Pending implementation of the new system, the
management of the Water/Sewer Administration Office will generate monthly
reports on a number of customer accounts and reconcile the reports to the
account activities that occur that month.

2008-06 Design Deficiency - Cash Reconciliations
(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

Condition — Management does not evaluate the continuing effectiveness of
internal control over its cash reconciliation procedures, as one of the City’s
accounts contained an approximate $500,000 discrepancy and had not been
reconciled and adjusted for an approximate 18-month period beginning October
2007.
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Finding

2008-07

Effect — The financial statements might be materially misstated, and the errors
would not be detected by management.

Cause — The City has not designed internal control procedures for appropriate
review and reconciliation of its cash accounts.

Recommendation — Procedures should be developed and implemented to
strengthen internal controls related to cash reconciliation procedures.

Appropriate individuals within the City should be responsible for reviewing all
cash reconciliations prepared by others to detect any discrepancies and ensure
timely preparation. It is further recommended that both the preparer and
reviewer initial and date the reconciliations for documentation purposes.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — Cash
reconciliations will be reviewed and approved by the Controller and the Office
of the Director of Administration. The preparer and reviewer will initial and
date the cash reconciliations,

Design Deficiency — Cash Receipts
(Significant Deficiency, Material Weakness)

Criteria or Specific Requirement — The City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Internal controls
should allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements in or
misappropriation of cash receipts.

Condition — Management does not evaluate the continuing effectiveness of
internal control over its cash receipt processes. Cash receipts are not timely
deposited, as property taxes received by the City in February were not
deposited until April.

Effect — Failure to timely deposit all cash receipts increases the potential for
misappropriation.

Cause — The City has not designed internal control procedures for the timely
deposit of cash receipts.

Recommendation — Procedures should be developed and implemented to
strengthen internal controls related to the cash receipts process, whereby all
receipts are deposited timely to help prevent misappropriation.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions — It is the policy

of the City to deposit cash receipts on a timely basis. Procedures will be
implemented to assure compliance with this policy.
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Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance
With State Laws and Regulations

Honorable Mayor
and Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Jackson, Mississippi as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated May 12, 2010. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

As required by the state legal compliance program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we have
also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit, and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of those procedures and our audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed no
material instances of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. The prior year findings have been
corrected.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, others

within the City and the Office of the State Auditor of the State of Mississippi and is not intended to be |
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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Member Michael B. Bruno, CPA
American Institute of Alcide J. Tervalon, Jr., CPA

Certified Public Accountants Waldo J. Moret, Jr., CPA
Society of Louisiana Paul K. Andoh, Sr., CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Certified Public Accountanis Josaph A. Akanii, CPA
|
|

The Honorable Mayor and Honorable
Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have andited the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the Federal
Programs listed on pages 142 through 145 of the City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) for the
year ended September 30, 2008. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organization (OMB
Circular A-133) and is not a part of the basic financial statements of the City for the year ended
September 30, 2008. (The basic financial statements of the City for the year ended September
30, 2008 are audited by other auditors whose opinion dated May 12, 2010 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements). The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards is the responsibility of the management of the City. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards based on our audit.
|

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the provisions of OMB
Circular A-133. Those standards and the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Government, and Non-Profit Organizations require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basts, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

4298 ELYSIAN FIELDS AVENUE 140 6424 LAKEOVER RD., SUITE A
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70122 JACKSON, MS 39213
(504) 284-8733 FAX (504) 284-8296 (601) 366-2344 FAX {601) 366-8440



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Honorable Mayor and Honorable
Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

In our opinion, the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards of the City
presents fairly, in all material Tespects, the expenditures of federal awards under the Federal
Programs referred to in the previous page in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and in relation to the basic financial statements of the
City taken as a whole.

As discussed, in Note 5 the City is subject to audit by Federal agencies or their designees for
compliance with contractual and programmatic requirements with regard to its Federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 2008. The determination of whether any instances of
noncompliance that will ultimately result in the remiftance of any ineligible and disallowed costs
cannot be presently determined.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May
12, 2010 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

/
.E)rumo Q lerdad o (o
BRUNO & TERVALON LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

May 12, 2010

ey LIp 141

e e i T e e

Fied Public Accountants




City of Jackson

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through Current Year Cumulative
CFDA Grantors Federal Expenditures
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures through 09/30/08
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Program
Metropolitan Medical Response System 93.000 233-01-0043 - $ 493,876
Metropolitan Medical Response System 93.000 05MM221 132,975 132,975
Metropolitan Medical Response System 93.000 06MM221 - -
Metropolitan Medical Response System 93.000 07MM221 - - -
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.000 132,975 626,851
Social Services Block Grant
(Central MS Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Outreach 93.667 377-1-25 10,000 10,000
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.667 10,000 10,000
Special Programs for the Aging Title 111, Part C, Nutrition Services
(Central MS Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Congregate Nutrition Program (Non-cash) 93.045 378-1-25 100,093 100,093
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.045 100,093 100,093
Child Care Development Block Grant
(State of MS Office of Child Nutrition - Pass Through) 93.575 625Q681 1,025,567 1,025,567
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.575 1,025,567 1,025,567
Urban Enterprise Grant
(Mississippi Development Authority - Pass Through) 93.585 EZ03-EZ/Urban 20,000 2,059,758
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.585 20,000 2,059,758
Title XX-Social Services Block Grant
(Central MS Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Transportation 93.667 396-B-25 92,000 92,000
Home Delivered Meals (Non-cash) 93.667 396-A-25 179,098 179,098
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.667 271,098 271,098
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 1,559,733 4,093,367
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Program
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-05-MC-28-0003 1,882,182 2,811,618
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-06-MC-28-0003 2,436,702 2,436,702
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.218 4,318,884 5,248,320
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 S-06-MC-28-0002 37,709 111,164
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 S-07-MC-28-0002 53,061 53,061
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.231 90,770 164,225
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-99-MC-28-0200 - 1,429,000
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-00-MC-28-0200 - 1,439,354
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-01-MC-28-0200 90,441 1,401,531
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-02-MC-28-0200 115,212 1,764,748
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-03-MC-28-0200 217,927 1,260,463
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-04-MC-28-0200 737,820 1,393,878
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-05-MC-28-0200 1,051,283 1,051,283
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-06-MC-28-0200 70,151 70,151
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.239 2,282,834 9,810,408
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241 MS-H06-06-F001 627,114 868,000
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241 MS-H07-07-F001 221,190 221,190
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.241 848,304 1,089,190
Brownfield Economic Development Initiative 14.246 B-01-SP-MS-0744 - 382,128
Brownfield Economic Development Initiative 14.246 B-02-SP-MS-0352 - 1,768
Brownfield Economic Development Initiative 14.246 B-03-SP-MS-0402 - 6,325
Brownfield Economic Development Initiative 14.246 B-05-SP-MS-0141 - 783,660
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.246 - 1,173,881
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 7,540,792 17,486,024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. See auditor's report on supplementary schedules
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City of Jackson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through Current Year Cumulative
CFDA Grantors Federal Expenditures
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures through 09/30/08
U.S. Department of Justice
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant
(Mississippi Department of Public Safety - Pass Through) 16.523 04JB2191 $ 16,346 $ 16,346
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.523 16,346 16,346
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program
(Mississippi Department of Public Safety - Pass Through) 16.579 06NW2191 15,951 15,951
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.579 15,951 15,951
Stop Violence Against Women Formula Grant 16.588 05SL2191 44,986 44,986
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.588 44,986 44,986
Direct Programs:
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Program 16.592 2004-LB-BX-1473 - 29,817
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.592 - 29,817
Community Capacity Development Office 16.595 07-WS-Q7-0273 18,500 99,146
Community Capacity Development Office 16.595 07-WS-Q7-0063 138,341 138,341
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.595 156,841 237,487
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program 16.580 2003DDBX0345 261,399 1,171,693
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program 16.580 2004CKWX0203 - 98,652
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program 16.580 2004DDB41389 - 698,609
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program 16.580 2005DDBX1170 154,622 399,504
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program 16.580 2006RGCX0017 52,074 322,649
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.580 468,095 2,691,107
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2005DJBX0981 278,965 475,384
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2006DJBX1128 204,211 204,211
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.738 483,176 679,595
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16.710 95ULWX0025 279,606 5,815,051
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.710 279,606 5,815,051
Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhood 16.609 03PS2191 78,198 224,812
Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhood 16.609 06PS2191 42,000 42,000
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.609 120,198 266,812
Developing, Testing And Demonstrating New Programs 16.541 2005-JL-FX-0262 50,920 216,331
Developing, Testing And Demonstrating New Programs 16.541 2006-JL-FX-0079 82,398 152,447
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.541 133,318 368,778
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 1,718,517 10,165,930
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Direct Programs:
O. B. Curtis Water Project 66.606 XP-97435701-3 - 2,787,800
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 66.606 - 2,787,800
Brownfields Assessments and Cooperative Agreements 66.818 BF-96486207 1,131 1,131
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 66.818 1,131 1,131
TOTAL U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 1,131 2,788,931
U.S. Office of National Drug Control Policy
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area
(MS Gulf Coast HIDTA - Pass Through)
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 07.999 16PGCP523Z 25,975 116,790
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 07.999 17PGCP540Z 65,466 65,466
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 07.999 I8PGCP540Z 12,786 12,786
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 07.999 104,227 195,042
TOTAL U.S. OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY 104,227 195,042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. See auditor's rgpgrt on supplementary schedules



City of Jackson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through Current Year Cumulative
CFDA Grantors Federal Expenditures
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures through 09/30/08
U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Authority
Direct Programs:
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 MS-03-00-12 $ - 1,913,848
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 MS-03-00-14 88,000 2,116,645
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 MS-90-X0-70 125,301 6,207,455
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 MS-90-X0-72 973,003 7,151,247
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.507 1,186,304 17,389,195
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 MS-03-00-13 - 5,115,818
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.500 - 5,115,818
Highway Planning and Construction (TS-204) 20.205 STP/G-0250(13A) - 1,810,865
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 048-0250-00-013-10 - 1,810,865
Highway Planning and Construction (High Street) 20.205  STP-7262-(2)-49-7262 - 6,252,088
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 - 6,252,088
Highway Planning and Construction (Traffic Calming) 20.205 TCSP-0250(21)/103924 217,162 284,052
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 217,162 284,052
Highway Planning and Construction (Woodrow Wilson) 20.205 NHS-7281-00(001) 49,107 49,107
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 105016-701000 49,107 49,107
Highway Planning and Construction (Lynch Street) 20.205 DHP-7300-00(001) 27,943 27,973
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 27,943 27,973
Highway Planning and Construction (West County Line) 20.205 DHP-7305-00(005) 3,854,218 3,854,218
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 105014-801000 3,854,218 3,854,218
Urban Youth Corps Grant
(Mississippi Department of Transportation-Pass Through) 20.000 N/A 14,258 14,258
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.000 14,258 14,258
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 5,348,992 34,797,574
U.S. Department of Labor
Older Americans Act
(Central Mississippi Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Senior Community Service Employment Program (Title V) 17.235 398-F-25 33,296 43,745
Senior Aides - Title V
(Senior Service America, Inc. - Pass Through) 17.235 AD-13734-04-60 587,292 587,292
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 17.235 620,588 631,037
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 620,588 631,037
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Program:
Natural Resource Conservation Service
Conservation Technical Assistance Grant 10.000 68-4423-08-1362/06-1631 30,000 30,000
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.000 30,000 30,000
Food and Nutrition Service (MS Department of Education - Pass Through)
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 V0000718080 277,107 277,107
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.558 277,107 277,107
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 V0000718080 117,072 193,496
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.559 117,072 193,496
(Central Mississippi Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565 378-1-25 28,937 28,937
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565 396-B-25 52,925 52,925
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.565 81,862 81,862
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 506,041 582,465

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. See auditor's report on supplementary schedules




City of Jackson

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through Current Year Cumulative
CFDA Grantors Federal Expenditures
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures through 09/30/08
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Muississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-04HS221 - $ 6,790
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-05HS221 - 112,665
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-07HS221 - -
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-04LE221 50,000 259,887
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-05LE221 - 81,175
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-07LE221 - -
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-3SSG-2022 - 315,094
Muississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-3SSG-5027 - 5,197
Muississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-3SSG-5028 - 7,599
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-3SUP-52 - 264,267
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 CCRT - 656,944
Muississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 06CC221 - -
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-3SSGE-8007 - 109,304
Muississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.004 MEMA-04-FG20699 - 156,303
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.004 50,000 1,975,225
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.036 FEMA-1459-DR-MS - 281,179
Muississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
State Domestic Preparedness Technical Assistance Program 97.036 FEMA-1764-DR-MS 3,857,249 3,857,249
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.036 3,857,249 4,138,428
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 3,907,249 6,113,653
Mississippi Commission for Volunteer Service (Pass-Through)
AMERICORPS 94.006 06AC059003 266,387 555,711
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 94.006 266,387 555,711
TOTAL MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION FOR VOLUNTEER SERVICE 266,387 555,711
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 21,573,657 $ 77,409,734

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. See auditor's report on supplementary schedules
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City of Jackson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through Current Year Cumulative
CFDA Grantors Federal Expenditures
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures through 09/30/08
State of MS Commission on Environmental Quality
(Department of Environmental Quality)
The City of Jackson has the following loans payable to the
Department of Environmental Quality at September 30, 2008
which were used for sewer improvements and to construct
pollution control facilities.
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
4% note dated September 30, 1992 66.458 SRF-C280785-01-0 $ - $ 2,622,653
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
4.5% note dated January 30, 1995 66.458 SRF-C280785-02-1 - 893,362
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
1.75% note dated July 1, 2003 66.458 SRF-C280886-01-1 - 1,732,037
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
3.0% note dated June 1, 2003 66.458 SRF-C280785-04-2 - 4,374,945
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
4.5% note dated September 30, 1994
as amended March 1996 66.458 SRF-C280785-03-1 - 1,430,632
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
3.75% note dated September 1, 1999 66.458 SRF-C280838-01-1 - 4,453,495
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 SRF-C280738-01-1 74,331 3,000,371
2.50% note dated January 30, 2008
$ 74,331 $ 18,507,495

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
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City of Jackson
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the year ended September 30, 2008

NOTE 1. Background

The City of Jackson, Mississippi (ithe City) is incorporated under the Laws of the State of
Mississippi. The City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with a full-time
Mayor elected from the City at large and seven part-time Council members (City Council)
elected from wards. The City’s major operations include police and fire protection, parks and
recreation, public works, public transit system, urban development and general administrative
services. In addition, the City owns and operates a water and sewer system.

NOTE 2. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) presents the
activity of all Federal award programs of the City that were received directly from Federal
agencies or passed through other entities and governmental agencies.

The City has prepared this Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to comply with the
provisions of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations., OMB Circular A-133 stipulates that a Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards be prepared showing total expenditures of each Federal award
program as identified in the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) and for other
federal financial awards that have not been assigned a catalog numbet.

NOTE 3. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the City of Jackson and is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting, The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this Schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose financial statements.

147



City of Jackson

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Continued

For the year ended September 30, 2008

NOTE 4. Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the City of Jackson provided federal

awards to subrecipients as follows:

Amount Provided
Program Title Federal CFDA Number  to Subrecipients
Community Development Block Grant —

-Entitlement Grants 14218 $ 280,206
Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 1,483,224
Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14.231 90,770
Urban Enterprise Grant 03.585 20,000
Housing Opportunities for

Persons with AIDS 14.241 834,783

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Agssistance Grant 16.738 208.429
Total $_ 2917412

NOTE 5. Contingencies

The City is the recipient of numerous Federal grants and awards. These grants and awards are
governed by various Federal requirements, guidelines, regulations and contractual agreements.

The administration of the programs and activities funded by these grants and awards is under the
control of the City and is subject to audit and review by the applicable funding sources. Any
grant or award found not to be properly spent in accordance with the requirements, guidelines,
regulations and contractual agreements of the funding sources may be subject to recapture,
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and Honorable
Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards of the City of Jackson (the City)
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated May 12,
2010. An explanatory paragraph was included in our report indicating that the City is subject to
audit by Federal agencies or their designees for compliance with certain contractual and
programmatic requirements with regard to its federal programs during the year ended September
30, 2008. The determination of whether any instances of noncompliance that will ultimately result
in remittance of ineligible and disaliowed cost cannot be presently determined. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our anditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards but not for the purpose of expressing an
“opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
(CONTINUED)

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, continued

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
preveni or deiect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City's ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the City's Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs o be
significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting presented as findings 2008-
08, and 2008-13 through 2008-15.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

Our considerations of internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose
all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would
not necessarily disciose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies disclosed above, we consider finding
2008-08 to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is free of maierial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standard and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 2008-9
through 2008-13.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
(CONTINUED)

Coihpiiance and Other Matters, continued

The City's responses fo the findings as identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs — the Corrective Action Plan. We did not audit the
City's responses contained in the Corrective Action Plan and, accordingly, we express 1no

opinion on it.

This report is intended solety for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council,
management, others within the City and federal awarding agencies and pass-though entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

6r‘w-€a CR TWUGQM Lt f
BRUNO & TERVALON LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

May 12, 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable
to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance With the Program — Specific Audit Option Under OMB Circular A-133,

The.Honorable Mayor and Honorable
Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB}
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 2008. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our
responsibility is fo express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with those requirements.

As described in findings 2008-09 through 2008-15 in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, the City did not comply with the requirements regarding the down payment
assistance, Davis-Bacon Act, data filing and maintenance, HUD required provision, untimely
completion of required audit, misclassification of grant funding and strengthening conirol over
recordkeeping that are applicable to CFDA #14.239, CFDA #14.218, CFDA #14.239, and CFDA
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable
to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
In Accordance With the Program — Specific Audit Option Under OMB Circular A-133.
(CONTINUED)

#20.205 federal financial assistance programs. Compliance with such requirements is necessary,
in our opinion, for the City to comply with the requirements applicable to these programs.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City of
Jackson, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above

that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the
City’s internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined
below. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies and others that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

A control deficiency in an entity” internal control over compliance exists when the design
or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelithood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control. We consider the
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as findings 2008-09, 2008-11, 2008-12, 2008-14 and 2008-15 to be
significant deficiencies.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote lkelihood that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the
City’s internal control. Of the significant deficiencies in internal conirol over complianee
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we consider findings
2008-08, 2008-10, and 2008-13 to be material weaknesses.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable

to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance With the Program — Specific Audit Option Under OMB Circular A-133. |
(CONTINUED)

The City’s response to the findings as identified in our audit are described in the |
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs — the Correct Action Plan. We did not |
audit the City’s response and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. ' |

|
|
|

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council,
management, others within the City and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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May 12, 2010
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Section 1: Summary of Auditors’ Results

Basic Financial Statements:
1. Type of auditor’s report issued on the basic financial statements

2. Independent auditor’s report over financial reporting contains:
a. Materia]l weakness(es) identified
b. Significant deficiencies
c. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to
be material weaknesses.

Federal Awards:

3. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance with major federal programs.

4. Internal control over major programs:
1. Material weaknesses identified
2. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses.

5. Any audit findings reported as required by Section .510(a) of OMB
Circular A-1337

6. Federal programs identified as major programs:

Ungqualified
Yes
Yes

No

Qualified

Yes

Yes

Yes

a. CFDA #14.218 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Development Block Grant.

b. CFDA #14.239 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

HOME Investment Partnership Program.

c. CFDA #14.241 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)

d. CFDA#16.580 U.S. Department of Justice

Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance

Discretionary Grants Program
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Section 1:

CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Summary of Auditors’ Results, continned

€.
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant
f. CFDA #16.738 U.S. Department of Justice
Edward Byre Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program.
g, CFDA #17.235 U.S. Department of Labor
Senior Community Service Employment Programs — Title V
h. CFDA #20.507 U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transmit Formula Grant
i.  CIFDA #20.205 U.S. Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
j.  CFDA #97.036 U.S. Department of Homeland Security
State Domestic Preparedness Technical
Assistance Program
k. CFDA #93.575 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Development Block Grant
1. CFDA #10.000 U.S. Department of Agriculture
Conservation Technical Assistance Grant
m. CFDA #94.006 Corporation for National and Community Services
Americorps
8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B programs. $647,209
9. The City of Jackson qualified as a low risk auditee. No

CFDA #16.710 U.S. Department of Justice
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Section 2: Financial Statement Findings

The audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Jackson, Mississippi was performed by
other auditors whose reports dated May 12, 2010, and the related Schedule of Findings and
Responses containing findings 2008-01 through 2008-07 appear in preceding sections of this
document. '

Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

CFDA Title and Number

14.218 — Community Development Block Grant
14.239 — Home Investment Partnership Program
16.738 — Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
16.710 — Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant (COPs Hiring)
10.000 — Conservation Technical Assistance Grant
© 20.205 — Highway Planning and Construction

|
|
2008-08 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal Agencies

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Transportation

Statement of Condition

We noted some weaknesses relating to the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of |
Federal Awards (the Schedule). The weaknesses noted resulted in several revisions in the
form of reported dollar amounts on the Schedule, additions and deletions of some reported
programs, and corrections on provided assistance information. Some of the weaknesses

noted are as follows:

o Selected program amounts recorded were based on cash collected instead of
accrued amounts.

e Selected programs initially included on the Schedule were reported in error;

e Selected program titles reported on the Schedule by the City were not the official
titles contained in the official CFDA catalog; and

o Selected programs were omitted.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-08 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Continued

Criteria

Pursuant to the requirements of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Part I1I Subpart C — Auditees, Paragraph .300 — Auditee Responsibilities

“The Auditee shall identify, in its accounts, all Federal awards received and expended and
the Federal programs under which they were received.” Also

Paragraph .310(b) — Financial Statements _

“The auditee shall also prepare a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the
period covered by the auditee’s financial statements.... At a minimum the schedule shall
include (1) list of Federal programs by Federal agency, (2) for Federal awards received as
a subrecipient, the name of the pass-through entity and identitying number assigned by the
pass-through entity, and (3) provide total Federal awards expended for each individual
Federal program and the CFDA number or other identifying number when the CFDA
information is not available....”

Cause of Condition

We understood that the City's staff prepared the Schedule based on confirmations received
from the funding agencies without checking the accuracy of the program names and CFDA
numbers to the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance and other sources.

Effect of Condition

Lack of preparation of an accurate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is a
violation of compliance requirements pertaining to auditee’s responsibilities and
maintenance of books and records in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Questioned Costs

None
Auditors” Recommendation

The City should strengthen internal controls relating to the preparation of an accurate and
complete Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards on a timely basis. Appropriate
supervisory oversight should also be established to ensure that works performed by
subordinates are reviewed to ensure accuracy and completeness.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Section 3: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2008-09 Down Payment Assistance

Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

CFDA Title and Number

14.239 — HOME Investment Partnership Program

Federal Agency

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Statement of Condition

Mississippi/Institute of Disability Studies, a subrecipient on this grant, and subseguent
discussions with management revealed that one beneficiary (participant) on the program
received assistance in the amount of $10,000 instead of $15,000 as recalculated by us.
Hence, there was an underpayment of $5,000 undetected by the City.

Criteria

|
|
|
|
Our audit of down -payment assistance provided by the University of Southern
Pursuant to the Project Objectives of Project Description 2007-2008, issued by the

University of Southern Mississippi/Institute of Disability Studies, qualified residents

having income of fifty-nine percent (59%) or less of HUD’s average median household

income should receive $15,000 in HUID assistance.

Cause of Condition

The employee of the University of Southern Mississippi/Institute of Disability Studies
miscalculated the benefit when processing the application. There was no evidence of
independent supervisory review of such calculation by the City.

1
|
1
|
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-09 Down Payment Assistance — Continuned

Effect of Condition

The participant was underpaid by $5,000. Subrecipient’s file was not reviewed
appropriately. However, books and records were properly adjusted to reflect the correct
amount after year-end.

» Questioned Cost

None

Auditors’ Recommendation

We recommend that the City take necessary actions to ensure records received from
subrecipients of grants are adequately reviewed by an independent reviewer to avoid
future under/overpayments to homebuyers receiving assistance under the program.

2008-10 Davis-Bacon Act
Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

CFDA Title and Number

14.218 - Community Development Block Grant
14.239 - Home Investment Partnership Program

Federal Agency

U.S. Department Housing and Urban Development

Statement of Condition

We noted during our audit that the City did not have in place supervisory oversight
procedures to ensure consistent monitoring of construction contracts for compliance with
the Davis-Bacon Act requirements for works performed by contractors and
subcontractors, Individuals from two different departments assigned to perform this
function were not properly informed as to who was responsible for the monitoring. There
was constant shifting of responsibility between individuals/departments based on our
discussions with the management.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-10 Davis-Bacon Act - Continued
Criteria
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement Part 3, Section D stipulates that a non- |
federal entity must ensure that contractors and subcontractors are paid prevailing wage

\
rates for projects covered by the Davis-Bacon Act..

(Cause of Condition

Lack of communication process between departments to ensure compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act requirements.

Effect of Condition

While procedures performed by us did not reveal any misstatement in payments disbursed,
lack of proper monitoring is a violation by the City with the administrative terms of its

grant agreement.

Questioned Costs

Auditors' Recommendation

We recommend that City management take necessary actions regarding monitoring of
contractors and/or sub-contractors to ensure compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act
requirements on a timely basis including establishing appropriate internal controls which
will prevent or detect future occurrence.

i
|
None

2008-11 Data Filing and Maintenance

Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

CFDA Title and Number !

14.239 - Home Investment Partnership Program
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-11 Data Filing and Maintfenance - Continued

Federal Apency

U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development |

The Development Assistance Division’s procedures relative to the administration of
-subrecipients do not provide for appropriate oversight and submission of annual audit
reports. During our testing of compliance with monitoring requirements for subrecipients,
we noted one of three subrecipients did not submit the required 2007 and 2008 annual
audits within six months of the subrecipient’s fiscal year end as required by the contract
between the City and the subrecipient.

Criteria

Statement of Condition

' |
A pass-through entity is responsible for obtaining and reviewing subrecipients’ audited |
reports to provide reasonable assurance that the Federal Awards are administered in |
compliance with Federal Award’s requirements. i

Cause of Condition

Turnover in key employee responsible for subrecipient compliance requirements and lack
of timely follow-up on receipt of required annual audit reports.

Effect of Condition

Lack of compliance with the established applicable Federal rules and regulations and the
possibility of intentional or unintentional misstatements in the financial statements
submitted for the years that were not audited.

Questioned Costs

None - |
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-11 Data Filing and Maintenance - Continued
Auditors' Recommendation
We recommend that City management take necessary actions io ensure adequate

personnel resources have been devoted to performing necessary and required
procedures.

2008-12 HUD Required Provision

Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

CFDA Title and Number

14.239 - Home Investment Partnership Program

Federal Agency

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 3
|
|

Statement of Condition

City’s subrecipients of the Home Investment Partnership Program. The agreement
was between the City’s subrecipient and one of its contractors. We noted the
agreement did not contain the provisions in 24 CFR Section 92.504 as required by

During our audit we reviewed selected contract agreements signed by one of the |
HUD.
Criteria

According to Basic Federal Document, participating jurisdictions are required to
have a written agreement that contains the provisions in 24 CFR Section 92.504,

Cause of Condition

Turnover in key staffing responsible for reviewing subrecipient’s compliance
requirements is one of the contributing factors. |
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-12 HUD Required Provision - Continued

Effect of Condition

Lack of compliance with the established applicable Federal rules and regulations.

QOuestioned Cost

None

Auditors” Recommendation

We recommend that management take necessary actions to ensure such condition
is not reoccurring in future.

2008-13 Untimely Completion of Required Audit
Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

None

Statement of Condition

The audited compliance and financial statements of the City for the year ended
September 30, 2008 were not completed within the stipulated required period after
the City’s fiscal year end. As of January 27, 2010 the audit was yet to be

completed.

Criteria

Pursuant to the reguirements of OMB Circular A-133, Subpart B paragraph .320,
audited financial statements are required to be submitted within nine months after
the close of the City’s vear end unless a longer period is agreed to m advance by
the cognizant or oversight agency. The extension obtained by the City ended

August 31, 2009,
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPP1
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-13 Untimely Completion of Required Audit - Continued

Cause of condition

Challenges resulting from staff changes and understaffing.

Effect

Non-compliance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 regarding
submission of audited financial statements.

Recommendation

Management should make every effort to ensure timely completion of compliance
and financial audit in future.

2008-14 Misclassification of Grant Funding

CFDA Titie and Number

20.205 — Highway Planning and Construction

Federal Agency

Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification
U.S. Department of Transportation |
|

Statement of Condition

At the wrap up stage of our engagement, we discovered via auditing procedures
that three grants funded by the U.S. Department of Transportation with
expenditures totaling $2,969,775 were omitted from the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards. The awards were included in the accounting records as bond
funding rather than grant funding for a capital project. As a result the Federal
awards expended were understated. The awards were not initially considered to be
audited under OMB Circular A-133 despite being a high risk major program.

:
1
]
i
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPP]
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-14 Misclassification of Grant Funding - Continued
Criteria

Pursuant to the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Part III Subpart C — Auditees, Paragraph 300 — Auditee
Responsibilities, “The Auditee shall identify, in its accounts, all Federal awards
received and expended and the Federal programs under which they were
received.”

Cause of Condition

The City’s financial system captures transactions by capital projects and does not
separately identify expenditures belonging to a particular funding source when
multiple fundings are received. As a result, the 2003 General Obligation Bond
revenues and Highway Planning and Construction awards were not separately
identified in the system because both items relate to the same capital project.
Consequently the awards were omitted from the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards. Additionally, compensating controls which would have
reconciled Federal expenditures reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards to Federal funds received were not performed until when the
condition was discovered by the auditors.

Effect of Condition

The City’s ineffective control over the record keeping of the Federal awards
affected the reporting process and timely completion of the annual audit.

Questioned Costs

None

Auditors’ Recommendation

The City should guard against this condition by implementing policies and
procedures that will ensure timely review, reconciliation and accurate reporting.

166




CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-15 Strengthening Control Over Recordkeeping
Federal Program and Specific Federal Award Identification

CFDA Title and Number

20.205 — Highway Planning and Construction

Federal Agency

U.S. Department of Transportation
Statement of Condition

During our audit, the City was unable to readily and timely locate the signed
Memorandum of Understanding and other supporting information identifying the
CFDA number relating to the Federal Award Program under audit. A copy for
-such agreement was requested from the pass-through entity when every effort to
locate such proved abortive.

Criteria
Grantees receiving Federal funding, whether directly or as a sub-award are
required to maintain a system of recordkeeping that will ensure that every

documentation is retained for the time period required by the Federal regulations.

Cause of Condition

Lack of proper filing and data maintenance controls in addition to turnover in key
staff contributed to this condition.

Effect of Condition

The City is not in compliance with the recordkeeping requirements.

Ouestioned Costs

None
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSTPPI
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2008-15 Strengthening Control Over Recordkeeping - Continued

Auditors’ Recommendation

The City should strengthen internal controls relating to data filing and retention to
ensure all documents associated with grants awarded are properly filed and
retained for the required contractual or statutory period of time.
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CITY OF JACKSON
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

2007-1 FINDING NO. 1 — SECTION 2

Condition: We determined there is no procedure to account for all issued tickets processed after the tickets
are retuned to Traffic and Court Services. This finding was commmnicated to the City in the prior
examination and no corrective action has been taken.

Recommendation: Management should develop procedures to ensure all tickets are returned promptly after
issuance and properly recorded.

Current Status: Comrected

2007-2 FENGING NO. 2 - SECTION 2

Condition: The City is lacking an effective disaster recovery plan for its water, sewer and sanitation billing
system. This situation leaves the water, sewer and sanitation billings open to loss of information and loss of
revenue. While the City as apparently made some advances in data backup to allow recovery, an effective
disaster recovery plan should contain written procedures on how the City can recover from various types of
disasters or systems failures. This finding was communicated to the City in the previous examination.

Recommendation: The Water and Sewer Department, as well as all of the other departments at the City
should have in place an effective disaster recovery plan to prevent business disruption whether caused by an
internal problem or natural disaster.

Current Status: Not Corrected

2007-3 — FINDING NO. 3 — SECTION 2

Condition: The City should improve its controls over information technology. Various issues were
discovered that place the City at risk for network outages and security breaches, as well as critical system
failures. A comprehensive disaster plan should be developed to ensure that mission critical applications can
be maintained. Although the City has made some improvements in its systems, the City continues to have
single points of failure and several key applications have not been addressed from a disaster recovery
standpoint. This finding was communicated to the City in the prior examination and no corrective action has
been taken.

Recommendation: The City should undertake a comprehensive review of its Information Technology
System. Such a review should include placing a high priority on replacement of the Water/Sewer/Sanitation
billing application programs. Sufficient financial resources should be allocated to ensure that effective
system controls can be implemented.

Current Status: Not Corrected
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2007-4 — FINDING NO. 4 — SECTION 2

Condition: The City’s procedures do not include account review and reconciliations in a number of
significant account balances and transactions classes. This finding was communicated to the City in the
prior examination and no corrective action has been taken. Our 2007 audit revealed there is a lack of
adequate support and a lack of an appropriate level of review of journal entries.

Additionally, the City does not have an adequate system for accounting for its land, buildings and
infrastracture records. A similar finding was communicated in the prior audit. Although the City has added
additional staff in accounting and internal audit toward the end of its fiscal year, no changes in controls over
financial recordkeeping have been implemented during 2007.

Recommendation: The audifors recommended that the City assign the responsibility for performing
periodic account review and reconciliations of significant asset and liability accounts to appropriately
trained employees. The frequency of such reviews should be based on the risk associated with the potential
- misstatement of the accounts. The procedures should include standards for documentation of work
performed as well as documentation that the work has been reviewed by appropriate supervisory personnel.
Additionally, the fixed assets records should be improved by incorporating the records into fixed asset
ledger system.

Current Status: Corrected

20067-5 — FINDING NO. 5 - SECTION 2

Condition: The City does not have established procedures to ensure that its external financial statements
are free from material errors. As aresult, it was necessary for the auditor to propose a number of revisions
to the footnotes to the financial statements to enable the disclosures to be in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles as well as to identify accounts and balances where material adjustment were
required.

Recommendatiion: Internal control procedures should be implemented to ensure that the financial
statements are free from material error or misstatement, such as a process of review by persons in the
Department of Administration not directly involved in the preparation process, completion of a disclosure
checklist and other similar procedures. Many of the errors in the financial statements that were defermined
by the audit were not technical accounting iterns but would have likely been detected by a critical reading of
the statements by persons who are knowledgeable regarding City finances. However, the statements must
be available for in a timely manner to allow for this review. Additionally, the City must mainfain
documentation which facilitates the review process.

Current Status: Corrected

2007-6 — FINDING NO. 6~ SECTION 2

Condition: The City does not have an adequate process related to the receipt of funds from major revenue
sources in the Treasurer’s office to ensure that all funds are received and deposited in a timely manner.

Recommendation: The auditors recommended that the City review its procedures for receipt and deposit of
checks being received in the Treasurer’s office. The auditors recommended that no check be received
directly by those personnel for monitoring the collection of funds. Additionally, there should be a reporting
procedure established whereby the failure to receive and deposit major sources of revenue is reported
timely to the Director of Administration so that appropriate action can be taken.

Current Status: Cormrected
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2007-7 — FINDING NO. 7 — SECTION 3

Congdition: It was noted during the audit significant weaknesses in internal control over compliance relating
to the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule), identification of
correct Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers, pass-throngh entities and other
identifying federal financial assistance information. The identified weaknesses resulted from the following
conditions:

Program amounts used were based on draw downs and not actual expenditures;

s Selected programs initially included in the schedule and subsequently removed prior to finalization
due to errors; .

»  Selected program titles in the schedule were not the official titles contained in the CFDA catalog;
Selected program titles were recorded with incorrect CFDA mumbers; and

We understand that the City’s staff prepared the schedule based on confirmations received from the funding
agencies withont checking the accuracy of the program names and CFDA numbers to the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance and other sources.

Recommendation: The auditors recommended that the management of the City strengthen internal controls
relating to the preparation of its Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of its financial reporting function. This sirengthening of internal controls should include, but
not be limited to, conducting a complete inventory of its federal financial assistance awards and contracts
and review of applicable award documents and contract files to ensure accuracy and completeness of all
applicable identifying award information (CFDA number, contract number, program title and descripticn,
primary recipients, etc,) in the accounting books and records. Appropriate supervisory contrels should also
be established to ensure that work is reviewed fo ensure accuracy and completeness of the schedule. We
also recommend that management segregate expenditures between those charged to Federal programs and
those charged to the general fund.

Current Status: Partially Corrected

2007-8 — FINDING NO, 8 — SECTION 3

Condition: The City’s procedures for the administration of grants do not provide for appropriate oversight
and monitoring of its federal award transactions. As a result, the City has not established and maintained
effective internals over compliance with each of the compliance requirements applicable to its major federal
programs.

Recommendation: The auditors recommended that the City adopt appropriate internal confrols over its
grants administration related to compliance in order to ensure that there is no greater than a remote chance
of noncompliance with grants in amounts not more than inconsequential. Such controls should ensure that
grants administration personnel are appropriately trained and grants records and reports are subjected to
appropriate internal review procedures. .

Current Status: Corrected
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2007-9 — FINDING NO. 9 - SECTION 3

Condition: Tt was noted during the audit that management of the Cify of Jackson did not have procedures
in place to monitor construction contracts for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act.

Recommendation: The auditors recommended that management of the City of Jackson establish
procedures with regard to monitoring contractors and/or sub-contractors for compliance with the Davis-
Bacon Act. Because of the decentralized operations with respect to grant management at the City of
Jackson, the auditors also recommended that management establish procedures to ensure that appropriate
internal controls are in place to prevent or detect the failure to monitor contracts for compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act.

Current Status: Corrected

2007-10— FINDING NO.10 — SECTION 3

Condition: It was noted during the andit that management of the City of Jackson did not file the required
Financial Reports for each of the grants below applicable to the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007,

CFDA Title and Number
16.710-Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant
20.500-Federal Transit Administration Grant
20.507-Federal Transit Formula Grant

Federal Agencies
1.8, Department of Justice

U.8, Department of Transportation

The auditors also noted that amounts drawn down fro the Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing Grant (CDFA #16.710} were based on estimates and not actual expenditures. Management is in
the process of attempting to reconcile a detail of police officers charged to program to those officers
actually eligible to be charged to the program to those amounts actually drawn down during the year,

In addition to the above, the anditor also noted that management failed to draw down approximately $3
million dollars of eligible costs related to the Federal transit grant, resulting in a significant cash flow
impact on City finances.

Recommendation: The auditors recommend the City management take necessary actions to ensure that
grant reports are prepared and submitied on a timely basis, inchiding establishing appropriate internal
controls which will prevent or detect missed reporting deadlines. The auditors further recommended that
appropriate cash management procedures be established.

Current Status: Corrected
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2007-11 - FINDING NO. 11 — SECTION 3
Condition: It was noted during the audit of the Federal Transit Grants:

o Costs recorded in the general ledger are comprised of both grant expenditures and matching funds
charged to the program. Management has not reviewed, monitored, and allocated expenditures
between grant expenditures and expenditures charged to the matching funds on a regular basis,
resulting in not having adequate records to support federal financial reports; and

s  Management also has not adequately reviewed those expendifures that were billed to the City by ‘
the JATRAN management company.

The auditors noted the following condition during the audit of the Public Safety Partnership and ‘
Community Policing Grants program. '
|

¢ During the course of the audif, the auditors noted that management was unable to provide a
detailed listing of police officers whose time was charged to the Public Safety Partnership and
Community Policing Grant, due fo personnel changes and missing documentation. However, prior
to the issuance of the audit report, management was able o provide a listing of officers whose time
was charged to the grant, but due to the timing of receipt of the listing and the need to issue the
aundit report, we were unable to audit the documentation provided by management, and as such we N
are questioning the amount charged to the program. e |

Recommendation: The auditors recommend that management take the necessary steps to ensure that all
costs charged to federal programs are properly segregated from those matching costs being funded by the
general fund. An allocation should be prepared and reviewed by management on a monthly basis. This
allocation should be the basis for financial reports prepared by management.

The auditors recommended that management prescribe procedures, which would require appropriate |
personnel to review and approve the expenditures submitted for reimbursement by the JATRAN
management company.

The auditors recommended that management prescribe procedures requiring documentation to be
maintained by management to support amounts billed to the funding source, which would enable

information to be able to be audited timely.

Current Status: Corrected
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Department of Administration

200 South President Street
Post Office Box 17
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

05/12/10

The City of Jackson respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended September
30, 2008.

Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Bruno & Tervalon LLP, CPAs and BKD LLP,
CPAs and Advisors, 190 E. Capitol Street, Suite 500, Jackson MS 39201

Audit period: Year Ended September 30, 2008

2.

FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Finding No. 2008-8 SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Recommendation: The auditor recommends that the management of the city strengthen internal
controls relating to the preparation of its Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to ensure
the accuracy and completeness of its financial reporting function.

Action Taken: Financial Management of grants have been centralized. The city has employed
two (2) grant accountants to manage the city’s grants. The accountants prepare financial reports
and initiate drawdowns for the city’s grants. The financial reports are reviewed and approved by
upper management. The grant accountants and programmatic grant managers share reports and all
information relating to the city’s grants. The grant accountants work directly with the overall
Grants Manager for the city in managing the city’s grants. In preparing the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards the grant accountants will use the catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance to get the appropriate name of the funding agency and the CFDA number. Since the
grant accountants prepare the financial reports for the grants and the respective drawdowns, the
grant accountants have the knowledge of the grants to correctly prepare the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards. The work of the grant accountants in preparing the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards will be reviewed and approved by upper management. The grant
accountants have received training in grant management by attending grant-training sessions
sponsored by the Department of Justice and the Federal Transit Administration.

FINDINGS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM FINDINGS AND
QUESTIONED COSTS

Finding No. 2008-9 DOWN PAYMENT ASSISTANCE

Recommendation: The auditor recommends that management of the city take necessary actions
to ensure records received by subrecipients are adequately reviewed by an independent reviewer
to avoid future under/overpayments to homebuyers receiving assistance under the program.

Action Taken: The city does perform independent review of the sub-recipient; however there was
oversight in this particular situation and the miscalculation was not noticed. The sub-recipient
recalculated the benefit and submitted revised documentations to the city and in return the city
processed a check to cover the shortage to the beneficiary. This condition has been corrected.
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Finding No. 2008-10 DAVIS-BACON ACT

Recommendation: The auditor recommends that management of the city establish procedures
with regard to monitoring contractors and/or sub-contractors for compliance with the Davis-Bacon
Act.  The auditor also recommends that management establish procedures to ensure that
appropriate internal controls are in place to prevent or detect the failure to monitor contracts
for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act.

Action Taken: The city has established procedures for Davis-Bacon both in terms of monitoring
contractors/sub-contractors for Davis-Bacon compliance and establishment of internal controls to
assure monitoring is taking place.

Finding No. 2008-11 DATA FILING AND MAINTENANCE

Recommendation: The auditor recommends that management of the city take necessary actions
to ensure adequate personnel resources have been devoted to performing necessary and required
procedures.

Action Taken: Subrecipients applying for federal funds are required to submit a copy of their
annual audit with their application. The agency was contacted by the city’s representative and was
informed that the subrecipient was unable to submit the annual andit when applying for federal
assistance due to the subrecipient’s CPA having not cornpleted the subrecipient’s anoual audit due
to awaiting third-party information. The audit was subsequently completed and submitted to the
city. The city will ensure that adequate personnel resources are devoted to performing necessary
and required procedures,

Finding Ne. 2008-12 HUD REQUIRED PROVISION

Recommendation: The auditor recommends that management of the city take necessary actions
to ensure such condition is not reoccurring in future.

Action Taken: The city will maintain adequate staff to monitor contract provisions and wiil
endeavor to ensure that contracts are in cornpliance with federal requirements.
Finding No. 2008-13 UNTIMELY COMPLETION OF REQUIRED AUDIT

Recommendation: Management of the city should make every effort to ensure timely completion
of compliance and financial audit in the future.

Action Taken: The city has contracted with an outside auditor to prepare the FY 09 audit and the
contract requires that the audit be completed no later than June 30, 2610.
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Finding No. 2008-14 MISCLASSIFICATION OF GRANT FUNDING

Recommendation: The city’s ineffective control over the record keeping of the Iederal awards
effected the reporting process and timely completion of the annual andit.

Action Taken: The MDOT grants are being used to augment bonds that the city issued for street
improvement projects. In order to capture the total cost of the sireet projects for capitalization
purposes, the grant funds are deposited into the Capital Projects Bond Fund for this purpose. The
MDOT grants are separately coded as grant funds in the Capital Projects Bond Fund. When
generating the grant fund report, a report of grant established funds; these grants were
inadvertently omitted since they were accounted for in the Capital Projects Bond Fund. In order to
prevent this from occurring again, reports will be run for all grant-established funds which was
previously done and reports of all revenues coded as grant funds regardless of which funds the
grant receipts are deposited and recorded. These reports will identify all grant funds received by
the city regardless of where the grant funds are receipted and deposited by the city.

Finding No. 2608-15 STRENGTHENING CONTROL OVER RECORDKEEPING
Recommendation: The city should strengthen internal controls relating to data filing and
retention to ensure all documents associated with granis awarded are properly filed and retained
for the required contractual or statutory period of time.

Action Taken: The city has centralized the management of its grants. The city has employed a

Grants Manager and two (2) grant accountants. Grant files have been reviewed and are now in
compliance with the Federal Recordkeeping recuirement.

If the U. 8. Department of Housing and Urban Development has questions regarding this plan, please call
me at (601) 960-1097.

Sincerely yours,

Rick H. Hili,
Director of Administration
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